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Everchanging

Tangram can outline different kinds of diagrams and objects through various ingenious
combinations with creations by means of change. The simple and stiff geometrical
diagrams become protean, vivid and lively and full of dynamic objects in different types
of style. The Group pursues the spirit of Tangram and establishes various objectives under
the ever changing business environment so as to enhance our operations in terms of
“Value Chain” and to enhance our competitiveness through flexible, swiftly and dynamic
combinations (the seven geometrical diagram) of our limited resources. We seek to
maximize shareholders’ value under severe economic environment.

The Group’s “Value Chain” is composed of a series of business operations, which are the
same as the seven plates in Tangram. Each separate plate cannot operate in an efficient
way individually. On the contrary, each component in the value chain should operate
interactively. Those components can be merged as one “Value Chain” to magnify its
growth potential through creative ideas, economies of scale, interactive, and strengthen
product differentiation. A comparative advantage of an enterprise can therefore be
created to cope with the impacts of financial turmoil.
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2009

Announcement of 2008/09 results
9 July 2009

Last day to register for 2008/09
Final Dividends
21 August 2009

Annual General Meeting
28 August 2009

2008/09 Final Dividend
Payment Date

—EENFURBFR

TEENF BAFEEENHEH
“ZETZNFLANAE

=2 N\F/ BAEERERE
BEBRAN
—EThENA=T+ -

BRRBAFKE
“EEAFENAZT/\H

—BEN\E/BAEERGRS
RS A

16 September 2009 —ZEFENFNATRH
Financial Year End B ESER
31 March 2009 —EEAF=A=1+—H
SHARE CAPITAL [N
As at
B=E
31 March 2009 30 June 2009
—EEREF —ETAE
=A=+—H NA=1H
Authorised (HK$) EE (B7T) 80,000,000 80,000,000
Issued (HK$) 2217 (BT) 57,709,760 57,709,760
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
AND SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION

As at 30 June 2009, the Company had 577,097,600
shares in issue of which approximately 44%® was held
by the public. As at that date, the Company had a total
of 878 registered shareholders. The following table shows
the distribution of ownership according to the Register
of Members and the Participant Shareholding Report
generated from the Central Clearing and Settlement
System as of 30 June 2009:

Shareholders REFEE X!

RESBRKRD 20

—EENFAA=ZTH AR 51T
Hﬂ 577,097,6000% © E A R R ng,%ﬁ b
44%0V - BERH » ARRHAFMARERS7S
HoBERREMEPREEIREZGN -
ZNFNAZTHRENSHEERERE &
MRS TATIRESHREREESLE

Number of % of % of

registered number of Number of total issued

Category shareholders  shareholders shares  share capital

S i HE BT

il RREE IR R EE % BEREE R4 B1 %

New Sense Enterprises Limited 1 0.11% 243,804,000 42.25%

Ho's family AERRE? 3 0.34% 78,630,000 13.63%

Directors® EE0 3 0.34% 2,382,000 0.41%

Individuals BAAREE 707 80.52% 16,970,034 2.94%

Institutions, corporates MBI EE %

and nominees REENRIEA 164 18.69% 235,311,566 40.77%

Total A5t 878 100% 577,097,600 100%
Note: B

(1) Public shareholding represents shares held by the public,
excluding those held by New Sense Enterprises Limited, Ho's
family and Directors of the Company.

) Ho's family comprises Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, Non-executive Director
and Ms. Ho Po Chu.

(3) Directors represent Directors of the Company excluding Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.

(1) 2 FFKE R K (BRNew Sense Enterprises
L|m|ted MERERARNARESAHFRN
SN RABRATFHRARRNHEE -

(2) (RRZEBAIFERTREHMISIELL - FEHTT
BRI EAEERMERL AL -

() EEARX (RAEELEERMEBELIN) KR
BZEE-
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As at 30 June 2009

Shareholders

Shares of HK$0.1 each

R-BEAFSA=TH IR SREE.1ETRMG
Number of Shares Held Number % of total Number % of total
iR 8 E A HEEES K HE GHEZEIL
1-2,000 551 62.7% 99,681 0.0%
2,001 - 10,000 59 6.7% 385,020 0.1%
10,001 - 20,000 47 5.4% 738,714 0.1%
20,001 - 50,000 59 6.7% 2,117,997 0.4%
50,001 - 100,000 47 5.4% 3,560,333 0.6%
100,001 - 200,000 35 4.0% 4,782,968 0.8%
200,001 — 500,000 31 3.5% 9,779,099 1.7%
500,001 - 1,000,000 17 1.9% 13,537,908 2.3%
1,000,001 - 2,000,000 12 1.4% 15,981,353 2.8%
2,000,001 - 5,000,000 6 0.7% 18,395,711 3.2%
Over 5,000,0005A 14 1.6% 507,718,816 88.0%

878 100.0% 577,097,600 100.0%
MARKET CAPITALISATION &

As at 31 March 2009
(Closing Price: HK$0.315)
HK$181,785,744

As at 30 June 2009

BE-EZhAhF=HA=+—H
(WHfE : 0.315/87T)
181,785,744 7T

BE-EThFAA=1+H

(W& : 0.437%T)
248,151,968/8 7T

(Closing Price: HK$0.43)
HK$248,151,968

Share Price Movement and Trade Volume in 2008/09
ZEEN\ S BAFEZREEZRARE
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Share Price (HK$)
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STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Main Board
1050

BOARD LOT
2,000 Shares

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the Share
Registrar of the Company:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-6, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8628

Fax: (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries, please contact:

Ms. Winnie Tsang

Senior Corporate Communications Officer

Karrie International Holdings Limited

10th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building

611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2437-6830

Fax:  (852) 2415-1608

Email: pytsang@karrie.com.hk/
ir@karrie.com.hk
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MAR 3 A

MAY 5A4

JUL7A

AUG 8A

NOV 114

DEC 12AH

JAN 18

JUN6A

JUL7A

€ 2008 pr

“Karrie Management Retreat Camp 2008"” for management team
REEERTIENEEESREE ] 2008

Internal fund raising for the “5.12 Sichuan Earthquake” in the Mainland China with a total donation of
more than HK$ 1,400,000
ARER [5.120) 1| KR | EHBAFEIRTTE) - HEFZFEIRBE1,400,0007T

Establishment of a joint venture with Sagem Communications SAS, engaged in manufacture and sale of
multi-function fax printers, TS & TT fax machines, related PCBA and associated spare parts

HiSagem Communications SASEKY & & AF] - EENFEERBELRSEEITEH  TSRITEERK -
MEREHIPCBA K P B Z 1

13th “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”

BITF =R [EEAREETRRK]

The Group and the University of Electronic Science and Technology of China (UESTC) in Chengdu have
entered an agreement to establish a joint laboratory, aim at fostering the R&D capability in electronics
products

SEERHEFHMBRABRIBEERE - RAEFERNTEREN

Awarded with “Citation for Achievement in Corporate Governance Disclosure” in 2008 HKMA Best
Annual Reports Award by the Hong Kong Management Association

EEEEREXHE | —TT)/\FE [REFRER ]| 2 [EFEREAEMRER]

2008/09 Interim Results Announcement

DTN BAFETHESE

<2009 p

“Karrie Management Retreat Camp 2009” for management team with target of reducing 20% operating
cost
REBBRTIZNEEEERRE]2009 ' WE MR EEEMA20% 2 BF

Awarded the “Caring Company” logo for the fourth consecutive year by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service

BENFERBHSRGHMSRE BRARRBIE] FF

Discontinued to announce quarterly financial results

BIENEERERE

To cope with the development of the Group, newly appointed two observer members for Executive
Committee to strengthen the management and governance capability

REAKREZERFE - (MITREQ) MEMBIIFEKE AR EIE R EGEN

14th “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”

BITF TR [EEAREET R
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Share Price Movement

from 1998 to 2009

—ANANFEZEZZZNFZREEZE

Share Price (HK$) Share Price (HK$)
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1998 1999 2001 2002 2003 2004

2000

Turnover HK$ million

EXEAEAT
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3,000

2,000

1,738 1,693

1,000

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Basic earnings per share HK cents

BREAEF EL
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Profit attributable to shareholders HK$ million
BEREESEF 88T
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Turnover percentage by Products

RERBINERFI IR

@ Metal and Plastic Business
e BBES

@ Electronics Manufacturing Services Business

BETEXRARIER

Turnover percentage by Geographical Location

RERMEMBINEXERIR

Japan Hong Kong ® China
B Eiy H

Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and China)
M CReEEA - BBRFH)

North America @ Western Europe

1M PO
2009 2008
19% 15%

2009 lI 2008 I‘

>

7

2009 2008 % Changes
—EThE —EENF FEA DL
HKS$ million B&ZET
Turnover | 2,461 2,800 -12%
Gross profit EF 177 179 -1%
Operating profit R 26 27 4%
Profit for the year AN [E 5 A 20 13 +54%
Profit attributable to equity holders REEE A AEE SR 22 13 +69%
Total assets BEBE 1,870 1,657 +13%
Shareholders’ equity IR 741 676 +10%
In Million =1E-04
Number of shares R B 577 577 -
Per Share Data grRER
HK Cents JEN
Basic earnings HAHF 3.8 2.8 +36%
Diluted earnings g RN 3.8 2.8 +36%
Total cash dividends HIRP IR B 1.5 0.75 +100%
HK$ JBIT
Net asset value per share BIREEFE 1.3 1.2 +8%
Financial Ratios B FG L =R
Gross profit margin (%) EERERN (%) 7.2 6.4 +13%
Net profit margin (%) EERAEA] (%) 0.8 0.5 +60%
Net current ratio FmEN L = 1.7 1.8 6%
Net quick ratio FIRB) L K 1.3 1.3 -
Net gearing ratio (%) FIRITEEL R (%) -5 8 -163%
Interest coverage R BORE L= 7 5 +40%
Dividend payout (%) KB (%) 39 27 +44%
Turnover to net bank borrowings BEHERIEITEBL X N/A 54 N/A
Non-current assets to IEMBNE E AR
shareholders’ equity (%) LR (%) 69 67 +3%
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Definitions E&
sl earnings Profit attributable to equity holders SRR A A IRHERE B AFE(G 3 A N
per share Weighted average number of shares ’ INHE T35 AR 21
Diluted earnings Profit attributable to equity holders R IRHERB A&
per share Diluted weighted average number of shares R BEUE N AR B
Net asset value Net assets SREERE BEFE
per share Number of shares as at year end R FIERARE
Gross profit Gross profit EF
1009 BXEH (9 - 1009
margin (%) Turnover X % RIRER (%) ] X %
Net profit Profit attributable to equity holders RSB AR T
100% I 9
margin (%) Turnover X ° ZIRAER (%) e x 100%
Current assets (less short-term bank EEEE R
, borrowings) _ RITEE)
N o =
et current ratio Current liabilities (less short-term bank B mahaE (R H
borrowings) RITEE)
Current assets (less inventories TEHEE (REER
’ i o] PEyrEs
Net quick ratio and sh.ort. .tgrm bank borrowings) . ﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬂag)
Current liabilities (less short-term bank mEBAEE (e
borrowings) RITEE
Bank borrowings BITEE
Net gearing (less cash and bank balances) SHERITIEE (RIS RBEITER)
ratio (%) Shareholders’ equity b R (%) A& R RE 2

Dividend
payout (%)

assets to

equity (%)

Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation

Interest coverage

Interest paid

Dividend per share

Turnover to net

- x 100%
Earnings per share

Turnover

bank borrowings

Non-current

Bank borrowings
(less cash and bank balances)

Non-current assets

shareholders’

Total equity

ARRA B~ BIA

78 0 S AT R
) R 5 L R
ﬂ:ljlu\/g_lu%tt—v— ﬂ:_lj,%\i H:',
QL \J'Ll%\
TRBLH (%) ;ggﬂ X 100%
wmm g
SR ITEE R FAEE

CRIR & MIRTT4 17 )

FRBEEN FnsaE
PSR 2E L R (%) EmAaE
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Chairman’s Statement FERE

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to
present the annual report of Karrie International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS
The Group is principally engaged in

- Metal and Plastic Business: manufacturing and sale
of metal and plastic products including computer
casings, office automation products, video tape
cassettes, moulds, plastic and metal parts; and

- Electronic Manufacturing Services ("EMS") Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape drives,
laser printers, multi-function facsimile machines,
“point-of-sale” system and other computer
peripherals.

Business review

It was a tough and difficult year. The Group enjoyed a
stable first half of the year. However, with the sudden
emergence of the global financial turmoil in the beginning
of October, many enterprises were caught off their guard
and were placed under a harsh and severe situation. The
rapidly worsen macro-economic environment made our
customers take cautious measures. The demand became
weak. Most of our customers requested further delay
in shipment. They even delayed the development and
launching of new products and projects. For instance, the
operations of our joint venture company with Sagem has
been delayed accordingly. Both orders and quantity of
shipments from our metal and plastic and EMS customers
declined significantly, resulting in a double-digit decrease
of the Company’s turnover in the second half of the year.
The economic situation ahead is still full of uncertainties.
We believe that the instability and uncertainty will persist
for certain period of time, not to mention its recovery.

REURARKE SRR BAARLRAR
AR (AR RAKWEAR ((%E) RE
TENF=A=T—BLNFE -

FTERBRESE
SETERE

- HRUBEK-RERKERLRD
BES BEEKNB RAZXEE
% HEWIR - BA BEREBH
5 R

- EBFEXRRIEH -RENHEEWUTHE
525 - SWBETITENH - ZIREEEK - TR
MRS REMEREEER -

£ 361

BE-FRIFTEFN—F - LFFEEY
RO BERERNTANAEREE <
RELE-—BEHEFI L BRARKRZS
SNERERERER - BEPERINEBIER
B FBRES REBMEPERMEREN - &
BEREAEMETHER - NHSagem & &
RAZEEOHAEE - T A EBRE
BEERINEBEPZAIENEEEERBARE
HUBIE  BRARB 2 EXBERN N FBREE
HFOHTE® - EEBRDEWER - TRE
MEERE - HEESRKE —RBRER  ETH
EmEBED AR -
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The Group had implemented strict and decisive measures
immediately to bring cost under control and their effects
gradually reflected at the end of this fiscal year. Turnover
for the year ended 31 March 2009 declined by 12% or
HK$339,389,000 to HK$2,460,578,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2008: HK$2,799,967,000). But the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company increased
68% or HK$8,933,000 to HK$22,081,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2008: HK$13,148,000).

- The turnover of the Metal and Plastic Business
("M & P") for year ended 31 March 2009 was
HK$1,256,928,000 (for the year ended 31 March
2008: HK$1,321,560,000), 5% lower than that for
the corresponding period last year. M & P represents
51% of the total turnover. The drop of the turnover
was mainly due to the decrease in shipment from
one of our major customers. The operational profit
for the year was HK$61,720,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2008: Profit HK$48,127,000),
approximately 28% higher than that for the same
period last year. The Metal and Plastic Business still
remains the main source of profits of the Group.

MEAEBEER T E  HITZERK - BRITE
AR e EEKREF EFENE KEE - &
ECEENFHA=ZT—HIEEERBETY®T
339,389,000 7T 8, 12% % 2,460,578,0005% 7T
(ZZEZENF=ZA=+—H1t :2,799,967,000
BIL) e MARBRERAEAEELEEN B
22,081,000 Tt (ZEENF=A=+—H
1F © 13,148,000/ 7T) A% 50 78,933,000/ 7T
H68% °

- heBRBEKREBEE_TTNF=ZA=
+—B 2% %¥%/51,256,928,000/8 TTE
EFRIPTEHT5% (B2 N\F=
A=+—8 :1,321,560,0007T) * 1«
BB EBEETES % AEFR—
NEERFHNMNEER)  SIBEES
T - 5FHEE R A61,720,0008
T(BEE-ZZEN\F=ZA=+—HBI1t ' &
%148,127,000 L) * REFRBPLEHAT
4928% * NAEREBEEHFHR
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0]

The turnover of the EMS Business for the year
ended 31 March 2009 was HK$1,203,650,000
dropped by 19% compared to the same period
last year (for the year ended 31 March 2008:
HK$1,478,407,000). EMS represents 49% of
the total turnover. During the year, one of our
prominent client’s sales dropped by 25% compared
to the same period last year, other clients also
suffered from financial turmoil and resulted in
decrease of sales. Despite our tight cost control
measures, the EMS Business still recorded an
operational loss of HK$38,712,000 during the
year (for the year ended 31 March 2008: loss
HK$24,264,000).

Decisive Measures

The rise of cost structure started to slow down after
the financial turmoil. The appreciation of RMB, rise
of fuel cost and steel price became steady. With our
efforts to streamline the operating structure and
implemented some job re-allocations, the labour
cost had been reduced gradually. However, the
overall costs were still higher than that of the same
period last year.

The Group faced the rise of the following operating
costs during the financial year :

(i) RMB appreciated by approximately 4%;
(ii) Labour cost rose by approximately 14%;
(i) Qil price rose by approximately 22%; and

(iv)  Steel price rose by approximately 18%;

(=)

BETFEXERIEBREZE_ZETNF=
A=+—H1E 2% %%/1,203,650,000
BITREFRBATK 7T19% (HEz=-F
ZENF=ZA=+—HIE :1,478,407,000
BIL) BEFEERINLEBREXR
49% - 5F  BREF—HBFTEXFH
HELLEFREEE T K25%5 0 H
TEFPHLASMERNTE  EHEDHH
WTH - BHEAEBEE HITEFIKA - B
BEFEERIEERSFNHREEEEE
38,712,000 T - (BE=_ZTZTN\F=A
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The Group implemented the following measures
which effectively reduced the cost :

(a)

Strict control over cost: At the beginning
of 2009, members of the Board of Directors
and Executive Committee took initiatives to
reduce their remunerations by approximately
6% in average. Bonus was reduced. 5 days’
work was implemented in the Mainland
China. Staffs in Hong Kong also had their
salary cut over 3% on average with effect
from March 2009. The Group had enhanced
its efficiency and achieved saving of costs
through streamlining the operating structure,
laying off employees whose performance
was not up to standard and normal staff
turnover. The number of employees was
reduced from approximately 7,200 persons
at the end of March 2008 to approximately
5,650 persons (or approximately 22%) at
the end of March 2009. However, the labour
cost had not been decreased accordingly
due to the implementation of the Labour
Contract Law and strict compliance of the
minimum wage rules, which increased the
Group’s expenditure in this respect.

In view of the drop of turnover, the Group
would not treat slothfully in respect of
the control of expenditure. Expenses
on transportation, overseas traveling
and entertainment were reduced by
HK$9,000,000 compared with that of last
year.

Improvement in production: The Group
has improved production efficiency, reduced
the demand of labour and material scraps by
means of robot hands and the usage of the
operational model under multi-production
stops.

At AEBRBEEEEE - EmEZ
FURETR < MR

(a) BEREX: R-ZEThFY - =
ERRRITEESKE XL REFTF
B HI6% @ WMETEA - FE AR HETT
AXRTIE BEBSBEELR-_ZZ
NF=Z ARBEITRE - FHRE
HiE3%  c EEBFEBEATRK
EBHERBREZEISRBERES
EUABEAF BEEAEHRH-Z
ZNFE=AEMLT,200A  BE
ZE_ETNF= AKEAHLS5,650A
SHIR T 4922% - #R - KEED
BAORMEAF - RE TERAIL K4
FEHIRIE - BALHAREZEHE
RERBITRIEIEH LS RNERL
TRALES -

SREEER M AEEY
ERSHEAXHEIHRIE
HR 2 ERER  BIERKER
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9,000,000/ 7T °

(b) HBLEE: FAEWT ZHZ
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(e)

Upholding core business: the Group has
never invested in any high risk leveraged
financial products. All the net proceeds
from the rights issue were invested in
the construction of plants, purchase of
production related facilities and treated
as working capital so as to maximize the
shareholders’ interest. In view of the price
fluctuation of the raw material commodity,
the Group only took up profitable projects
and would not participate in any cut-throat
price competition in order to reserve our
financial and production strengths.

Preparing for a rainy day: The Group
always made decision based on the principle
of “Preparing for the worst and making the
best preparation”. Before the outbreak of
the financial crisis, the Group had already
completed the rights issue in November 2007
and therefore, even under severe financial
turmoil, our financial status remained
healthy.

Stock management: As the sole supplier
of our customers for some of their specific
projects, we are obliged to take certain
stock risk, especially under such an
economic downturn situation. However, to
satisfy customers’ requests for maintaining
reasonable stock level and to achieve
an effective inventory management, the
inventory turnover was 36 days and the
value of our inventory was approximately
HK$227,062,000 as at 31 March 2009 (37
days and HK$264,352,000 as at 31 March
2008).

BIFARE: AKEYT2ESE
SIUTEERMEMRNE - KREMENK
HEARERRE  BERERRE
MEREEBEES - BARBRRRM
AN o EE R ERE
RBIR > AEEREFINA BN
HE - R FBRAREES] K
WIEE g2 MREFMBE LA
EEN -

BRI AEE-ERA[&
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A TREWA - AEEER =T
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FEE®E: (EAEFERIEER
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H=+—HA37XM264,352,000
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Good communication: The Group
understands that the support from various
parties is crucial and is the foundation
to business growth. Maintaining good
communication with various parties is very
important. The Group always keeps contacts
with our customers to understand their
needs so that we can develop products to
meet their requirements. In addition, we also
exchange views on the principal activities
of the Group, world economy and financial
trends with our banks in order to enhance
their confidence and render support to the
Group.

Investment consolidation: Customers’
orders were reduced due to the financial
turmoil. Our production capacity had
been increased significantly over capital
expenditure in the past few years. With
the completion of Phase Il & Il of Yu Quan
Plant respectively, on one hand, we are
seeking more appropriate partners to form
joint venture so as to utilize our production
facilities and enhance the operational
efficiency as a whole. On the other hand,
the Capex of the Group will slow down with
suitable adjustments to reduce certain Capex
so as to improve our liquidity.

The adverse impacts caused by the leasing
problems in Wuzhong, Suzhou at the
beginning of 2007, and the fact that the
drenching rain in Central China in 2008
and global financial turmoil recently delayed
our investment plan in Eastern China. In
addition, to expand new business in new
area, customers will take conservative
measure, especially under uncertain
economic environment. More time is
required for mutual understanding. Our plan
to provide excellent services and products
to meet customers’ demands in those areas
will not be affected. It is expected that the
Yixing plant will commence pilot production
in the third quarter of the financial year of
2009/10.

REFBRE: AKBETEHEINX
FROEERER AR KR - 45
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Construction Plan for Yu Quan Plant
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Since the financial year 2003/04, the Group has been
implementing a capacity expansion plan and accelerating
automation to further exploit economy of scale and
strengthen cost competitiveness (as shown in the table
below). The Capex was HK$114,641,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2009.

The Capex for April and May 2009 was approximately
HK$27,000,000. The Capex is temporarily scheduled at
approximately HK$70,000,000 for the year of 2009/10.
The capacity and productivity have been increased
greatly and are sufficient for the Group’s future business
development.

H—_BEZE= /ENFERARAEBEEET T E
%%ﬁ%&%ﬁ@@m D RIE R RN
AN AR FREN (RTR) BHEZEZE
NE=ZA=+—HI AFENETEEKRE
2% 114,641,000/ 7T °

E>| T

“EZNFNARRAAZEEEERERLN S
27,000,000 - BEFE—_ZETN,/ —ZFE
ZBEFEEEREHX 70,000,000 7T ° EBEN
EENERKER  BUBMRKRANEEER
REER o

Net Gearing Ratio

Turnover Capex as at 31 March
FRITEELLR
= 3 EE&EERE BE=ZA=t—H

HK$ HK$

BT BT
2003/04 1,692,960,000 59,000,000 1%
2004/05 2,563,190,000 62,000,000 56%
2005/06 3,592,741,000 92,000,000 21%
2006/07 3,320,030,000 92,000,000 25%
2007/08 2,799,967,000 199,000,000 8%
2008/09 2,460,578,000 115,000,000 -5%
2009/10 N/A3E A 70,000,000 30%*

* Initial estimation

M hE
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Flexible Combination

Tangram can outline different kinds of diagrams
and objects through various ingenious combinations
with creations by means of change. The simple and
stiff geometrical diagrams become protean, vivid
and lively and full of dynamic objects in different
types of style. The Group pursues the spirit of
Tangram and establishes various objectives under
the ever changing business environment so as to
enhance our operations in terms of “Value Chain”
and to enhance our competitiveness through
flexible, swiftly and dynamic combinations (the
seven geometrical diagram) of our limited resources.
We seek to maximize shareholders’ value under
severe economic environment.

The Group's “Value Chain” is composed of a
series of business operations, including two major
activities: production and support.

Production Activities
1. Marketing Operation

The Group adopts a customers-oriented
business strategy and communicates with
our customers vigorously to understand their
requirements. The Group is also seeking
appropriate strategic partners so as to create
business synergy to complement with each
other, which can in turn strengthen and
develop business relationship and enable the
Group to tap the demand of the worldwide
market.

The Group had established a joint venture
company with Sagem in which the Group
beneficially owns 60% of the equity interest.
Sagem is an advanced manufacturer of office
facilities and have strong ability in research
and development. The establishment of
the joint venture company can accelerate
the Group to master relevant technologies
and enable the Group to participate in
high demand market areas. In this regard,
the Group can get recognition from world
class enterprise through its manufacturing
ability and realize its promise to establish a
close working relationship. The Group can
therefore enhance its competitiveness and
advance its ability in research of computer
and server casings to another level.
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EFHEE
+tIOREERBE R FMAERHYH
HeRE BEBEeE  AEHTRAYE
MBS HEERETNLMEZR 4
e TFEELHTRER - WPNER
MBI 2 c REBFRALTTIRG
e LBERZER  ERE #mmMﬁ
RET - B TEAMNBERE SBEE -
& JiJIHUE&yTE{EE’J%HA(t%gz
{—JE*) gt AREB [EEE] &

i‘@ﬁﬁﬂ—iﬁ EN - EESENKER
iﬁ—l— RE AR FEHE AT °

RNEE [EEE) HE—ERTRALE
/E@JZE& EE/\E}!EW_LB{/J}/E@J EF
K3d% o

EEEE
1. EI)\)\ﬁﬁ

AEBAERE ZEHRE - A
HEPFEE  TREPHER AL
B3 T E = kA R BRI - PARR
BiHEXME  BEfTR  WaE—
FEENMDREBRE - HIRKH
BEREY - KMBEHERE

ZﬁiliﬁiSagemW_LT/\ NS
AEEER %ﬁEA“”TW%
ZHEHE o SagemE A E X R E
HIRESLBE T R HE B SR AR B AE
71 BB RRIMKIRE IR EFIE
BEEBERMOERANEAGLS
FROTISEE  TRBEEEF
B ER @%ﬁﬁmm%w
B MK B = A VEBER AR o
It [R BRr 3 RE 42 F 5= ﬂﬁﬂ%%“

ke T E 2K - IREHF
5 o

21



22 Karrie International Holdings Limited 5 7IBIFR =R GRR A7) » Annual Report 2008/09 F%k

Chairman’s Statement FERE

Purchasing & Logistic

The Group puts emphasis on the purchasing
of raw materials. Since raw materials, like
steel, plastic and electronic part, account
for a prominent part in our production cost,
we had maintained close connections with
our suppliers (including sole suppliers of
specific projects) to ensure a stable supply.
Moreover, we will make some short-term
adjustments in our purchase so as to use the
raw materials in efficient manners.

The inbound and outbound, inventory
control and transportation of raw materials
are well linked together. All raw materials
and finished goods are orderly stored by
zones under the control of finished goods
objective management.

KRBT -

AEBFRTEM B ZRKE - ER
MRmER - BREEFEMHD
HEERAREE &M - A&EH
HEMHER (BREPEENHE
B REETHME  BREER
BEMEIE o I B RS TR E
ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂ‘ﬁﬁﬁ - AL E B BUE R

AEBUYHES  BHBAE - B
FEGMERREERTEE M
B EKmEAFRRERHET XA

P BREIEEE -

AEEBEERAE Mass pledge resolution on 55 management

Manufacturing Operation

The Group has adopted the 55 management
principle, known as Seiri (Organisation),
Seiton (Neatness), Seiso (Cleanliness),
Seiketsu (Standardisation) and Shitsuku
(Discipline) in order to enhance our business
operation and workspace management. It is
believed that 5S is the key for improvement
of productivity as well as product quality. 55
ultimately develops a workplace operation
with excellent management by virtue of a
healthy, clean and safe work environment.
The damaged rate of our facilities will be
reduced. Furthermore, the implementation

BEEE

AEERGHEMAEE (A TH
FI5S])  LAMREZEMTIEME
Bs5STHBIETEE . BE B
B ARMEEMNERRL - A%
ERAESSEHNELZE REE NS
2 EmelE—EEFREEEDL
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B BERTEHNIERE  RIE
REHOWEE - BREEEMBEEREA
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of 5S can also be integrated with other
international recognized management
systems, like ISO 14001 and therefore the
operation will be more efficient.

The Group adopted a vertical integration
production model, which can centralize our
production process and save logistic cost.
In addition, the Group has also adopted
objective management. Each production
operation is under specified objectives.
Departments convene meeting from time to
time to discuss ways for further improvement
and enhancement of production efficiency.

Supporting Activities

4.

Technology Development

The Group accelerates the progress of
automation continuously by using machinery
facilities to replace manpower so that
the leveraged operational effect can be
maximized. The Group can produce more
products with the less manpower. The
reduction of approximately 22% manpower
is the best proof.

The Group has established a joint laboratory
with the University of Electronic Science and
Technology of China in Chengdu, Sichuan.
The Group believes that the research and
development in this laboratory can greatly
assist in enhancing the Group’s ability in its
design in term of computer peripherals, such
as the integration of the server system and
also in solving some technical problems. The
Group’s integration technology and product
development capability will be further
enhanced. We are going to the direction
of high technology and high value-added
business.

Human Resources

Human resources is an valuable assets to the
Group. The Group commits to broadening
the knowledge base of employees and has
taken initiative to provide different kinds
of in-house and external trainings and
to enhance the concept of management
by objectives. In addition, the Group also
strengthens human resources management,
rewards and appraises employees with good
performance under a performance-linked
incentive scheme and actively communicates
with our employees. As a result, the staff can
achieve targets in a more efficient way.
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Finance and Internal Audit

The Group manages its finance under
prudent manner. With supports from banks,
the Group’s liquidity has become more
stable, which can provide sufficient resource
for broadening our business and enhances
our operational efficiency.

Besides, the Group understands the
importance of internal control and risk
management. An internal audit department
has been established for years to improve
operational efficiency on a continuing basis.
[ts works include random investigation on
operations, protection of assets, improving
workflow, risk management and systems
reviewing.

B RE

BEEMDAEE-ENTRE - M0
b ROTNBNIFERRESES
MEORE MR EHERIDR
KRB REBEYE -

pEAN - NEEREE AP ELE KA
BMEBMNEZMN BN AZER
HPIZE - Ui A EEFE N
SEERE /E;IKIT/ET =i
HMEEE REQAGEE WER
ER N’”f@&* RES

B2 EIRHITEEI®E  The Meeting to Implement and Jump-start Management By Objectives

Optimization of Management

The Company has established an executive
committee. Members are comprised of
different department heads. The executive
committee’s main scopes of work include
provision of professional opinions concerning
objective management, quality management,
finance and accounting. Training courses
are provided to management from time to
time to strengthen their management skills
and leaderships. Moreover, brainstorming
sessions were held from time to time in
order to raise the operational efficiency
and management capacity, save raw
materials, control scrap, and promote talents
assembling and diligent working.

7.
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The above mentioned seven activities are the same
as the seven plates in Tangram. Each separate plate
cannot operate in an efficient way individually. On
the contrary, each component in the value chain
should operate interactively. Those components can
be merged as one “Value Chain” to magnify its
growth potential through creative ideas, economies
of scale, interactive, and strengthen product
differentiation. A comparative advantage of an
enterprise can therefore be created to cope with
the impacts of financial turmoil.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a set of “New Dividend
Policy” since the first quarter of the financial
year of 2006/07, which outlines the factors for
consideration when determining the dividend for
distribution, such as profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company, cash flow and Capex.
After careful considerations of all factors, the
Board expects to maintain payment of dividends to
shareholders in twelve consecutive years, the Board
recommends to pay a final dividend of HK1.5 cents
per share to shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of members of the Company on 28
August 2009.

Geographical Distribution

The Group does not rely on one single market
but ships to diverse markets. Details are set out
in segment information Note 5 to the Financial
Statement.

Conclusion

The Company has been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for more than
twelve years and overcame many upheaval events,
such as Asian financial crisis, the outbreak of the
dot-com bubbles, the impact of SARS (Severe
Acute Respiratory Syndrome), and the recent global
financial turmoil. The Group remains unshakable
as time goes by. The Group managed to uphold
its level of corporate governance; stable financial
status, efficient administration, productivity motion,
goodwill and cost management. In addition, the
Group has been focusing on its own core business
with pragmatic style. Notwithstanding the current
severe economic situation, the Group continues
to utilize limited resource to create opportunities
with no fear of challenges and will step forwards
persistently to manifest our efficiency even under
adverse time.
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A EREENEECERERMAREEME, AR IRE0E KB K& A DU TIERRK
The Retreat Camp effectively expressed the direction of corporate development and conveyed other important
messages, so that the tacit understanding among various teams is enhanced and performance improved.

A EEEEE-HERLS:
[Together. We Canl

“Together. We Can”, the
management staff hailed together.

A EREHEEAZFKBRAEETATARE
TER®), AREB S EREERITH S BNE
FEENINHRAGEE
The Retreat Camp began with a long-
distance run led by the COO Mr. Kwok
Wing Kin, Francis. Managers were
impressed by the message that “Action is
the key to corporate changes”.

A TERTRAHMEEBIAEEERES

Chairman & CEO, Dr. Ho Cheuk Fai gave speech to management team
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PROSPECTS

With the impacts of financial turmoail, the year of 2009/10
will certainly be a year full of difficulties and challenges.
The global business is undergoing some difficult time
and the Group cannot get away from it. As a preliminary
estimation, the turnover for the year of 2009/10 will drop.
As the Group's products are mainly for corporate usage,
there will be a time-lag effect to reflect the demand in
the market. However, it seems that the declining trend
of consumer electronic products has approached its
trough and the shipment of new model from one of our
EMS customers will be launched. It is expected that the
turnover ratio between Metal and Plastic Business and the
EMS Business shall be 30:70. Thanks to the “Quantitative
Easing” monetary policy adopted by many countries, it has
provided sufficient capital to the global financial market
and enhanced the liquidity in short term. The economic
atmosphere has become more steady and people started
to regain confidence gradually. Furthermore, the Chinese
government has implemented different stimulating
measures. It is believed that the internal demand in China
remains strong. In the future, the Company will remain
focusing on its own core business and grasping the
business growth opportunities in China.

Under such a severe business environment, the Group
will continue the effective measures as set out last year to
save costs and increase revenue and maintain the healthy
financial status. We believe “Together, we can” and we
will “Prepare for the worst and plan ahead for the best”.
With appropriate measures in place, we will be able to
overcome the current difficult time and heading toward to
a brighter future.

The Group’s unaudited turnover for the two months
ended 31 May 2009 was HK$295,406,000 (2007/08:
HK$415,000,000), as the unaudited turnover for these
two months may not be able to reflect the final results for
the year ended 31 March 2010, investors and shareholders
should exercise caution when dealing in the shares of the
Company.

B
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Kigpie  MEAEBEFH—FFEETE
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TFEEMNE BHAcBRBESEETRER
TEBEWLLHIA30 70 - EFZEENENE
REERER  RHRESREREBRTENES R
WRMERBRE  LERKRSEBET WK
E0 IR ETE o 11k BBUF I AR AL
RBHE HEBRAKES KEFELER - B
BREK ARG EHF[EFTAE  ELREEFEH
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Robust Cash Generating Ability

With the new Capex cycle slowing down, the Group
has taken a group-wide effort to improve the cash cycle.
As a result, the Group maintains a net cash inflow from
operating activities of HK$147,441,000 as compared to
last year’s net cash inflow of HK$161,536,000 despite a
12% decrease in turnover.

Non-current Assets to Shareholders’ Fund Ratio
staying below 1

The Non-current assets to Shareholders’ Fund Ratio stayed
at a healthy 69% (2007/08: 67%). This means that the
Group is using long term shareholders’ fund to finance
non-current assets such as plants and machinery. The sole
purpose of the existing bank borrowings is to finance the
working capital.

Financing for Growth

As at 31 March 2009, the unaudited net bank balances
was approximately HK$35,505,000. As such, we still
expect the net gearing ratio will stay at a level of below
30%. We are also following our house rule of using our
profit after tax and proceeds from the Rights Issue last year
to finance our capital expenditures:

B E IR
FRHBREE N

&%%ﬁ mEETEEREBBHRRE -

SEEBERESHNEZNER O ERAHN
BiZ BERELEEBETIRERT12% BExEDN%
BFIREEE 2 FH2RAL1K8147,441,0008
JC i EFE 2 FRERA161,536,0008 7T
BE

ERBEEERRESLEREZTMEUT

FRPEEARRES L REERITR69% 2
BEKFE (ZZEZ=L /TENEFE : 67%) (A
EE Y [ERDEE] WHERKE - BUBE
ZREBRRESYHE  BAT fﬁmﬁ‘* —f{E
BARBESBEERS -

REREHESES

BHE_ZZAF=ZA=1+—HI ' ®EFHH
R R 1T 4517 4935,505,000/8 7T » ZE it - {78
FFIRITEEL RN HIFENR30% 2 KFE
AR IR R A 2 RA W%Wé;ﬁﬁu&ﬁ?i
HEMENESIEAYREANERYNE

Financing Capex by Profit
LUEFMEREEEERECESHIR

HK$ million BEAT 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09
Profit After Tax BREERT 21 26 78 120 90 147 186 125 13 20
Depreciation/Amortisation & /i 32 39 34 32 34 38 50 54 60 57
Proceeds of Rights Issue & - - - - - - - - 122 -
53 65 112 152 124 185 236 179 195 77

Less: mE
CAPEX BT EERE 57 65 15 24 59 62 92 92 199 115
Dividend/Dividends

To Be Distributed RE/ BRERS 16 4 113 92+ 82 86 103* 47 4 9
(Deficit)/Surplus (BR)/ B (20) (42) (16) 36 (17) 37 41 40 8) (47)
(Net Bank Borrowings)/  (#iR{T1EE)/

Net Cash FHe (23) (51) 64 34 (6) (234) (112) (141) (52) 36
(Net Gearing Ratio/ (FPTEERR)/

Net Cash Ratio FEAH R %) (16%)  18% 9% (1%)  (56%) (21%)  (25%) (8%) 5%

* Including special dividend

* BRERRIBE
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Resources Available

Total bank borrowings is about HK$605,935,000. The
Directors are confident that the cash in hand and bank
balances of HK$641,440,000 with banking facilities of
HK$1,211,000,000, the Group is able to meet its current
operational and capital expenditure requirements and to
make strategic investments when opportunities arise.

Exchange Rate Exposure

All the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated either in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar or
RMB. As the exchange rates of the RMB against Hong
Kong dollar and US dollar rose continuously during the
relevant period, the Group was exposed to exchange
rate fluctuation risks and pressure on its production cost.
The Group will actively communicate with its customers
regarding raising its products’ selling prices to mitigate the
impact of the appreciation of the RMB on its business.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

2008 HKMA Best Annual Reports Award

The Group is delighted to receive “Citation for
Achievement in Corporate Governance Disclosure” in the
2008 Hong Kong Management Association Best Annual
Reports Award.

The Board believes that the Group’s annual reports and
other corporate literatures and the Company's website
are important platforms for communication between
the Company and its shareholders and stakeholders. The
Group thus devotes to “Heartfelt Dedication in All Details”
(theme of the 2005/06 annual report) and uses graphs,
simple language, and photos to aid communication. We
are delighted that our efforts are recognized.
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Tea-break with individual investors

We are glad that the “tea-break with individual investors”
has been successfully held for 13th times. Owing to
the sluggish market sentiment, particularly the lack of
interests among investors in the shares of small industrial
enterprises, the attendance rate was gradually decreased
over years. However, the Group adheres to the principles
of “openness, fairness and equality” and believes that all
investors (large or small) should have the same right to get
access to the Company’s information. With these principles
in mind and considering that the tea-break remains to
be an effective and efficient way for the Company to
communicate with its investors, the Group will continue
to organise tea-breaks with individual investors but
will reduce the number of tea-breaks to once annually
(provisionally to be held in July each year). In the event
that the investment environment improves and investors
become enthusiastic in participating in the tea-break
again, we will consider to gradually increase the number
of tea-breaks per year. The next tea-break is scheduled
on 31 July 2009 from 7 p.m. to 9 p.m. at Maxim’s Palace
Restaurant, G27 Luk Yeung Galleria, Tsuen Wan MTR
Station. As part of the Group's social responsibility efforts,
participants will be asked to donate at least HK$50 to
charity and the Group will match the donation up to a
maximum of HK$10,000. For those who donate HK$100
or more, the Group will request the relevant charity to
issue a receipt to the donor for tax deduction purpose.

Interested investors are invited to visit the Group’s website
at www.karrie.com.hk for more details. Application form
can be downloaded from the website or obtained by
calling 2411-0913 during office hours. Since seats are
limited, if the total number of application is more than the
seats available, the Group reserves the right to allocate the
admission tickets by lot. Only investors whose applications
are confirmed can join the function. Investors are advised
to grasp this opportunity to communicate directly with the
management of the Company.

BEEAREERNK
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

At the end of March 2009, the Group had approximately
5,650 employees (approximately 7,200 employees at
the end of March 2008). With a good reputation in the
local community, the Group has never encountered major
difficulties in recruiting employees.

Employee remuneration packages are determined in
accordance with prevailing market standards and the
employee’s performance and experience. The Group
will also grant bonuses to employees with outstanding
performance based on its own audited business
performance and the appraisal and reward system. Other
employee benefits include medical insurance, “Cooperative
Home & Car Ownership Scheme” and mandatory
provident fund.

Performance Based Incentives

The standard 13th month pay was abolished in 2002
and replaced by a performance based bonus system and
more objective performance assessment. Employees with
outstanding performance will receive bonus higher than
what they would have received before the new system was
implemented.

Dividend

The Board recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK1.5 cents (2007/08: Nil) per share to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of members of the
Company on 28 August 2009. Together with the interim
dividend, total dividend paid for this year amounted to
HK1.5 cents (2007/08: HKO.75 cent) per share. The final
dividend, subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on 28 August 2009, will be
payable to those entitled on 16 September 2009.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee made
up of one non-executive director and three independent
non-executive directors whose duties include reviewing
and supervising the Company’s financial reporting process
and internal control systems. The audit committee and the
management have reviewed the accounting principles and
major policies adopted by the Group and have discussed
the auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
with the external auditors during the year. The audit
committee has reviewed the consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2009.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their
invaluable support to the Group, and my fellow Directors,
managers and all staff for their considerable contributions
to the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the Executive Directors
are: Messrs. Ho Cheuk Fai, Kwok Wing Kin, Francis and
Lee Shu Ki; the Non-executive Director is: Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming; the Independent Non-executive Directors are:
Messrs. So Wai Chun, Chan Sui Sum, Raymond and Fong
Hoi Shing.

By Order of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 July 2009
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Special Characteristics of Our Business Model

A Hypothetical Example (Simplified

and generalized for easy

understanding)

1. Quotation Phase

— Around 12 to 15 months prior Quotation

to shipment, Customer A sends Phase
out Request for Quotation (RFQ) HERER
for a project to all “qualified
suppliers”.

2. Project Confirmation Phase '

— Customer A confirms the Project
placement of the project to us; Confirmation
— Customer A also provides Phase
shipment forecast for the next B
18 to 24 months, which is the
normal life cycle of a project.

3. Moulds and Prototype Making
Phase

- Acco.rd.mg.to Customer A's Moulds &
specification, we start to
. Prototype
perform the design works, .
make the moulds and Pakingfhase
_ BESUERR
prototype;
— This process would take around
6 to 12 months;
— Customer A would also
work with our purchasing
department on electronics
components and the list of
qualified suppliers for such
components.

4. Shipment Phase
— Customer A finalizes and revises Shipment Phase
the final shipment schedule; HERE
— We start manufacturing and
ship goods to just-in-time (JIT)

inventory warehouses. '

5. Sales Recognition and Payment Sales
— Customer A takes goods from Recognition &
JIT warehouses; Payment

— We get paid after the normal
credit period (generally 60
days).

Chairman’s Statement FERE
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Around 3 months
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Around 6 months
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APPENDIX 1 (Cont'd)

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model (Cont’d)

As in most cases the Group is the sole supplier for the
confirmed project and the related engineering works have
largely been completed, our problem is therefore one of
production, and not of marketing (2003/04 Annual Report,
page 26).
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APPENDIX 1 (Contd)

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model (Cont’d)

Some or all of the following characteristics apply to our
dealings with customers. Such characteristics have been
generalized/simplified to enable easy understanding:

1.

We deal with projects, which can take one year
from initial project confirmation, development and
engineering works to final shipment of goods. A
project’s shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24 months.

We do not normally have a large order backlog
because the customers’ adoption of either the just-
in-time inventory (JIT), rolling forecast, Electronic Data
Interexchange (EDI) or a combination of the above
methods.

Usually we are the sole supplier for a particular project
and therefore have the obligation to ship goods to
customers even if the sales volume is much higher
than the initial projection.

Most of our customers are not retailers, but
manufacturers themselves. Some of them even have
factories in China. Most of the electronic components
are either sourced through the customers or their
designated suppliers.

While the metal and plastic enclosures business
is an integral part of the computer and computer
peripheral sector, the industry thrives only in Taiwan
but not in Hong Kong.

Our customers are mostly multi-national companies.
Thus we frequently encounter such situation like
project originated in Japan, components assembled
in China while the final products shipped to Asia or
Europe. Our definition of breakdown by market is by
shipment destination rather than country of origin of
the customers.
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APPENDIX 2 My 8% —
Corporate Governance TEER
1. Establishment of an Executive Committee to improve 1. NLATZESMRARIE  £EAFE

decision-making efficiency. The day-to-day operations EERH-HEXEEABRE
of the Group are now in the hands of a group of

professional managers;

stability in this crucial period of a CAPEX cycle, the
Directors reserve the right of changing this guideline
without prior notice.

# The Company had discontinued its current practice
of quarterly reporting in January 2009. The
discontinuation of quarterly is one of the cost-cutting
measures of the Company.

2. Efforts to improve transparency 2. BOEESEHE

— disclosing in annual report detailed explanation NERPFAMRBEESRSE L H
of corporate strategies and the rationale behind; B7IES
—  meeting with individual shareholders annually — EBFETIRMK FPHREAKRESES
through a new “tea-break” program. [E1]

3. Clearly defined dividend policy of payment of 30%* 3. BREELEMNZ30%* A FBIERB/E
or more of the profit attributable to shareholders; REEZIREBBER ;
Clearly defined ROE objective of 20%; 4. BEWMETKREEZRHREBEZE20% ;
Clearly defined future turnover targets; 5. EWMEBTEBEANKIEERE
Announcing quarterly results; * 6. RNIFEHEE "
Increasing the number of audit committee meetings 7. BN EAHERZTESSZ 2 NEEETF4
to 4 times a year; N
Encouraging executive directors to hold at least 8. WEIBRHITEZHAE TP 500,000/ 5% =
500,000 shares of the Group; &5
Willingness to share wealth created with all 9 MEEFEREKEBERRE—RDZE
shareholders through dividend. Since 2000/01, the E;’; B-ZETE T-FEHE £
aggregated amount of the Group’s dividends paid/ K 2% Bk B3 S I8 B 49577,463,00058
payable is around HK$577,463,000 or around 83% 7_5 C BRAME R E £ 83% ©
of the shareholders’ fund.

Remarks: * Because of the importance of maintaining financial Hor RARKEEHNRETRECHEEEE - BitE

R RBEFRAB M E SRR E 5 S
ZHER o

fRZTTNAF A ARBCKRUEERITFE
%ZTZ%%E RIEFEZERMZER - RED
ERATRZ— -
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Dividend and Dividend Policy:

RERRKREBR :
An unbroken 12 years’ record of dividend payment
125 LA B A8 oK R B
The Group’s policy to distribute 30% or more of its profits attributable to shareholders as dividend

SEBEEREHEDRREMEBRZ0%HU LEBERS

All dividend paid shown below is in HK cents per share

TIEBRIKE ZREZBIGE

Interim Final Special Dividend
Interim Final Subtotal Special Special Subtotal Total Payout Ratio
b RE HRIRE KRE

H R RE P OBRRE  BRRE NEF a5t TR R
(Excluding)* (Including)*
(FEEER)* (BEER)*
1997/98 Nil £ 1.00 1.00 Nil Nil £& Nil & 1.00 13%  N/A TER
1998/99 2.00 2.00 4.00 Nil £ Nil & Nil & 4.00 58%  N/A TNEA
1999/00 2.20 2.20 4.40 Nil £ Nil £ Nil & 4.40 77%  N/A TEf
2000/01 1.10 3.80 4.90 Nil £ 6.20 6.20 11.10 69% 156%
2001/02 5.00 5.90 10.90 5.00 14.10 19.10 30.00 50% 138%
2002/03 8.00 11.00 19.00 Nil & 5.00 5.00 24.00 60% 75%
2003/04 8.00 12.00 20.00 Nil £ Nil & Nil & 20.00 87%  N/A T@EH
2004/05 8.50 12.50 21.00 Nil £ Nil £ Nil & 21.00 58%  N/A TEMA
2005/06 9.00 13.00 22.00 Nil £ 3.00 3.00 25.00 48% 55%
2006/07 8.50 3.00 11.50 Nil £ Nil & Nil £ 11.50 38% N/A TER
2007/08 0.75 Nil £ 0.75 Nil £ Nil £ Nil £ 0.75 27%  N/ATEA
2008/09 Nil & 1.50 1.50 Nil & Nil £& Nil & 1.50 39%  N/A TNEH

Remarks:  * Excluding special dividend #Including special dividend

et

*TBERRIBE

MR RIRE
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APPENDIX 4 Ffit 8% Y

Inventory & Debtor Turnover

FERERIREEY

No. of days H &&
100

——A—— Inventory Turnover 17 &A% 5
-~ o~ - Debtor Turnover JEUR IR 1E 55 Hf

90 L

80 L

70 L

60 L

50 L

40 L

30 I I I I I I I I I J
99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09

(no. of days) (H£) 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09

Inventory Turnover

FEIBEH 96 67 48 39 42 72 39 45 37 36
Debtor Turnover

JE R R 3 #5 HA 52 65 64 56 63 80 61 67 56 62
Inventory turnover (Base on year end stock value/Cost of Sales) x 365 days GEBRHEH (UFREEEHEMKR) x 365H

Debtor turnover (Base on year end debtors/Turnover) x 365 days FEUIR A HA (DAFALEIIR & %%8) x 3650

Inventory Turnover Days 7 & B

(no. of days) (H#0) 07/08 08/09  Change #18%
Raw Materials E#} 18 19 +6%
WIP F 85 5 6 +20%
Finished Goods Z4f% i 14 11 21%

Total A5t 37 36 -3%
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APPENDIX 5 Bt % B
Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin
ENREMARNREZE
(%) - -
30 —A— Gross Profit Margin =~ £ 512 (%)
-m- Net Profit Margin ~ 45F2& (%)
25 L
20 L
15 L
10 L
0O ---{ _
5 | e = " T
0---g -O.
0 I I I I I I I " ---10 ]
99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09
(%) 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09
Gross Profit Margin 24.8 17.0 19.4 15.0 13.7 12.4 10.7 9.1 6.4 7.2
EFI%
Net Profit Margin 3.1 2.9 6.8 6.9 5.3 5.7 5.2 3.8 0.5 0.8
AR
HK$(million) ( B#E7T)
Turnover/Revenue 662 893 1,156 1,738 1,693 2,563 3,597* 3,328* 2,803* 2,464*
BERE WA
Profit for the year 21 26 78 120 90 147 186 125 13 20
INF 5 A
* Revenue = Turnover + Other gains
KA = E¥EHE+ Hiblm
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APPENDIX 6

FAQ

BUSINESS

What is so special about Karrie's business model?

- Normally we deal with projects, which
can take one year from initial project
confirmation, development and engineering
works to final shipment of goods. A project
shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24 months.

- Usually we are the only vendor for a
particular project confirmed. Combined with
the 18 to 24 months shipment cycle, we are
bestowed with relatively long-term business
visibility. (2004/05 Annual Report, page 60)

Would rising cost of raw material affect the
performance of the Group?

Under the Group’s versatile ‘Total Transparent Cost
Plus Pricing Mechanism’ most of the raw materials
other than electro-galvanized steel plates are
sourced through the customers or through suppliers
designated by the customers. A rise in raw material
price (other than steel) has only a marginal impact
on the bottom line. (2004/05 Annual Report, page
18)

Experts say RMB is going to appreciate more in
the coming two years. What is the impact on the
Group?

- RMB payments represents about 15% of the
total cost of sales.

- As most of our competitors are also based
in China and on the basis that customers
stick to their present purchasing practice,
in theory we could raise price to cover the
increase in cost over the time.

To whom do Karrie sell its products?
Our products, including computer server casings,

laser printers, magnetic tape drive, are mainly sold
to multi-national customers.
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APPENDIX 6 (Contd)
CAPEX, DIVIDEND AND FINANCE

5. Are you worried about a high level of bank
borrowings?

The Group’s shareholders fund is much
higher than the non-current assets meaning
that the Group is financing its non-current
assets through stable shareholders’ fund
rather than bank borrowings;

Any increase in net bank borrowings could
therefore be attributed to the increased
working capital requirement due to an
increase in turnover. This is a positive news
but not the otherwise.

6. What is the status of new Yu Quan and
Yi Xing Plants?

The site area of Yu Quan Plant is
approximately 240,000 sq. m. as compared
to the combined site area of 89,000 sq. m.
of the existing Yan Tien Plant and Fenggang
Plant;

We will build Yu Quan Plants in various
phases depending on the economic
conditions. Phase | has launched production
in October 2006;

Phase Il of Yu Quan Plant was completed
by end of 2008. Some factory building has
already started mass production;

It is expected that Phase Ill of Yu Quan Plant
to be completed by the end of 2010;

The construction of Phase | of Yi Xing Plant
has commenced. The trial run is expected in
the 4th quarter of 2009.

7. Is Karrie going to change its dividend policy because
of the capex and working capital requirements?

Our dividend policy is to pay out 30%*
or more of the profit attributable to
shareholders;

In 2008/09, we paid out a total of HK1.5
cents as dividend (payout ratio: 39%),
making the 12th year of unbroken dividend
payment record,;

f s < (&)
EEEERE  RERMBIE

5.

*Remarks:

Because of the importance of maintaining financial

stability in this crucial period of a CAPEX cycle, the
Directors reserve the right of changing this guideline

without prior notice.

) .
*at
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e RERBEEZ[FFRBEE]
EURENBIRESAIFH - M
FERHRITEE
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Al?
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JoK
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APPENDIX 6 (Cont'd)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHERS

8. Should you worry about the corporate governance
standard of Karrie?

- For three consecutive years from 2003-2005,
fund managers and research analysts have
voted Karrie as one of the best-managed
companies in Hong Kong in the Asiamoney
Polls. In the 2004 Poll, Karrie was voted as the
second best in Corporate Governance in Hong
Kong. In 2005 Karrie was voted as the best
small cap in the same poll;

- We have made detailed explanation of
corporate strategies and the rationale behind
in our annual reports and our effort was
recognised by Hong Kong Management
Association and awarded with “Honorable
Mentions” in 2006 and 2007 Best Annual
Report Award, also being awarded with 2007
IR Magazine Award “Best Annual Report
and Other Corporate Literature” Award.
In 2008, we had been awarded “Citation
for Achievement in Corporate Governance
Disclosure” in the 2008 Hong Kong
Management Association Best Annual Reports
Award;

- Since 2001 the day-to-day operation of
Karrie has been in the hands of a group of
professional managers. The management team
is not related to the controlling shareholder;

- Karrie is also willing to share with shareholders
the wealth created through distribution of
dividend. Since 2000/01, the aggregated
amount of the Group’s dividends paid/payable
is around HK$577,463,000 or around 83% of
the shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2009;

- To increase its transparency, Karrie

a. arranges “tea-breaks” with individual
shareholders annually; and

b. publishes an easy-to-read annual reports
with graphs, tables and other useful
information.

9. Who are the major shareholders?

- As at 30 June 2009, the Ho's family/New Sense
Enterprises Limited held around 56% of the
issued share capital of the Company.
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APPENDIX 7 M5+
c P{ofi}wattrri]bLliéable
apex o shareholders
EAMREL _Capex 5L B8 F
HK$'000 EEERE HK$'000
FET AT
200,000 - 200,000
160,000 4 160,000
120,000 - 120,000
80,000 2 1 80,000
40,000 - 40,000
0 1B 0
97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 | 08/09 09/10*
_— gﬁagg‘%[;%ﬁi 67,604 | 76,176 | 56,595 | 65,034 | 14,675 | 24,488 | 58,842 | 62,236 | 92,059 | 91,625 |198,529 | 114,641 | 70,000
—o—  Profit attributable
to shareholders 27,865 | 25,162 | 20,616 | 26,368 | 78,370 | 119,808 | 90,440 |146,573 | 186,379 | 124,928 | 13,148 | 20,433 ?
&yl
* Budget only Phase 1: Phase 2: Phase 3: Phase 4: Phase 5: Phase 6: Phase 7:
* JBE Asian Restructuring, investment Rapid growth Consolid- Rapid growth Consolid- Restructuring, investment
financial and market repositioning ation ation in fixed assets and
crisis market repositioning
BME BB BHE ZhMER: | BARE EALIEE
THER | 2uEMm  REARTSENER mEE EEH g3 BEH BB - BTEE
AR RERMISEHELL
APPENDIX 8 B %\
(% Group’s Target ROE at 20% or above
40 - FECZRREREREEFEEENR20%H U L
35.3 353
35+
30 +
2
S %R 25 -
g g
5 @ 20r
Q T
S & 151
& X
10
5 L
0 ]
99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09
HKS$ (m)
BEHE 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09
Profit after Tax BREL &S 21 26 78 120 90 147 186 125 13 20
Shareholders’ Equity &SRS 339 356 347 364 375 416 527 557 676 741
Return on BRRER
Equity (%) B3R 2 (%) 6.2 7.3 225 33.0 24.0 35.3 353 22.4 1.9 2.7
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Karrie on Perpetual Motion:

Persistence
Consistence

Continuance

INTRODUCTION

It is the first “Sustainability Report” independently
published by Karrie Group that outlines its work for and
commitment to the fulfillment of social responsibilities.
The Company realizes that corporate mission is certainly to
maximize the shareholders’ interests and the performance
of social responsibilities incurs more cost on an enterprise
in the short term inevitably. However, the Company is of
the view that an enterprise, as a corporate citizen, can
never neglect the interests of other stakeholders (especially
the shareholders, employees and clients). It is therefore
necessary to take good care of the related parties’ benefits
without prejudice to those of the shareholders. What are
taken from the society should be used in the interests of
the same. To ensure a long-term sustainable development,
an enterprise must keep on growing together with the
community harmoniously.

In the long run, playing the role of good corporate citizen
can definitely help the Company to improve goodwill,
reduce cost, broaden vision for decision-making and
strengthen capability of corporate governance. Also,
the Company believes that the fulfillment of social
responsibilities may not necessarily conflict with the
shareholders’ interests. For instance, the implementation
of energy-saving policy for reduction in carbon emission
can not only protect the environment, but reduce the cost
as well. This can complement each other to increase the
shareholders’ values eventually.

“Karrie on Perpetual Motion” has always been our main
principle. “Rome was not built in one day”. Karrie Group
has survived a lot of difficulties before its current scale
is developed. It was not built within a short time, and
remains in continued development by persistent effort.
Everybody must have the same objective, work with
perseverance and recognize the significance of sustainable
development of the Group. Karrie Group, just like a large
family, requires all of us to put continuous effort to “build
Karrie (our home) hand in hand”. Our hard work is akin
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to a small stream of water which, however small it seems,
can penetrate hard rocks with passage of time. Thus, the
sustainable development, as part of the value chain, can
create value together with other parts to enhance the
Company’s competitiveness. In addition to pursuit of the
stable business development, the Company has always
been committed to its corporate citizenship as a major
mission to be accomplished by six ways as follows:

Good mental and physical health
Concerted effort for Karrie

Contribution to community development
Adherence to integrity

Staff training

Environmental protection

Good mental and physical health

Staff is a valuable asset of Karrie Group, and the
physical and mental health of each employee is
particularly important. Therefore, the Company
organized a program named “Karrie Healthy
Month” to make its staff understand the
importance of physical and mental health and to
help them relieve pressure.

The Karrie Healthy Month includes a number of
activities held for the staff. “Stair Climbing Action”
was to encourage stair climbing instead of taking
lifts for the sake of physical health. The provision
of information on food, emotion, medicine and
mental health enabled the staff to realize the
keys to physical and mental health easier. The
competition of trivial knowledge added fun to
the staff's learning of the knowledge of food and
psychological health. A lecture by the invited clinical
psychologist on the topic of “Positive Psychology”
provided an opportunity for the staff to share
experience with the expert through which they
could understand the goal and value of life and
enhance their quality of life.

Furthermore, the Company emphasizes more on
our staff’s spiritual life, and adheres to the spirit of
“work-life balance” as usual. It believes that the
staff should try to make an active life, reinforce
the positive emotion, look for the right objective
of life, strengthen the psychological quality, and
improve the ability to prevent mental and emotional
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Do you know?

el REEER R BEANERRN ?
Question 1: Why have we never seen the eel
sashimi?

A [EMIEE ] GERE
“Positive Psychology” lecture

FIRE2 : WSk Rt EE oK ?
Question 2: Why do we need to add brine
when eating pineapple?

I3 : HER YRR °
Question 3: What kind of food can help one to
sober up?

R84 : =t FERHR A] N A] LARZ 00 2
Question 4: Can we eat tomatoes on an empty
stomach?

fRES « ATERLRMEE RKE?
Question 5: Why some kinds of food are
negative calorie food?

A TEBTH
Stair Climbing Action

(BERERESTH)
(Answer refer to P.57)

A BEEFASTR
Notice board on health issue
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problems. In this way, the staff can upgrade the
working efficiency, and enjoy a more fruitful life
at the same time. The Company also joined the
“"Embracing Challenges Enriching Lives” campaign,
hosted by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service,
to promote the positive messages of “Think
Positively, Care for Family and Live Healthily”. In the
participation, we attended the launch ceremony
of the “Embracing Challenges Enriching Lives —
Everybody Restarts from Heart” Movement and
carried out the game stall in “Embracing Challenges
Enriching Lives” Carnival in collaboration with the
volunteers of The Yuen Yuen Institute.

In Mainland China, the Company holds periodically
the lectures on the health knowledge, including
summer epidemic diseases, daily healthcare
knowledge seminars and voluntary consultation
activities.

Concerted effort for Karrie

The Company understands that staff support is one
of the keys to its success and strives to develop a
team spirit. We try to promote the communication
between our staff and their families in order to
build up harmonious families with concerted effort.
The Company hosted the most look-alike election
of “Colleague, Son/Daughter, Father/Mother”, and
its staff were also encouraged to bring along their
family members to participate in visits and Walk
for Millions and attend the annual dinner of the
Company.

The “Karrie Club” has been set up in Mainland
China to provide staff members with a venue
to relax and socialize. It serves the purposes
of enriching employees’ time after work and
increasing their sense of belonging to the Group.
The "Committee on the Concerns for the Staff”
holds regular informal discussions with new
employees to give our care for them and hasten
their adaptation to the work environment. The
Company also organized various festive variety
shows and recreational and cultural activities in the
PRC. Furthermore, to enable the staff to carry out
various recreational activities even in rainy day, the
Company has especially constructed an indoor staff
recreational centre with an area of over 2,800 sq.m.
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The Company understands that its employees need
to cultivate their children to the utmost. Since last
year when our summer internship program for
staff's children was launched, the Company has
provided them with opportunities to do intern work
in various departments during summer holiday,
so that they can know more about the operation
of commercial organizations and have access to
working experience. It also assists them in thinking
over a way for their studies and career in future.

Good employment relationship is so important that
the Company places great emphasis on the internal
two-way communication. The Company keeps the
staff informed of business orientation, strategy,
policy and employment by means of intranet, and
encourages them to express opinions through this
platform. Meanwhile, it releases the information
about internal activities by producing the internal
publication of “Karrie Monthly (3 % A TI)" and
“Newsletter on Social Responsibility”.
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The Group has long been stressing industrial safety.
Besides the implementation of targeted training
and the strengthened investigation and punishment
for violation, it has increased the investment
in safety equipment year after year in order to
improve the working environment and avoid the
accidents. The relevant measures marked significant
results. For example, the incidence of work injuries
has continued to decline for several consecutive
years and is controlled down to a minimum while
the Group maintains itself in the category of no
serious work injury in the work-related impairment
assessment.

Contribution to community development

The Company keeps an eye on the community’s
needs, and participates in and supports social
activities in a bid to grow along with the
community. In May 2005, the Company formed
a volunteer group for charitable works to assist
in various donation and voluntary activities
conducted by the Company from time to time,
including the charity sale, visit to the elderly, the
New Territories Walk for Millions, Chinese New
Year Food Re-donation Scheme, etc. The Company
also participated in the “Show Our Love on Senior
Citizens" Day” movement. In order to express our
gratitude to the elderly, the volunteers learnt to
play magic and performed during the visits to the
elderly. All the aforesaid activities were held to
show our respect to the elderly and aid the poor
for helping social vulnerable groups. The Company
also encouraged the staff to take part in activities
of caring for community. Since 2008, in order
to reward the staff's sacrifice of private time to
participate in social welfare activities, the Company
has granted the volunteer holiday to encourage
more staff to join the voluntary work and the
voluntary working hours may mount up year after
year. The Company has been awarded the “Caring
Company” logo by The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service for four consecutive years from 2005
to recognize the Company’s contributions to the
community.
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A ETED
Medical health check for staff

A BEREMIE2005-09
Caring Company 2005-09

RNERERD A
Visiting the elderly in PRC

A —XAPUELIEES
Family most look-alike competition

A BENTERES)
Tree planting in PRC

A BERETEE
Playing games with the elderly
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A BHEXRERERS
Birthday Party at HHCKLA Buddhist
Po Kwong School

A RESHETT
Walk for Millions

A TR E
Learnt to play magic

A HINEE - AUMNERERBRORAHEERY
B2TE
Fire Drill — Effective risk management is the key
element of corporate sustainable growth.
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A SEROFRRRNOASZERNEIGE
BRAGEEIAS, BETMNERILER
ARBETERAN BB REE
The program of training university students
in the PRC first launched five years ago
by the Group has been highly effective in

training talented staff for enterprises. ATV A SR |kEhe
interviewed certain university students on Wengyuan County Xianhe Secondary School

their learning and lives in the PRC.
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Another significant event was that the Company
sponsored, for two consecutive years, sportswear
and running shoes to the mildly mentally
handicapped students of HHCKLA Buddhist Po
Kwong School to participate in the 10km race in
the “Standard Chartered Hong Kong International
Marathon”, with an aim of training the students’
willpower and endurance. This year, the Company
even subsidized the food for and participated in
their birthday parties in that school.

In Mainland China, from 2000 onwards, the
Company has motivated all staff to raise fund for
establishing primary schools under Project Hope,
and at the same time carried out matching donation
activities. We made donation for establishing two
schools and one classroom in Guangdong Province
one after another, such as “Dongguan Karrie
Primary School of Hope (3 5 5 #| & £ /N )",
“Guangxi Feng Shan County Primary School (E7G
Bl 1L % 32 7 /)N )" and “Fenggang Town Centre
Primary School — Karrie Classroom (BlE$EA )N
B — = FZZE)". Dr. Ho Cheuk Fai, our chairman,
also privately donated to the establishment of two
schools, namely, “Dailing Cheuk Fai Primary School
of Hope (K 2& 218 % £ /N2)" and “Wengyuan
County Xianhe Secondary School (5 /& % il #
1 2" Besides, the Company hosted a number
of activities including a trip to Dongguan Child
Welfare Centre to comfort the children and visits to
residential centres for the elderly.

Adherence to integrity

Honesty, fairness and incorruptibility are the core
values of the Group. Far be it from the Group
to permit the staff to take advantage of their
authorities for personal interests. All the staff
are required to treat suppliers and processing
contractors fair. It is because the illegal business
practices may not only lead to the Company’s
financial loss, but create negative effects upon the
Company'’s goodwill as well.

(v)
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As such, all staff shall strictly comply with the
“Regulations and Guidelines for Staff’s Acceptance
of Benefits”. The Company has issued a letter of
"Peers’ Belief (& FM)” to each of its suppliers
and processing contractors so as to encourage them
as partners to report any information about unfair
and dishonest transactions on the online platform.
Each supplier is even required to fill in the special
supplier questionnaire.

The Company has also held seminars on integrity
management in collaboration with the Independent
Commission Against Corruption to help the staff
(especially the frontline staff) know more about the
importance of integrity and the relevant regulatory
laws.

Staff Training

In Hong Kong and Mainland China, the Company
has held more than 100 training programs in
aggregate. Basically they can be categorized
into the middle and high level management, site
management and enhancement of leadership for
frontline staff. The programs covered such aspects
as language, production technology, occupational
safety, ISO and quality management, with the
focus on improving the production technology and
management skills as well as establishing a talent
pool for the Group. The major courses are listed as
follows:

Advancement of production technology:

The program mainly includes the courses of
advancement of production technology conducted
by the Plastics and Tooling Technology Development
Centre of the Vocational Training Council and
various training institutions. In August 2008, the
Company also entered into a contract with the
Chengdu University of Electronic Science and
Technology to set up a joint laboratory for the
research and development of technology.

(v)
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e —
R B A EBRZEELMER  Signing ceremony for the joint laboratory

Improvement in management skills:

(@  The training workshop of corporate
performance management teaches the
concepts and functions of performance
management, and set a target-based long-
term strategy.

(b) Introduction to Enneagram: It is provided
to managers at all levels to improve their
skills of communication with different staff
members, as well as their interpersonal
relationship.

(c) Corporate reform: It analyzes the needs of
corporate reform and how to implement
effective reform methods, so as to cope with
the ever-changing business environment.

Apart from various courses, the Company has
launched a number of staff training programs to
maintain adequate talents and develop the second
echelon, which will contribute to the Company’s
business development.

T BRI

(@) CEEMERFRIIIEY @ RZHE
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“University Graduate Training Scheme” — This
scheme has been carried out for several years to
provide the university graduates of China and Hong
Kong with the progressive and comprehensive on-
the-job training. Batches of trainees have taken the
actual positions, which has marked a good result
of the Group’s endeavour to nurture combined-
type talents, and are receiving practical training in
the plants. Since 2004, the Company has already
arranged different placement programs for, among
others, project engineers and merchandisers.

“Short-term Placement Program” — Since
2006, the Short-term Placement Program has
been provided by the Company for the university
students of Hong Kong. In addition, the Company
launched the Hong Kong Student Mainland
Placement Program in 2007, and introduced the
summer internship program for staff’s children in
2008.

We will continue to enhance the training standards
by, for example, introducing a more in-depth
training for the management, which can help
them lead the Group to a brighter future. Besides,
the technological standard of the Group's core
business will be upgraded incessantly through
cooperation with different professional skill training
institutions, in order that the Group can maintain
its competitiveness and meet the clients’ needs.
Moreover, the Group has established an appraisal
system for promotion of management personnel to
ensure a better quality of the management of the
Group and keep them abreast of the times.

Environmental Protection

To strengthen the staff's awareness of
environmental protection, the Company has held
the Tree Plantation Day at Kadoorie Farm for four
consecutive years from 2005. In this year, the
Company has organized the “Green Journey 2009”
to enable the staff and their families to acquire the
organic farming knowledge and continue the Tree
Plantation Day of the previous year. With an aim to
reducing consumption, the Company also carries
on such measures as recycling of toner cartridges,
promotion of paperless office and use of energy-
saving light tubes.

(vn)
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The Company has obtained the 1SO14001
Environmental Management System Certification
since 2001. It has advocated the management of
three kinds of wastes (i.e. exhaust gas, waste water
and waste residue), initiated the clean production,
abided by environmental laws and raised the staff’s
awareness in environmental protection. Meanwhile,
the Company operates in line with the related
international environmental regulations such as
RoHS, REACH, WEEE, JCPSSI and Montreal Protocol,
so that the whole process from design, procurement
to production can achieve the objective of
environmental protection.

The Company has further participated in the
Cleaner Production Partnership Programme of the
Hong Kong Productivity Council, the Environmental
Protection Department of Hong Kong and the
Economic and Trade Commission of Guangdong
Province.

The Company also called on approximately 200
volunteers in Mainland China to carry out voluntary
tree plantation campaign and organized the activity
of “Chengkungling Hiking for Staff's Children” to
launch the green action.

CONCLUSION AND APPRECIATION

Sustainable development, like a piece in a tangram, is
an integral part of Karrie's business model. It emphasizes
that long-term development must be a basic principle
for a business plan. An enterprise should build a lasting
relationship with all partners, and keep on pursuing the
best interests for shareholders and partners. Finally, the
management would like to thank the volunteer group for
charitable works and all active participants for their selfless
contributions.
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QUESTION AND ANSWER BERER

Question 1: EIRE1 :
Why have we never seen the eel sashimi? AEEBERARBRBANERAR?

 AAEASANMMETEANEESAGEM |
HME TR ERP B - |

It is because the blood of live eel contains toxic substances :
¢ such as ichthyotoxicum, so that eating such sashimi will
cause poisoning symptoms. :

Question 2: RIRE2 :

Why do we need to add brine when eating pineapple?

lZE R T EE K ?

 EAEEMRMESEYEMES  BERC. |
RIS T IR S A B K TR AT
B R BEBEANE - |

It is because the pulp of pineapple contains rich organic
¢ acids such as sugar, vitamin C, citric acid and malic acid.
© When you eat it without brine, you may feel your mouth
tingled. :

Question 3: EIRE3 :
What kind of food can help one to sober up? ftEERYIRERE ?

¢ Fruits contain organic acid and the main ingredient of CKRESHME MBAENEIERIRLE -
© wine is ethanol. Organic acids can interact with ethanol | @ BB AL ZEEREERAMAMAEREDE - #
© to form ester substances, thereby attaining the purpose of | | MEZIfRER B #Y °
¢ sobering up. P

Question 4: ERES :
Can we eat tomatoes on an empty stomach? ZE ft F WY BHR AT R AT AR B Al ?

CEWMPEBEABNRYE  REUARNBBST
MR RIBIRR S o 1 T AT B KB RIBT - B
| BB AERRMR - :

: Tomatoes contain abundant soluble astringent such as pectin,
pectic substance (&) and persimmon tannin phenol (ffif2
¢ D). Eating in such way may cause bellyache and vomit, or
¢ even cause hypovolaemic shock. :

fERES :
ATEELRYREFRE?
i Negative calorie food does exist. During the food :
- digestion, we depend on burning fats to gain energy at .
the same time. It is proved by experiment that when the : KESERENBEIKMTEENRE - gt
i content of calorie is even lower than the required energy | | H[B] REEMNBER ML KREIBEFE |
¢ for digestion, the “negative” calorie case can be found. | | @ °
Therefore, fruits are perfect for slimming the body figure. :

Question 5:
Why some kinds of food are negative calorie food?

FEEMERMESEE  CEREH B
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The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders
of the Company (the "Shareholders") and to enhance
corporate value and accountability.

For the year ended 31 March 2009 (the “Year”),
the Group has applied the principles of the recently
promulgated Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and complied
with the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the
CG Code, save for deviation from Code Provisions A.2.1,
A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the CG Code. This report describes our
Group’s corporate governance practices and explains the
said deviations from the CG Code.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. The Board of Directors

1.1 As at 31 March 2009, the Board consisted of
seven Directors, comprising Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
Kwok Wing Kin, Francis (Deputy Chairman
and Chief Operating Officer) and Mr. Lee
Shu Ki as executive Directors; Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming as a non-executive Director and Mr.
So Wai Chun, Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
and Mr. Fong Hoi Shing as the independent
non-executive Directors. The Board has the
collective responsibility for the leadership
and promotion of the success of the Group’s
business by directing and supervising the
Group's affairs.
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The Board is committed to the Group’s
objectives of enhancing the Shareholders’
value and provision of superior products and
services. The Board is collectively responsible
for formulating the overall objective and
strategy of the Group; monitors and
evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the standard
of corporate governance of the Group. It
also makes decisions on matters such as
approving the annual results, interim and
quarterly results, connected transactions,
appointment and re-appointment of
Directors, declaring dividends and adopting
accounting policies. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing business strategies and
management of the daily operations of the
Group’s businesses to the management.

The Board conducts regular scheduled
meetings on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc
meetings are convened when circumstances
require.

The Board had met five times for the Year
and considered, reviewed and approved the
Group's annual results for the year ended 31
March 2008, quarterly and interim results of
the Group for the Year.

1.2

1.3
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1.4

The attendance records of Board meetings

held during the Year are set out below:

Attendance of individual Directors at

Board meetings during the Year

NTRAFESE

FEEMHFEL

FEEESEERERNESNHE
=

No. of attendance/

No. of meetings  Attendance rates

HERE SRR i fE =
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai Bfch e 5/5 100%
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis Pk ER A A 5/5 100%
Mr. Lee Shu Ki RIS E 5/5 100%
Non-executive Director HHITEFE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming {a] 2R 5 A 5/5 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors ¥ FF#77& &
Mr. So Wai Chun ERERESE 5/5 100%
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond FRImaR L& 5/5 100%
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing apisEbitas 5/5 100%
Average attendance rate FIGHER 100%

To maximize the effectiveness of the Board
and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the
Board has established an audit committee
and a remuneration committee. Detailed
descriptions of each of these committees
are set out below. All of these committees
adopt, as far as practicable, the principles,
procedures and arrangements of the Board in
relation to the scheduling and proceeding of
meetings, notice of meetings and inclusion
of agenda items, records and availability of
minutes.

14 ARSESSUEUNTEESS
MEBBLHERENER  EFg
ERVBEZLZEGRTNEZES -
TXHEYNEEZES 2FMHEA - &
ELEeRERAIITERENES
CEBERTERRBR NS HHET
R eRBEERFARIEEE
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Fr 228k ©
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2. Board Composition

2.1

2.2

As at 31 March 2009, the Board comprises
seven Directors: three executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming, the non-executive Director, is
the younger brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
The Board has received annual confirmations
of independence in writing from each of
the independent non-executive Directors
and believed that all the independent
non-executive Directors met the guidelines
for assessment of independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the
existing Directors are considered appropriate
so as to effectively lead, supervise and
manage the Group, taking into account the
scope and nature of the operations. The
Directors have a mix of core competencies
in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, production
and quality control techniques, supply
chain management, industry knowledge
and marketing strategies. Details of the
experience and qualifications of Directors
and Senior Management are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this Annual Report.

2.2
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3. Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors
3.1 At each annual general meeting of the

3.2

3.3

Company (“AGM"), one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office
by rotation. The Directors, since his last
election or appointment who has been the
longest in office shall retire and be eligible
for re-election at the AGM. The Chairman
and/or the Managing Director of the Group
shall not, when holding such office, be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken
into account in determining the number
of Directors to retire in each year. With the
introduction of the CG Code and to comply
with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
of the Group will voluntarily retire at the
AGM at least once every three years.

As at 31 March 2009, non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming)
including the independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a fixed term not
exceeding three years and all non-executive
Directors are subject to the requirements
of retirement by rotation and re-election by
Shareholders at the AGM in accordance with
the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”).

The names and biographical details of
the Directors who will offer themselves
for election or re-election at the forth
coming AGM are set out in the circular to
Shareholders to assist Shareholders in making
an informed decision on their elections.

3.

EENERE - EBRER

3.1

3.2

3.3
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3.4  Since the whole Board participates in the
appointment of new Directors, the Company
does not establish a nomination committee.
In evaluating whether an appointee is
suitable to act as a Director, the Board
will consider the experience and skills of
the appointee; as well as personal ethics,
integrity and the willingness to commit
time in the affairs of the Group. Where the
appointee is appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the Board will also
consider his/her independence. During
the Year, the Board had also reviewed and
made recommendations in respect of the
re-appointments of retiring Directors, which
were approved by the Shareholders at the
last AGM.

Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance. Throughout the year
ended 31 March 2009, the Company had applied
the principles and complied with the requirements
set out in the CG Code in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, except the
following:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company
does not segregate the roles of its Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr.
Ho") currently holds both positions.
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Being the founder of the Group, Mr. Ho has
substantial experience in the manufacturing
industry. At the same time, Mr. Ho has the
appropriate skills and business acumen which are
the pre-requisites for assuming the role of the Chief
Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting
the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer in the same person would provide
the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allows the Group to be more effective and
efficient in developing long-term business strategies
and execution of business plans. The Board
considers that there is no need to segregate the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Ho shall continue in his dual
capacity as the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

According to Code Provision A.4.1, Non-executive
Director should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming was
re-designated as Non-executive Director on 1 June
2007 without a specific term but Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming is subject to retirement by rotation according
to the Bye-laws of the Company. Moreover, Code
Provision A.4.2 stipulated that every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

According to the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being or, if their number is not 3 or a
multiple of 3, the number nearest to one-third but
not greater than one-third shall retire from office
provided that notwithstanding anything in the
Company’s bye-laws, the Chairman of the Directors
and/or the Managing Director of the Company
shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in
determining the number of Directors to retire in
each year. Furthermore, any Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
should hold office only until the next following
AGM and would then be eligible for re-election.
With the introduction of the CG Code and to
comply with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the
Group will voluntarily retire at the annual general
meeting of the Company at least once every
three years. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure good
corporate governance of the Company.
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The Company will continue to review its practices from
time to time to achieve high standard of corporate

governance.

B. BOARD COMMITTEE

1. Remuneration Committee (“RC")

1.1

1.2

The Board has established the RC in June
2005 with terms of reference, comprising
a majority of independent non-executive
Directors, which meets at least once a year. It
is chaired by Mr. So Wai Chun and comprises
two other members, namely Mr. Chan Sui
Sum, Raymond and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.
All RC members, with the exception of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
are independent non-executive Directors.
The quorum necessary for the transaction of
business by the RC is two.

The principal responsibilities of RC are to
formulate remuneration policy of the Group,
review and make recommendations to
the Board in respect of the remuneration
policy and to determine the remuneration
of the executive Directors and the senior
management.

The RC met twice during the Year with an
attendance rate of 100% and reviewed its
terms of reference, the remuneration policy
of the Group and the remuneration packages
of Directors and senior management staff.

2. Audit Committee (“AC")

2.1

The AC's membership, with the exception of
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
comprised the independent non-executive
Directors as at 31 March 2009:

Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing; and

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming

The Board is of the opinion that members
of the AC have sufficient accounting
and financial management expertise or
experience to discharge their duties.
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2.2

2.3

The operations of the AC are regulated by
its terms of reference. The main duties of the
AC include:

o to review and supervise the Group's
financial reporting process including
the review of quarterly, interim and
annual results of the Group;

o to review the external auditors’
appointment, remuneration and any
matters relating to resignation or
termination;

o to examine the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control which
involves regular review in various
corporate structures and business
process; and

o to realize corporate objective and
strategy by taking into account the
potential risk and the nature of
its urgency in order to ensure the
effectiveness of the Group’s business
operations. The scope of such
reviews includes finance, operations,
regulatory compliance and risk
management.

The AC met three times during the Year with
an attendance rate of 100% and reviewed
the quarterly, interim results and the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2008. The AC had also reviewed the
Group’s audited annual results of the Year.
The Company Secretary of the Company
keeps all minutes of the AC.

C. SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

1.1

The Company has adopted a Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the
Group (the “Company’s Model Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
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Having made specific enquiries to all
Directors, they have confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out
in both the Company’s Model Code and the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2009.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

1.1

The Board acknowledges its responsibility
for preparing the Group’s accounts which
gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group
on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumption or qualification as necessary.
In preparing the accounts for the Year, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.

The management provides explanation and
information to the Board as to enable the
Board to make informed assessments of the
financial and other information put before
the Board for approval.

The Board endeavours to ensure the making
of balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s position and
prospects and extending the coverage
of such information to include annual,
interim and quarterly reports, price-sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures
as required under the Listing Rules, reports
to regulators as well as any information
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of
internal controls and is committed to managing
business risks and maintaining sound and
effective internal control system to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.
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During the Year, the Internal Audit Department
under the supervision of the Board and the
Audit Committee, has reviewed and reported
on the adequacy of effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group, covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management
control functions.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no
material mis-statement or loss and to manage
instead of eliminating risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Internal Audit Department performs regular
audit reviews and report of the risk and key
controls of the Group to the Board and the Audit
Committee. The responsible Department Heads will
be notified of the control deficiencies noted for
rectification.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Group’s external
auditor HK$1,700,000 for audit services of
the Group and for non-audit related services
approximately HK$300,000, representing mainly
taxation services and other non-audit service fees.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

1. The Company strives to convey to
Shareholders pertinent information in a
clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis and to take into consideration
their views and inputs, and to address
the Shareholders concerned. Their
views are communicated to the Board
comprehensively.

2. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders through the publication
of annual, interim reports, results
announcements and releases. All
communications to Shareholders are also
available on the Company's website at
www.karrie.com.hk.
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The AGM provides a useful platform for
Shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. The Chairman of the Board and the
Board members are available to answer
Shareholders’ questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate
issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

All votes of the Shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll according
to the Listing Rules. The chairman of the
meeting will therefore demand a poll for
every resolution put to the vote of the AGM
pursuant to bye-law 66 of the Bye-Laws.

F. INVESTOR RELATIONS

1.

The Board recognizes that effective
communication with investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract
new investors.

Results announcement

As from January 2009, the Company had
discontinued its current practice of adopting
quarterly results announcement. Annual
reports and interim reports are prepared
and issued to all Shareholders within the
prescribed period stipulated by the Listing
Rules. All results announcements and reports
are posted on the Company's website
and the Stock Exchange’s website. The
Company can still provide the Shareholders
and investors with an adequate degree of
transparency and information of the financial
position of the Company.
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Media and analysts briefings

Briefings for media are held on the same
day immediately after the quarterly, interim
and annual results released via teletext.
Briefing for analysts by way of presentation
at luncheons, receptions or telephone
conferences are organized thereafter. During
the briefing, the Group’s management
provides an in-depth analysis of the Group’s
performances in respect of the relevant
periods and ensures that the financial
performance and accounts of the Group
are well understood. There is also ample
opportunity for the analysts and media to
ask questions and interact with the executive
Directors and senior management.

Tea-Break with individual investors

Since the first quarter of 2004/05, the
Group has been arranging tea-break with
individual investors to build up an interactive
and direct communication channel. This
allows individual investors talking to the
management of the Group. Meanwhile,
the Group would give an update about the
status of the Group’s development and share
of their feelings toward the Group.

The Group regularly releases corporate
information such as awards received, and
the latest news of the Group's developments
on its Company’s website. The public are
welcome to give their comments and make
their enquiries through the Company’s
website, the management will give their
prompt response.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 63, was appointed as a
Director of the Company in October 1996 and is
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company as well as the founder of the Group. Prior
to founding the Group in 1980, Mr. Ho had over
10 years' experience in factory management and in
manufacturing plastic, metal and electronic products.
He is responsible for the Group’s overall corporate
strategies and objectives. He is also a director of New
Sense Enterprises Limited, a corporate substantial
shareholder of the Company, and the brother of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming and husband of Ms. Ho Po Chu.

His solid business knowledge and working experience
throughout the years was being recognized by the
academic. He was awarded with fellow membership
of the Asian Knowledge Management Association
in September of 2003 and Honorary Fellowship by
Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration
and Honorary Doctorate in Management by Lincoln
University in April of 2007. He was appointed as a part-
time professor at the University of Electronic Science
and Technology of China in Sichuan, Chengdu.

Mr. Ho has been appointed as member of the
10th Guangdong Provincial Committee of Political
Consultative Conference in January 2008 and
reappointed a member of 11th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province in January 2007. He was also
awarded with Honorable Citizen of Dongguan City and
Honorable Citizen of Yixing City. Mr. Ho is currently
participating in affairs of different associations,
which include Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers
Association, China Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment, Overseas Friendship Association
of Dongguan, Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organisations, Hebei Chinese Overseas
Friendship Association, Hong Kong Hebei Association
Ltd, Jiangsu Yixing Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment, Hong Kong Youth Exchange
Promotion United Association, Hong Kong Jiangsu
Exchange Promotion Association, The Hong Kong
Chinese Importers’ & Exporter’s Association and
Dongguan University of Technology Education
Foundation of Dongguan City.
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Mr. KWOK Wing Kin, Francis, aged 47, was appointed
as a Director of the Company in October 2000, and is
a Deputy Chairman and the Marketing Director as well
as Convener of the Executive Committee of the Group.
Mr. Kwok was re-designated as a Deputy Chairman and
a Chief Operational Officer as well as Convener of the
Executive Committee of the Group with effect from 1
January 2008. Mr. Kwok graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) with a diploma in business management and
is an associate member of The Hong Kong Management
Association. Prior to joining the Group in 1989, Mr. Kwok
had ten years' experience in plastic manufacturing sector
and procurement work in electronics manufacturing sector.

Mr. LEE Shu Ki, aged 53, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in December 1997, and is the Financial
Controller and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing the daily
operation of the Group’s Accounting Department. Mr.
Lee graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a
higher diploma in accountancy and is a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants of the United Kingdom. He
has over 25 years' accounting and financial management
experience in manufacturing businesses. Mr. Lee joined the
Group in June 1995.

Non-executive Director

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming, aged 55, was re-designated as a
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
1 June 2007. He was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company from October 1996 to 31 May 2007, and
was a Deputy Chairman and Chief Operation Officer as
well as the Convener of the Executive Committee of the
Group. He is responsible for the overall supervision of the
Group’s operation. He joined the Group in 1980 and has
over 20 years’ experience in factory production. He is also
the brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and the brother-in-law of
Ms. Ho Po Chu.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SO Wai Chun, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
July 2001. Mr. So has been carrying on business in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China for over 20
years. His businesses are mainly in financial services and
international trading. In 2000, Mr. So was appointed as
the China Representative of Forestry New Zealand Limited,
a subsidiary of Evergreen Forestry Limited which is a listed
company in New Zealand.

Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond, aged 69, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
in February 1998. He graduated from Oklahoma Baptish
University in the United States with a bachelor degree
in Arts in 1964. Mr. Chan has over 30 years’ experience
in the construction industry. He is also a director of Exalt
International Limited and Shelton Food Industry Limited.

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company
in December 2004. He has extensive experience in
accounting, finance and management. He holds a degree
in master of professional accounting, a postgraduate
diploma in corporate administration and a higher diploma
in accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and an Associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

MANAGEMENT

Ms. HO Po Chu, aged 60, is the Director of Administration
of the Group. Ms. Ho is one of the founding members of
the Group in 1980 and has over 20 years' experience in
office administration and purchasing. She is responsible
for supervising personnel and overall administration of the
Group. She is also the wife of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and sister-
in-law of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.
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Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia, aged 37, is the Assistant
Administration Director of the Group and responsible for
the overall operation of human resources, administration
and EDP department of the Group. Ms. Chan is one of
the members of the Executive Committee and Internal
Audit Committee of the Group. Ms. Chan graduated
from The City University of Hong Kong majoring in Public
Administration and Management. She joined the Group in
1996 and has over 10 years’ experience in administration
and management.

Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 42, is the Senior Marketing
Director of the Group and an observer of the Executive
Committee, responsible for the group marketing
development work. He joined the Group in 1985 and has
over 15 years’ experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. WONG Siu Ching, aged 51, is the Marketing Director
of the Group, responsible for project development and
marketing for the Group. Prior to joining the Group in
1988, Mr. Wong had over 10 years’ experience in sales
and marketing.

Mr. CHAN Wah Ying, aged 44, is the Assistant General
Manager — Production Operation and Quality of the Group
and an observer of the Executive Committee. Mr. Chan
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a higher
certificate in Manufacturing Engineering. Prior to joining
the Group in 1992, Mr. Chan had over 13 years’ experience
in quality management in an electronic manufacturing
company.

Ms. YIU Yuet Fung, aged 44, is the Assistant General
Manager at the Group’s factories in China and an observer
of the Executive Committee, responsible for the overall
personnel and administration management. She joined
the Group in 1984 and has over 20 years' experience
in managing the production process of manufacturing
industries.
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Mr. WONG Fok Tsun, Albert, aged 57, is the Senior
Internal Audit Manager of the Group, responsible for
setting up internal audit function and reporting directly to
the Board and the Internal Audit Committee. Mr. Wong
graduated from Curtin University of Technology, WA with
a bachelor degree in Management and Marketing. He
also holds a master degree of Accounting from the same
University. He is a fellow member of The Association of
International Accountants, UK and is an associate member
of CPA Australia. He is also a member of The Institute of
Internal Auditors Inc. U.S.A. Mr. Wong has over 10 years’
experience in internal auditing and 12 years’ experience in
financial accounting. He joined the Group in March 2003.

Mr. HA Hon Leung, aged 49, is the Technical Director
of the Engineering and R&D Department, responsible for
engineering capabilities and project development. Mr. Ha
holds a bachelor degree from The University of Windsor,
Canada, and a master degree from The University of
Waterloo, Canada, both in Electrical Engineering. He also
holds a master degree in business administration from
Heriot-Watt University, UK. Mr. Ha has over 20 years’
experience in engineering and technical management in
the electronics industry.
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The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of computer casings, office automation products,
moulds, plastic and metal parts (together referred to as
“Metal and Plastic Business”) and provision of electronic
manufacturing services business (“EMS Business”).

The Group’s turnover by principal product category and
geographical locations for the Year are set out in Note 5 to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK1.5 cents (2007/08: Nil) per share to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of members of the
Company on 28 August 2009. Together with the interim
dividend of nil per share, total dividend paid for this year
amounted to HK1.5 cents (2007/08: HKO0.75 cent) per
share.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the Year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 102 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and of the Company during the Year are set
out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 14 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 16 to the Financial
Statements.

As at 31 March 2009, the Company's reserves of
approximately HK$243,666,000 representing the
contributed surplus and retained profit were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the Year amounted to HK$366,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company repurchased certain of its shares on the
Stock Exchange during the Year and these shares were
subsequently cancelled by the Company. Further details of
these transactions are set out in Note 14 to the financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not redeemed
any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company'’s shares during the Year.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES

The New Scheme

The New Scheme was adopted on 21 May 2002 and was
subsequently amended on 4 August 2006 to comply with
the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
effected on 1 September 2001. Details of the New Scheme
are summarised herein below:

(i) The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to eligible participants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high
calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any Invested Entity
(as defined in the New Scheme);
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The participants of the New Scheme include any
employee, director (including executive and non-
executive director of the Group), shareholder,
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, other service
provider, partner and business or strategic alliance
partner of the Group or any Invested Entity (as
defined in the New Scheme) or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects may be any of the
above persons;

There is no outstanding of options granted under
the New Scheme as at 31 March 2009;

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company at the date of adoption of the
New Scheme and thereafter, if refreshed, shall not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the refreshed limit by the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time;

Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting, no participants shall be granted any
option if the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted to such participant in any 12-
month period up to the date of the latest grant
would exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. Options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital in issue for the time
being and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000
must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders;
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the New Scheme at any time during
a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee. Unless otherwise determined by the Board
at its sole discretion, there is no requirement of a
minimum period for which an option must be held
or a performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised,;

A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is required
to be paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the
option;

The subscription price payable upon exercising any
particular option granted under the New Scheme is
determined based on a formula: P = N x Ep, where
“P" is the subscription price; “N" is the number of
shares to be subscribed; and “Ep” is the exercise
price of the highest of (a) the nominal value of a
share in the Company on the date of grant; (b)
the closing price of shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange, as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; and (c)
the average of the closing prices of shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant and
as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the New
Scheme; and

The life of the New Scheme is until the tenth
anniversary of the adoption date of the New
Scheme.

An ordinary resolution approving the cancellation of all
outstanding share options (the “Share Options”) which
have been granted under the Share Option Scheme but
not exercised as at the date of the resolution was duly
passed by shareholders at the special general meeting of
the Company on 12 September 2008.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd) BRESE (2)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) FEtE (&)
(x)  Details of share option movements during the Year x) WBEFFERATEE2EREZIHFE
under the New Scheme are as follows: wm
Number of Share Options (Note)
BREHE (F5)
Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
Exercise before  exercise Outstanding ~ Granted  Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Price Exercise date of date of at 31 March during during during at 31 March
Name Grant  (Note) Period grant options 2008  theYear  theYear the Year 2009
RERE RERE —2I\E ke 313
E BitiAA ¥ =A=1t-0 RFEE REAFE RFEE =A=t-H
2] REAE (W) s 2B 2B EATR ERT i XM/ MAAE
(HKS) (HKS) (HK$) (000) ('000) (000) ("000) ('000)
(Br) (1) (Br) (F) () (F) (F) ()
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
EXREATHAR
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 07/02/2005 3.16  01/01/2007- 3.325 - 296.38 - - (296.39) -
fEHEE 06/02/2015
07/02/2005 316 01/01/2008- 3.325 - 592.76 - - (592.76) -
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.16  01/01/2009- 3.325 - 592.76 - - (592.76) -
06/02/2015
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis ~ 01/11/2002 156 01/01/2003- 1.65 - 52.925 - - (52.925) -
PKEEHE 31/10/2012
01/11/2002 156 01/01/2004- 1.65 - 793.875 - - (793.875) -
31/10/2012
27/04/2004 179 01/01/2005- 1.86 - 169.36 - - (169.36) -
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 179  01/01/2006- 1.86 - 33872 - - (338.72) -
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.79  01/01/2007- 1.86 - 338.72 - - (338.72) -
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 3.16  01/01/2007- 3325 - 2117 - - 2117 -
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.16  01/01/2008- 3325 - 4234 - - (423.4) -
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 316 01/01/2009- 3325 - 4234 - - (423.4) -

06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BIRELTE (&)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) Hsta (&)
x)  (Cont’d) x) (#&)

Number of Share Options (Note)

BREHR (W)
Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
Exercise before  exercise Outstanding  Granted  Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Dateof  Price Exercise date of date of at 31 March during during during at 31 March
Name Grant  (Note) Period grant  options 2008  the Year  the Year  the Year 2009
RERE RBRE —2BNEF “E2EhEF
T R HA I8 ZA=+-B REAEE RAFE WAFE ZA=t-8
2] REAS (W) i 2B 2Bl HROE ERT T &%/BH  EEATE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (1000) (1000) (1000) (1000) (1000)
(%7 () (7 (F) (%) (%) (F) (%)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki 01/11/2002 1.56  01/01/2003- 1.65 - 2117 - - 211.7) -
FHEALE 317102012
01/11/2002 156 01/01/2004- 1.65 - 317.55 - - (317.55) -
311012012
2710412004 179 01/01/2005- 1.86 - 84.68 - - (84.68) -
26/04/2014
2710412004 179 01/01/2006- 1.86 - 169.36 - - (169.36) -
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 179 01/01/2007- 1.86 - 169.36 - - (169.36) -
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 316 01/01/2007- 3.325 - 2117 - - @17) -
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 316 01/01/2008- 3325 - 4234 - - (423.4) -
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 316 01/01/2009- 3325 - 4234 - - (423.4) -
06/02/2015
Ms. Ho Po Chu 07/02/2005 316 01/07/2005- 3325 - 846.8 - - (846.8) -

mEKTL 06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BRETTE (&)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) FEtE (&)
x)  (Cont’d) x) (&
Number of Share Options (Note)
BREHR (W)
Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
Exercise before  exercise Outstanding  Granted  Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Price Exercise date of date of at 31 March during during during at 31 March
Name Grant  (Note) Period grant  options 2008  the Year  the Year  the Year 2009
REBRE RBRE —3BINEF “E2EhEF
T R HA I8 ZA=+-B REAEE REAFE WAFE ZA=t-8
#e REAS (Hz) iy 2B 2Bl HEROE ERT T &%/BH  HEATE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000) ('000) (1000) (1000) (1000)
() (&) (7 (F) (%) (%) (F) (%)
(i) Other Eligible Participants
EftagReas
Employees 22/05/2002 123 22/05/2002- 1.30 - 105.85 - - (105.85) -
& 21/052012
01/11/2002 156 01/01/2003- 1.65 - 338.72 - - (338.72) -
31/1022012
01/11/2002 156 01/01/2004- 1.65 - 1,005.575 - - (1,005.575) -
31/1022012
01/12/2003 2.34  01/01/2006- 2425 - 3463412 - - (3,463.412) -
30/11/2013
01/12/2003 2.34  01/01/2007- 2.425 - 411214 - - (4111.214) -
30/11/2013
27/04/2004 179 01/01/2005- 1.86 - 715.546 - - (715.546) -
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 179 01/01/2006- 1.86 - 127.02 - - (127.02) -
26/04/2014
01/02/2005 2.98  01/01/2006- 3.15 - 969.586 - - (969.586) -
31/01/2015
01/02/2005 2.98  01/01/2007- 3.15 - 1939172 - - (1,939.172) -
31/01/2015
01/02/2005 2.98  01/01/2008- 3.15 - 1939172 - - (1,939.172) -
31/01/2015
07/02/2005 3.6 01/07/2005- 3.325 - 1,905.3 - - (1,9053) -
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.6 01/01/2007- 3.325 - 719.78 - - (719.78) -
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.16  01/01/2008- 3.325 - 143956 - - (1,439.56) -
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.16  01/01/2009- 3.325 - 143956 - - (1,439.56) -

06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Contd)
The New Scheme (Cont’d)

A professional actuarial firm has been invited in the year
of 2005/06 to perform a valuation of the share options
granted under the share option schemes.

According to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
2 ("HKFRS2"), the cost of share-based transactions should
be recognised as an expense over the period from the date
of grant until they are exercisable by the receiver of such
payment. The expense required to be reported for share
options granted on or before 31 March 2009 would be
estimated as follows:

B8 (2)
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Financial Year

MBEFE
2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 Total
Ch
P&L expenses (HK$'000) 768 4,718 3,328 1,079 337 17,541

Bk (F787T)

There are several relevant measures that may be considered
to assess the financial impact of the share option schemes,
including the expense of share-based transactions under
generally accepted financial reporting standards (e.q.,
HKFRS2). The expense of the share-based transactions is
attributed over the period from the original transaction
date (i.e., grant date) to the date when the recipient’s
entitlement to the payment has been fully realized (i.e.,
vested).

In assessing the value of the share options granted during
the Year and the expense of share-based transactions
under HKFRS2 requirement, the Binomial option pricing
model (the “Binomial model”) has been used. The Binomial
Model is one of the generally most accepted methods used
to calculate the value of options and expense of share-
based transactions.

The parameters of the Binomial Model include the risk free
rate, dividend vyield, exit rate and trigger price multiple.
The risk free rate has made reference to the yield Exchange
Fund Notes as at the grant date. The dividend yield makes
reference to the dividend history and it is assumed that the
grantee will exercise the option in accordance with their
sub-optimal exercise policy.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last ten financial years is set out on page
183 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in Note 8 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Particulars of bank loans and overdrafts of the Group as
at 31 March 2009 are set out in Note 18 to the financial
statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis (Deputy Chairman &
Chief Operational Officer)

Mr. Lee Shu Ki

Non-executive Director

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. So Wai Chun

Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for specific terms and hold office until 30 June 2010, 4
February 2010 and 6 December 2009, respectively, subject
to extension.

In the spirit of good corporate governance practices, Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, the chairman of the Board, will voluntarily
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting notwithstanding that he is not required by the
Bye-laws of the Company to do so. In accordance with
Article 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws and A.4.2. of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices, Messrs. Ho
Cheuk Ming and Lee Shu Ki will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All
such Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which any of the Group
companies was a party and in which a Director was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Upon the expiry of the previous lease agreement on 17
November 2007, a new lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) dated 16 November 2007 was entered into
between Kings Lion Development Limited (“Kings Lion”)
as landlord and Karrie Industrial Company Limited (”Karrie
Industrial”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as tenant for the lease of a portion (being 26,573 square
feet in gross floor area) of 9th Floor, Southeast Industrial
Building, 611-619 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories together with one car parking space in the same
building at a monthly rental of HK$132,865 (that is, at
approximately HK$5 per square foot) for a term of two
years commencing on 18 November 2007.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Kings Lion is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the reason that Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, a Director of the Company, together with
his spouse, control 100% of the voting power in general
meeting and also control the board of Directors of Kings
Lion. The transaction contemplated under the Lease
Agreement (the “Lease Transaction”) therefore constitutes
a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
Lease Transaction have been set out in the announcement
dated 16 November 2007 issued to the shareholders of
the Company.

On 10 July 2008 (Hong Kong time), Karrie Technologies
Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a shareholders’ agreement (the
“Shareholders’ Agreement”) with Sagem Communications
SAS (“Sagem”) for the establishment of a joint venture,
Sagem Karrie Technologies (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (the “JVCQO"). The JVCO entered into a servicing
agreement (“Sagem Servicing Agreement”) and a supply
agreement (“Sagem Supply Agreement”) with Sagem.
The technical services to be provided by Sagem under the
Sagem Servicing Agreement encourages technical support
services in relation to technology qualification, required
certification, product safety, etc. The products to be
delivered by the JVCO to Sagem under the Sagem Supply
Agreement include multi-function fax printers, TS and TT
fax machines, related PCBA and associated spare parts,
which will be supplied by the JVCO to Sagem.

Following the completion of the Shareholders’ Agreement,
the JVCO will become an indirect 60% owned subsidiary
of the Company. By virtue of its 40% interests in the
JVCO, Sagem will become a substantial shareholder of
the Company at subsidiary’s level and hence a connected
person of the Company. The transactions contemplated
under each of the Sagem Servicing Agreement and
the Sagem Supply Agreement will therefore constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of those
transactions have been set out in the circular dated 11
August 2008 issued to the shareholders of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

On 5 February 2009, the Company entered into the
raw materials purchase agreement (the “Raw Materials
Purchase Agreement”) and the products supply agreement
(the “Products Supply Agreement”) with Sagem.

It was originally intended that the Sagem Supply
Agreement would replace the existing supply arrangement
with Sagem (the “Existing Supply Arrangement”) after
all the orders committed thereunder had been delivered
and completed by the end of 2008. However, as the
production equipment and machinery in the factory will be
installed in phases, the JVCO will not be able to commence
full operations until January 2010 to take over all the
manufacturing activities which would have otherwise
been undertaken by the other members of the Group
under the Existing Supply Arrangement. The Products
Supply Agreement will enable the Group to continue
supplying the Products to Sagem and its subsidiaries (the
“Sagem Group”) after the termination of the Existing
Supply Arrangement but before the JVCO commences full
operations under the Sagem Supply Agreement in January
2010.

It was originally intended that the existing raw materials
purchase arrangement with Sagem (the “Existing Raw
Materials Purchase Arrangement”) would be terminated
as and when Sagem had completed the delivery of all the
orders committed thereunder by the end of 2008, after
which the Group would source raw materials from other
independent third party suppliers. In view of the changing
market conditions, the Group now takes the view that it
is beneficial for the Group to source raw materials from
the Sagem Group instead of sourcing the same from
the independent third party suppliers directly. The Raw
Materials Purchase Agreement will enable the Group
to reduce the administration costs, eliminate the risk of
default of independent third party suppliers and ensure a
reliable supply of raw materials with consistent quality.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

The transactions contemplated under each of the Products
Supply Agreement and the Raw Material Purchase
Agreement therefore constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions have been
set out in the circular dated 5 March 2009 issued to the
shareholders of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Transaction and confirmed that the Transaction has
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual
course of its business and on normal commercial terms
which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Board of Directors engaged the
auditors of the Company to perform certain factual finding
procedures on the above continuing connected transaction
on a sample basis in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
or Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform
Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditors have reported their factual
findings on the selected samples based on the agreed
procedures to the Board of Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2009

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company and any associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (a) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO;
or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") were as

EENRBESITRAEBZRMESR

R-EENF=ZA=1+—H

ARRBEEZENRRTHRABEAR _T&T_jcﬂ
HEEE (BER (FHLBEHN) (TR E
1§|J>>J) SEXVER) BBy M AR R B fp T A VR

@ MRR - MxFEm X R @IRE (BHE
1) FE3I52FA TR F 2 ErCMATaCERE + (b)
TWE( LT RAREFETESF X HNEESTAD
(TCGRESFRD D) BAARNRB RBEBRERXZH
BRAR (BT - a0

follows:
(A) Interests in the Company () RAERFzHER
Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BREEIBIZEERYE
Corporate/ % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share
interests interests interests interests capital
EEREES
B A= KERERE HitigE s aitER RFRESK
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai Al pB o A 12,492,000 297,838,000 243,804,000 310,330,000 53.77
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(tsE—) (MtsE—) (MsE=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming  {a] 2 BB %4 12,104,000 — 243,804,000 255,908,000 44.34
(Note 2)
(PsE=)
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin,  ZBxERS A4 980,000 - - 980,000 0.17
Francis
Mr. Lee Shu Ki TR LS 1,400,000 - - 1,400,000 0.24
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing  J5/8% 5t 4 2,000 - - 2,000 0.00
Ms. Ho Po Chu MEHRLZ LT 54,034,000 256,296,000 243,804,000 310,330,000 53.77
(Note 3) (Note 3) (Note 2)
(MEE=) (=) (MsE=)
Notes: B 5T
1. The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai comprise — . (AEEE A T A AR #12,492,0008% &

12,492,000 Shares. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be
interested in (a) 54,034,000 Shares held by his spouse,
Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner and (b) 243,804,000
Shares in which his children under 18 are interested. Such
243,804,000 Shares in which his children under 18 are
interested duplicate with his interests as founder of The Ho
Family Trust in the same block of Shares referred to in Note 2

below.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(A)
2.

(B)

0]

Interests in the Company (Cont’d)

243,804,000 Shares are held by New Sense Enterprises
Limited (“New Sense”), the entire issued share capital of
which is owned by Equity Trust (BVI) Limited as trustee for
a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
is deemed to be interested in these 243,804,000 Shares
as founder of The Ho Family Trust. Ms. Ho Po Chu, Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s children under 18 are
the discretionary objects of The Ho Family Trust and are thus
deemed to be interested in the 243,804,000 Shares held
under The Ho Family Trust. Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the
243,804,000 Shares duplicate with each other.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise 54,034,000
Shares. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be interested in (a)
12,492,000 Shares held by her spouse, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, as
beneficial owner and (b) 243,804,000 Shares in which her
children under 18 are interested. Such 243,804,000 Shares
in which her children under 18 are interested are duplicated
with her interests in the same block of Shares referred to in
Note 2 above.

Interests and short positions in associated
corporations

Karrie Industrial Company Limited (“KICL")

EERRSTRAEZROER (&)

() RARQBz#EDS (&)

Z - 243,804,0008% % 19 FANew Sense Enterprises
Limited ([New Sensel) #48 22 & 17
& 7K #iEquity Trust (BVI) LimitedfE 73 & # 2
FEHo Family TrustZ XFEAFA o (A 1218
{E/BHo Family TrustZ I3 A - #18 /R
243,804,000l th i A #E 2 o (A B IR
o] 52 BR 55 4 I fal S 0B 5 4E 2 RR18BE F
Ho Family Truste 2R A » BURAR )
Family Trust$ A 243,804,000 i {5 #% A&
oo Bt EIB A - B R A £ R =R
AR F%55243,804,000x ik fn 2 e (R L BB & ©

~

dHF

AH-R
a

)

2

FRd

A fE 25 £ $554,034,0008% A%
THAR RIEE () A BB E gk 4
B/ ANFH 212,492,0000 515 : &
18RI T 2 ¥4 243,804,000 % B 19 2
T2k ° 5%5243,804,000 & p 2 1 - R B
I E Xzt (M pral) REARM18RAF
T2 BB R —Es o

=
N
/!

(2) REBEEzERRAR

()  FEMERERLA ([FZHER])

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE100E T2 ERFREEROHE

Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital

EERRS
BV FEER Hitf s BitER BRESE KB BRESH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 85.98% 43,000 85.98%
ieiE s E (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(=) (fE—) (fE=) (fEE—) (ME=)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13.99% 7,000 13.99%
MEKLt (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(HE—) (ff&E—) (MEE=) (FfsE—) (M=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERBEITHAEZRGOESR (&)
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated () REBLIEZEEZRAR (&)
corporations (Cont’d)
(i) Karpo Technologies Limited (“KTL") (i) EERRERIGF ([ZEFRE))

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE100E T2 ERFREEROBE

Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital
EEEES
PN 53 FEER Hithigzs aitiEE BREIH KB ERESWL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 99.90% 10,000 99.90%
B & (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3) (Note 1) (Note 3)
(Bt —) (BfaE—) (M=) (BsE—) (M=)
(i) Karrie Investment Holdings Limited (“KIHL") (iii)  FFRAERERLA A] ([ZFRE])

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each

BREEIETZERFREEROEE

Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests interests interests interests capital Positions capital

EEEES
(PN 53 FEER Hithigzs artiEE BREIHL KB ERESH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
iesE s e (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(FsE—) (HE—) (FfsEm) (FE—) (FfsEm)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
B (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)

(BH&E—) (B&E—) (&) (BfEE—) CiE2))




92

Karrie International Holdings Limited = 7IBIFR AR GRR A7) » Annual Report 2008/09 4F%k

Report of the Directors EEE2H &

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(B)

(iii)

Interests and short positions in associated
corporations (Cont’d)
Karrie Investment Holdings Limited (“KIHL") (Cont’d)

Notes:

Karrie International (B.V.I.) Limited (“KIBVI"), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been
granted options to acquire from Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu their non-voting deferred
shares in each of KICL, KTL and KIHL. Accordingly,
KIBVI is taken to be interested in these non-voting
deferred shares in respect of which Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai and Mr. Ho Po Chu have each created short
positions. In addition, by virtue of (i) their interests in
the Company; and (i) the interests of their children
under 18 in the Company, as referred to in Notes
1, 2 and 3 under the section headed “(A) Interests
in the Company” above, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms.
Ho Po Chu are each deemed to be interested in the
long positions that KIBVI has in these non-voting
deferred shares. Such interests are duplicated with
their personal interests in these non-voting deferred
shares.

The entire issued share capital of KICL comprises
50,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each
and 10 ordinary shares of HK$100 each.

The entire issued share capital of KTL comprises
10,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each
and 10 ordinary shares of HK$100 each.

The entire issued share capital of KIHL comprises 2
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each and 10
ordinary shares of HK$1 each.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations which
were (a) recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

As at 30 June 2009

There have been no changes in the interests and short
positions of the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and any associated corporations (a) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code during
the period from 1 April 2009 to 30 June 2009.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had any interest in any business
which competes with the business of the Group.

EERRSTRAEZRODER (&)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31 March 2009 and 30 June 2009

The interests or short positions of the persons (other than
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company) in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

FERR

KR-EEAF=A=+—AR=FFNEAA
=+A

ATAL (TEREZERARFAZRSITERA
8) RARA D RAEERDFHERBAREAR
AIZRR (R 1RD]) E336151F B 2 Bac it 2 #

Nz N/ -
mIORE

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEIET 2 EERHE
Personal Corporate/ Shareholding
Name of Shareholder interests Other interests percentage
EEERR
RERERE B AR HitifEz BRES
New Sense 243,804,000 - 42.24%

Equity Trust (BVI) Limited

(Note FfisF)
- 243,804,000 42.24%
(Note BffzT)

Note:  Equity Trust (BVI) Limited is deemed to be interested in the
243,804,000 Shares held by New Sense by virtue of the fact
that Equity Trust (BVI) Limited as trustee for The Ho Family
Trust owns the entire issued share capital of New Sense.

Bt3E © R Equity Trust (BVI) Limited &35 B New Sense
2B BT ZHo Family TrustZ 5 @
Equity Trust (BVI) Limited#%48 A% & %5 M New
SensedF & 2 243,804,000/% f& 1 Z #EzS ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Contd)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009 and 30
June 2009, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
in Shares” above, had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended
31 March 2009 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 15%
Five largest suppliers combined A1%
Sales
The largest customer 33%
Five largest customers combined 84%

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted
above.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 24 August 2009 to Friday, 28 August
2009 (both dates inclusive) during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for entitlement to the proposed final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2009 and for attending the Annual
General Meeting, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Room 1712-6, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 21 August 2009.
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PUBLIC FLOAT AWERE

As at the date of this annual report, based on public RAFHRTEBE  BBEARFESHARE
information available to the Company and to the best B RBRAABESNE  ARAEBEZHHA
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained FRRE BT PRETRBAUBFETARRE
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share BITIRIDHI25%

capital of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS =B Em

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. REBEZIREBRZEERKESHAEBEME
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, % ZRERE TR EERUBEEERE
offer themselves for re-appointment. (A

On behalf of the Board AEEEMm

Ho Cheuk Fai F/E

Chairman Al 8

Hong Kong, 9 July 2009 BE  —EFTNFLANA
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 3 A% B E R

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

EERUKES T EHA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
100 to 182, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2009 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 July 2009

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Balance Sheets

BEERER

As at 31 March 2009 R—ZEFNF=A=+—H
Group Company
rEEH RATH
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBAFE C—TT)N\F CZEBBEAF —TT)\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Lik=s THER FHET THERT FHET
ASSETS iE
Non-current assets IEREEE
Leasehold land and HETHR
land use rights Tt A 6 72,096 46,873 - -
Deposits for acquisition BETH
of land use rights R
"E - 26,400 - =
Property, plant and E
equipment B 7 435,732 378,328 - —
Investment in YNNG
subsidiaries & 8 - = 496,607 500,526
Investment in associated N /NG]
companies ZIE 9 601 400 - -
Deferred tax assets FIETHIEEE 19 349 387 = =
508,778 452,388 496,607 500,526
Current assets MEBEE
Inventories e 12 227,062 264,352 - —
Trade receivables B F IR 11 419,064 430,742 - =
Prepayments, deposits BN R'ER
and other receivables H fih U IR 2R 1 69,486 151,412 335 200
Tax prepaid TEHIE 4,017 4,783 253 -~
Cash and bank balances B RB1TETE 13 641,440 353,140 382 428
1,361,069 1,204,429 970 628
Total assets BEHRE 1,869,847 1,656,817 497,577 501,154
EQUITY EE
Capital and reserves RARRERE A
attributable to the FEMR AR AN K
Company’s equity holders AR A
Share capital AR 14 57,710 57,720 57,710 57,720
Other reserves Hith 16 199,748 212,326 386,658 399,611
Retained earnings RE A
— Proposed final — BIRARH
dividend % & 8,657 - 8,657 -
— Others — Hty 432,054 405,371 41,824 38,772
698,169 675,417 494,849 496,103
Minority interest DHIRRER 43,026 424 - -
Total equity T AE 741,195 675,841 494,849 496,103
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Balance Sheets

EERER

As at 31 March 2009 R=EZENF=H=+—H
Group Company
rEH PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBEEAE —ZTT)N\F ZEBEZTAE —TT)N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B R FERT FET FET FET
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities EREAE
Long-term bank REIRITEE
borrowings 18 118,700 188,700 - -
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIEBE 19 6,880 8,753 = =
Provision for long KHRG®
service payments HE 20 12,929 9,793 622 807
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 138,509 ~ 207246 62 80/
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables B 5 ERTIRK
rERE 17 298,596 351,379 - 10
Accruals and other FEETER K EAM
payables JEfT R 5K 17 200,465 202,365 2,106 4,234
Receipts in advance FEU IR R 3,636 2,614 = =
Amount due to JEEE 2N A
associated companies 1R 9 211 811 - =
Short-term bank EHERITEE
borrowings 18 487,235 216,561 - -
o 9%0043 773,730 2106 4,244
Total liabilities BERE 1,128,652 980,976 2,728 5,051
Total equity and ‘= kB EeE
liabilities 1,869,847 1,656,817 497,577 501,154
Net current assets/ TEBEFE,
(liabilities) (&) 370,926 430,699 (1,136) (3,616)
Total assets less BEERRE
current liabilities BE 879,704 883,087 495,471 496,910

Ho Cheuk Fai
Cpy
Director

EE

Kwok Wing Kin, Francis

ZRKER
Director

EZE
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Consolidated Income Statement — by function of expense

GeEER - REAYEIR

For the year ended 31 March 2009 H#EZ—ZZTNF=A=+—HIt

2009 2008
—EENF T NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BEE FERT FET
Revenue WA 21 2,463,926 2,802,974
Cost of sales HEMAR 22 (2,286,474) (2,623,931)
Gross profit EF 177,452 179,043
Distribution and selling expenses DR HEE R 22 (30,709) (34,948)
General and administrative expenses —MRITREA 22 (120,387) (117,225)
Operating profit LS 26,356 26,870
Finance income BATE U 24 10,071 14,853
Finance costs B 755 Ak N 24 (12,888) (20,071)
Share of profit of associated companies FE{GEEL A &% A 201 -
Profit before taxation FR A A A 23,740 21,652
Taxation FEHIA 25 (3,307) (8,504)
Profit for the year FERF 20,433 13,148
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE{SH (EiE) -
Equity holders of the Company NGRS 2=Y =N 22,081 13,148
Minority interest DB R (1,648) =
20,433 13,148
Earnings per share attributable to RARIRERE AR
equity holders of the Company FE(R TR A
during the year (expressed in (LAAALET)
HK cents)
— Basic — B 27 3.80 2.80
— Diluted — s 27 3.80 2.80
Dividends 5% 8 28 8,657 4,329
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
IIV_\/EI\*EB_E%E%

For the year ended 31 March 2009 HEZ T NF=A=+—HIt
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
AN RRERHE ARG
Other
Share reserves Retained Minority Total
capital  (Note 16) earnings interest equity
HitfkE PHRR
[N (KtzE16) REEF R EndE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance at 1 April 2007 “ETHEMA-B &R 41208 107505 407,465 4 556,622
Profit for the year REREH - - 13,148 - 13,148
Rights issue of shares TRz KD 16,492 105,198 - - 121,690
Employee share option scheme BB BEM 2
- value of employee services —EERGZEBE = 1,079 = = 1,079
Transfer to retained earnings BN mERRE R
upon lapse of share options - (1,456) 1,456 - -
Dividends paid BIRARE = = (16,698) - (16,698)
Balance at 31 March 2008 “EENFZA=T—Hz&H% 57,720 212,326 405,371 424 675,841
Balance at 1 April 2008 —TT/\EMA—B2EH 57,720 212326 405371 44 675841
Profit/(loss) for the year AERF(E1E) - - 22,081 (1,648) 20,433
Employee share option scheme ESREREE
- value of employee services - EERK(BE - 337 - - 337
Transfer to retained earnings BIRAEEUE /K uim
upon cancellation/lapse BERBET
of share options - (13,300) 13,300 - -
Repurchase of shares Rl (10) 10 (41) = (41)
Capital injection from LERILTE
minority shareholder - - - 44,000 44,000
Currency translation differences ~ S#¥#HEZR - 375 - 250 625
Balance at 31 March 2009 —EEhEZA=t-RzEH 57,710 199,748 440,711 43,026 741,195
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z T NF=—HA=+—HIt
2009 2008
—EENF ZEENF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BEE FER FAT
Cash flows from operating activities KEFB2HENRE
Profit before taxation KR B Bl g A 23,740 21,652
Share of profit from FE(EEEE AR T
associated companies (201) -
Depreciation of property, M - BER
plant and equipment BB 2IE 56,294 59,394
Amortisation of leasehold land FRE T K it
and land use rights {5 PR 2 i 35 1,177 1,054
Share-based compensation expense VARS 17 Sz 45 =R B
Z Xt 337 1,079
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE
plant and equipment s ) SE=| 772 3,192
Write-back of provision for obsolete PRERFHTE
and slow moving inventories A O] (1,805) (11,470)
Provision for impairment of B 5 R H Ab FEUIR K
trade and other receivables B2 728 2,595
Provision for long service payments REBRTS & %45 3,194 3,740
Interest expenses FEZ 12,888 20,071
Interest income FMEMKA (10,071) (14,853)
Operating profit before working EEESERZ
capital changes IR 87,053 86,454
Inventories ety 39,095 122,092
Trade receivables 2 5 EWIR R 11,678 177,513
Prepayments, deposits and SEENE- &5
other receivables Hoh e IR 3K 81,198 (116,397)
Amount due from JE s Bge 2 1 R R 3K
associated companies - 8,770
Trade and bills payables Z S EMNIRR R
=4 (52,783) (100,226)
Accruals and other payables EEtER K
b FE IR 3K (1,961) 19,279
Receipts in advance TR 7K 1,022 (2,315)
Amount due to associated JE 1~ Bt 2 1 R IR 3K
companies (600) 811
Cash generated from operations REELE 7S 164,702 195,981
Interest paid EARFE (12,888) (20,071)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNED (4,848) (15,684)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REEBNEH 533 1,310
Long service payments paid ENRBRES (58) -
Net cash generated from REFHEFEZFRE
operating activities 147,441 161,536
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GeReRER

For the year ended 31 March 2009 BZ =TT NF=H=1+—HIE
2009 2008
—EEAF ZEENF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BEE FER FAT
Cash flows from investing activities KREFHZHERE
Purchase of property, NEYE -
plant and equipment B (114,641) (172,129)
Increase in deposits for acquisition B E i
of land use rights FERAEZ RS = (26,400)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - HE K&
plant and equipment R PTG 171 365
Increase in investment in AR E R RE]Z
associated companies w®E = (400)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits A ERIRITIER - 6,359
Interest received B HF S 10,071 14,853
Net cash used in investing activities KE TR Z
N4 %58 (104,399) (177,352)
Cash flows from financing activities BE R RERE
Capital injection from minority interest D EIRE T E 44,000 -
Repurchase of shares B B8 (41) =
Net proceeds from BITHARAR D
rights issue of shares SRATER - 121,690
New long-term bank borrowings MIRAPEITEE = 200,000
New short-term bank borrowings RO HIRITIBEE 1,173,870 439,680
Repayment of long-term bank EERPERITEER
borrowings (85,875) (74,050)
Repayment of short-term bank BEEHRITEE
borrowings (902,570) (503,287)
Increase/(decrease) in trust receipts a0, GRid)
bank loans EFEBURIRITER 15,432 (65,707)
Dividends paid RS - (16,698)
Net cash generated from BEEREEZ
financing activities ReFHE 244,816 101,628
Net increase in cash RekB2EFED 2
and cash equivalents ESi=-hT| 287,858 85,812
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April MA—BzHRa2k
ReFEY 352,957 267,145
Effect of foreign exchange rate GNEE [ R 7 S 625 =
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March =A=+—HZ&R&N&
BaEEY 13 641,440 352,957
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of computer
casings, office automation products, video cassette
housings, moulds, plastic and metal parts and provision of
electronic manufacturing services.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 29 October
1996. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s shares have been listed in the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 16 December 1996.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated, and have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 9 July 2009.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRS) under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Amendment to existing standards effective in
current year

The HKAS 39, “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement”, amendment on reclassification
of financial assets permits reclassification of certain
financial assets out of the held-for-trading and
available-for-sale categories if specified conditions
are met. The related amendment to HKFRS 7,
“Financial instruments: Disclosures”, introduces
disclosure requirements with respect to financial
assets reclassified out of the held-for-trading and
available-for-sale categories. The amendment
is effective prospectively from 1 July 2008. This
amendment does not have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements, as the Group has not
reclassified any financial assets.

Interpretations to existing standards effective in
current year but not relevant to the Group

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12, “Service concession arrangements”
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14, “HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined

benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and
their interaction”

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

2.1

(iii)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that have been issued but are not
yet effective in current year and have not been early
adopted by the Group

HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of financial
statements” (effective from 1 January 2009). The
revised standard will prohibit the presentation of
items of income and expenses (that is, “non-owner
changes in equity”) in the statement of changes in
equity, requiring “non-owner changes in equity”
to be presented separately from owner changes
in equity. All non-owner changes in equity will be
required to be shown in a performance statement,
but entities can choose whether to present
one performance statement (the statement of
comprehensive income) or two statements (the
consolidated income statement and the statement
of comprehensive income). Where entities restate
or reclassify comparative information, they will be
required to present a restated balance sheet as at
the beginning comparative period in addition to
the current requirement to present balance sheets
at the end of the current period and comparative
period. The Group will apply HKAS 1 (Revised) from
1 April 2009;

HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs” (effective
from 1 January 2009). The amendment requires
an entity to capitalize borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset (one that takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for use or
sale) as part of the cost of that asset. The option
of immediately expensing those borrowing costs
will be removed. The Group will apply HKAS 23
(Revised) from 1 April 2009 but it is currently not
applicable to the Group as there are no qualifying
assets;

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that have been issued but are not
yet effective in current year and have not been early
adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and separate
financial statements” (effective from 1 July 2009).
The revised standard requires the effects of all
transactions with non-controlling interests to be
recorded in equity if there is no change in control
and these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also
specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any
remaining interest in the entity is re-measured to
fair value and a gain or loss is recognized in profit
or loss. The Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised) to
transactions with non-controlling interests from 1
April 2010;

HKFRS 2 (Amendment), “Share-based payment”
(effective from 1 January 2009). The amended
standard deals with vesting conditions and
cancellations. It clarifies that vesting conditions
are service conditions. As such these features
would need to be included in the grant date
fair value for transactions with employees and
others providing similar services, that is, these
features would not impact the number of awards
expected to vest or valuation thereof subsequent
to grant date. All cancellations, whether by the
entity or by other parties, should receive the same
accounting treatment. The Group will apply HKFRS
2 (Amendment) from 1 April 2009, but it is not
expected to have a material impact on it's financial
statements;

2.1

(i)

e B ISR R Y R
BHBERE ()

mBERE (&)
172K £ 3% i) AN 5% B JF 4% 1 P HR .2 2B

A~ 1BET R B ER 2 2 FE (&)

EBGFTER27 (KED KA KRB
BHHR|I(B_TEThFLA—BE
) o L BEMERTERIRE - a0 HlHER
Bok® - RAIAIEEHMESZAER
SZEEVEERZPEYN  MEER
ST BEREENAE - LBEEL TR
IR AT SR 2 ST BB E - £
MEBEBAZHBESEAFEEH
B WHEKRSRTPERRNHEE KR - K
SEBEH_T—ZTFWMA— Etﬁw
ﬁ%?ﬂ&%\zx%ﬁﬁéﬁ

BI27 (F&BET)

EBTBER2 (BTN UKD BE
2T E Mm_§§ﬂ¢ B—HBi#4
) o WIBERTERIEIE B EB G
My é/ﬁﬁ%f'7k1¢1§?5ﬁ|—ifk1bﬂ¢ﬂ
RIBIEH - UMD AERZARZHM
BB TSHEBGME - At - thEHES
TEAREEEBMEMREBURS
AT ZXSRABREBH 2 AFER - I8
%% ERBE AR ER LD A% B
FZ%@@E?%@ FrE=Es - T
TR HEMAEL - KAKERZ
aﬁﬁﬁikﬁ XEEEBHE-_ZTZT N
FUAR—ARERESUEER2 (BT
X)) EEHITEHAEB 2B BHRERE
BAFE

109



110

Karrie International Holdings Limited 5 7IBIFR =R GRR A7) » Annual Report 2008/09 F%k

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

2.1

(iii)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that have been issued but are not
yet effective in current year and have not been early
adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business combinations”
(effective from 1 July 2009). The revised standard
continues to apply the acquisition method to
business combinations, with some significant
changes. For example, all payments to purchase
a business are to be recorded at fair value at
the acquisition date, with contingent payments
classified as debt subsequently re-measured through
the consolidated income statement. There is a
choice on an acquisition by acquisition basis to
measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets. All acquisition-related costs should be
expensed. The Group will apply HKFRS 3 (Revised)
from 1 April 2010;

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” (effective from
1 January 2009). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14 and
aligns segment reporting with the requirements
of the US Standard SFAS 131 “Disclosures about
segments of an enterprise and related information”.
The new standard requires a “management
approach”, under which segment information
is presented on the same basis as that used for
internal reporting purposes. The Group will apply
HKFRS 8 from 1 April 2009, but it is not expected
to have a material impact on the number of
reportable segments as well as the manner in which
the segments are reported.
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(iv)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that have been issued but are not
effective for the current year and are not relevant
to the Group
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2.1

v)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008 and May 2009

HKICPA's improvements to HKFRS have been
published in October 2008 and May 2009 but are
not effective for period beginning on 1 April 2008
and have not been early adopted by the Group.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of these amendments but management considers
that the adoption of these amendments would
have no significant impacts to the Group’s financial
statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31 March.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of
an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses (Note 2.7). The results of subsidiaries are accounted
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(b) Transactions and minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions in
connection with the equity interests in subsidiaries as
transactions with equity owners. For purchases of a
subsidiary company’s equity interest not already owned by
the Group from minority interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
being acquired is recognised in equity. For disposals of
a subsidiary’s equity interests owned by the Group to
minority interests, differences between any proceeds
received and the relevant share of net assets of the
subsidiary being disposed are also recognised in equity.

(@) Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment
loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves
is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(c) Associates (Cont’d)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
associated companies are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses (Note 2.7). The results of associated
companies are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of segments operating in other
economic environments.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.4  Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation difference on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available for sale are included in the available-for-sale
reserve in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.4  Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iiiy  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are:

Buildings 2% to 4%
Fixtures and leasehold improvements 8% to 12%
Machinery 10% to 15%

Moulds and tooling 15%
Furniture and computer equipment 15% to 33.33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the income statement.

2.6  Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents costs of construction
of buildings, plants and machinery pending installation
and is stated at cost. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction-in-progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to other property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in Note
2.5.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.8 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises design costs, raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.9 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
the income statement.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance
sheet.

2.11 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.12 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.12 Borrowings (Cont’d)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.14 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

2.15 Employee benefits
(@) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

Group companies operate several pension schemes.
The plans are generally funded through payments to
trustee administered funds. A defined contribution plan
is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due and are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.15 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
() Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments to its employees upon the termination of their
employment or retirement when the employee fulfils
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on
high quality corporate bonds which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liability.

(d)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates a share-based compensation plan. The
fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are exercised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.15 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(e) Other compensation

Other directors’ and employees’ compensations are
recorded as a liability and charged to the income statement
when the Group is contractually obliged or when there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.17 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not considered
to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating
to the sales have been resolved. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.

Revenue is recognised as follows:

(@) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related

receivables is reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
delivery of goods are recorded as receipts in advance.

(b) Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis.
() Management income

Revenue from the provision of management service is
recognised when the service is rendered.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

2.19 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company'’s shareholders.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks including market risk (including currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The ongoing global
financial crisis which happened after mid of 2008 has
resulted in, among others, a lower level of capital market
funding, lower liquidity levels across the banking sector,
and, at times, higher interbank lending rates and very high
volatility in stock and currency markets. The uncertainties
in the global financial markets have led to bank failures
and bank rescues in the United States of America (“USA"),
Western Europe and elsewhere. The global financial crisis
has also led to current or potential recession in major
economies. Indeed the full extent of the impact of the
ongoing financial crisis would be difficult to anticipate or
completely guard against. To address the volatile financial
market, during the year, the Group’s risk management has
focused on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
performance.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong and the PRC
and most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars (“US dollar”) and Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations that are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency. As Hong Kong dollars are
pegged against US dollar, management considers that
the Group is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to Renminbi. Management will continue to monitor
foreign exchange exposure and will take measures to
minimise the currency translation risk. The Group has not
used any financial instruments to hedge against foreign
currency risk as at 31 March 2009. The exchange rate of
Renminbi to foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the Mainland Chinese Government.

At 31 March 2009, if Hong Kong dollars had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the Renminbi with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$3,129,000 higher/lower
(2008: HK$937,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
the net foreign exchange gain/losses on translation of
Renminbi-denominated other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for certain bank deposits, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings
which are primarily issued at variable rates. Therefore, the
Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 March 2009, with all other variables held constant,
if the interest rate had increased/decreased by 50
basis-point, the corresponding increase/decrease in interest
expenses on bank borrowings will result in a net decrease/
increase in the Group's post-tax profit by approximately
HK$2,530,000 (2008: HK$1,672,000).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk

Under the ongoing global financial crisis, debtors of
the Group may be affected by unfavourable economic
conditions and the lower liquidity situation which could in
turn impact their ability to repay the outstanding balance
owed to the Group. Deteriorating operating conditions
for debtors may also have an impact on management’s
cash flow forecasts and assessment of the impairment of
receivables. To the extent that information is available,
management has properly reflected revised estimates
of expected future cash flows in their impairment
assessments.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
mainly arises from financial assets and deposits with bank
and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
the customers, including outstanding trade and other
receivables. For banks and financial institutions, only
independent parties with high credit rating are accepted.

Customers are assessed and rated based on the credit
quality of the customers, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. It performs
periodic credit evaluations/reviews of its customers. Other
receivables are assessed by reference to the historical
information about counterparty default rates. Individual
risk limits are set by management and the utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored. No credit limit was
exceeded during the year, and management does not
expect any significant losses from non-performance by
these relevant parties.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

There is a concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group’s sales are made primarily to few
key customers. As at 31 March 2009, the trade receivables
from five largest customers accounted for approximately
88% (2008: 83%) of the total trade receivables.

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. Transactions in
relation to derivative financial instruments, if any, are only
carried out with financial institutions of high reputation.
The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution.

(©) Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management
which includes maintaining sufficient bank balances and
cash, having available funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit
lines readily available.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(@) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

3.2 EXERER

AEBECEEZABEAREAEEZFEL
SREEELEZRT  URBEREATR
Bl - R REE B SEEE M Wk
FREZBENGEBAREE KA

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
holders, or issue new shares.

REFIFHABEARGE  A5EREHEN
TRERBAZBRE - BETHR -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont’d)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the net gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net bank borrowings divided by total
equity. Net bank borrowings are calculated as total bank
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

The Group's strategy, which was unchanged from prior
year, was to maintain an acceptable net gearing ratio. The
net gearing ratios at 31 March 2009 and 2008 were as
follows:

e MR MR

3 BXKRRERE &)
3.2 EXERER (&)

BITEAEMAR -2 AEEREBEFRTE
B REZEENR - L RRIRITEEFERA
RDEE  SAERTEEFERBEERER
eRREFEYD -

REBZHRBETFNE  AIFRAFFIES
ZRFIBITEELERZRE - RN FRZ
TE N \F=A=+—-AZFRTEEL RN
™

2009 2008

—EENF T N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FAT

Total borrowings (Note 18) fafs s (MsE18) 605,935 405,261

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRReEED

(Note 13) (BI=E13) (641,440) (352,957)

Net bank borrowings RITEEFE (35,505) 52,304
Total equity REmiBE 741,195 675,841
Net gearing ratio FIRITE R X -5% 8%

3.3  Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

3.3 AVEfE

B 5 & WO 7R b e A IR 3K 2 IR DB 1 BR R (E 2
BREBEEROEATE - EREEBN MK
BEAFEZGAERAREORATRENNE
BECESRIARSERMISHERBETE -

131



132

Karrie International Holdings Limited 7B R GRR A7) » Annual Report 2008/09 4F%k

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation for its property, plant and
equipment. The estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management
will increase the depreciation where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives. It will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation expense in future periods.

(b) Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Provisions are applied to receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of
impairment of receivables requires the use of judgment
and estimates. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact the
carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment
of receivable is recognised in the years in which such
estimates have been changed.

4 BERMzETHEE R E

iR B B R T - TR RGBT
2R (TIHE - REEEBER TIEEY
RFEZAREA -

AEBERRELEFNRE - T2 S5H1A

KeBRTEYRFECEEMAEZIREE
EHERFEB 2 AT MEREE WA T

(a) "M% BERREBZEAFH

AEEEEBREME  BENMRBETE T
AERFRARFEER - EARRBBER
BREREERNEZNE BEERBZE
REMRFHET EFHEACERFHIRE
B BEEESRENNEER CERAEL
Z IERBE M E E G Wt S5 MR - BER 2
FHARREGEHZERFHAER - BHZR
AAREEERR T EFHARTERRIELH

%é(}

(b) FEWIRFR 2 EEHRIE

AEBRBRERUIR R Z A5 AT KRB E R ZF
FEMIRRET IR EER - BEFHEEXBRK
B RER N A] RE IR Bl R SR B ¢ B B R UOIR SR AT
TR o Bl R UOR FORE 7 2 1F i i & 4
it BETRMERERERIBERR - AI%E
FAGh T IR & BB AR 2 B WIR K 2 IR
T B MR (B BSR4
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Contd)

(c) Estimated provision for inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

e B ISR R Y R
4 BT EEHEH RAR (2

() fMEETFEXEE

REFEEREZFEMBAFEEZ A ZEF
B —BEMBRLENBRANER R FESHRA
BE R BE B 3R I S A R B AR HURK © BRI U 5 2
tELHIE R b5t - EFRMc e REREMFTA
ZRERRAZEZRGEN G NE c HEARE
FEZREERFE MR

(d) FREH

AEBTE2EZERNAEBRHMAMMEH - 58
EEMAEHRERS  FEELEAHEH - &
—REBBEP  HEXBMAEMI R &
RUBGETHTEE AKERBEHELRE
BRI 2 fE5T - RIBARSE AR’
RAE - M FFEMH 2 REREREAZI LR
ZEBAR - WEZRBEEFELLSFETH
[ 2 PTS B AR T B 24 -
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

(@) Primary reporting format — business segments

At 31 March 2009, the Group is principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sales of computer casings, office
automation products, moulds, plastic and metal parts
(together referred to as “Metal and Plastic Business”)
and provision of electronic manufacturing services (“EMS
Business”).

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting,
the Group has determined that major product segments
be presented as the primary reporting format and
geographical segments as the secondary reporting format.

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2009 are
as follows:

| Statements

5 oER
(a) EXFERR - 2895

RZZFZEAF=A=1T—"HAEEIENEE
ENHEBRING WRAENEER  BE -
PRk BET (GBI A BBER]) kiE
HEFEXRIRK [EFEXRIEHK]) -

WEANRE 2 AT HRE - AEREIRENAE
EEMDMBAERREH A RIAMERD B AR
EHRELAZS -

BE_ZTENF=-A=1+—HEEILzD 3%
I N

2009
—EThEF
Electronic
Metal and manufacturing
plastic services
business business Others Total
AEBE EFEH
E3 KRIE®K Hith aH
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET TET TEx FET
Segment revenues DEUA
Total segment revenue DEUALERER 1,354,059 1,203,650 3,348 2,561,057
Inter-segment revenue D ERREUA (97,131) = = (97,131)
Revenue WA 1,256,928 1,203,650 3,348 2,463,926
Segment results DEPFEE 61,720 (38,712) 3,348 26,356
Finance income B RS U A 10,071
Finance costs BA RSk AN (12,888)
Share of profit of i /N
associated companies Vi A 201
Profit before taxation el 23,740
Taxation TRI8 (3,307)
Profit for the year RNEE i 20,433
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5 ZSHEHR (&)

(@)  Primary reporting format - business segments (a) EXFERNX - EKHI (&)
(Cont’d)
2008
—TTN\F
Electronic
Metal and  manufacturing
plastic services
business business Others Total
heZR BFHE
£ RIER HAtb et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FAET FA&T FAET
Segment revenues D EBUA
Total segment revenue SEBU A 4B %EE 1,419,684 1,478,407 3,007 2,901,098
Inter-segment revenue D EPREUBA (98,124) = = (98,124)
Revenue WA 1,321,560 1,478,407 3,007 2,802,974
Segment results DEPELE 48,127 (24,264) 3,007 26,870
Finance income BT A 14,853
Finance costs BT RAR (20,071)
Profit before taxation B A5 Al ) 21,652
Taxation FiE (8,504)
Profit for the year REEZ R 13,148
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5
(@) Primary reporting format — business segments (a)
(Cont’d)

Other segment items included in the consolidated
income statement are as follows:

DEER (#)
EXRRERR - XBIW ()

Hip A A B EsRe Bn

RAWMT :

2009
—EENE
Electronic
manufacturing
Metal and services
plastic business business Total
EeER EFEE
ES)S RIEHK e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET THERT FH&T
Depreciation e 36,287 20,007 56,294
Amortisation 5 791 386 1,177
Provision for impairment B 5 & EH R X
of trade and other receivables  JHi{E 2 728 - 728
(Write-back of provision)/ PRE R HHTE
provision for obsolete and CEF OB
slow-moving inventories £ (4,246) 2,441 (1,805)
2008
—EENF
Electronic
manufacturing
Metal and services
plastic business business Total
haBR BFEE
E RIEB &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THIT T
Depreciation e 40,534 18,860 59,394
Amortisation e o 557 497 1,054
Provision for impairment H 5 K& E IR K
of trade and other receivables  JFi{E % 774 1,821 2,595
Write-back of provision for [RE M iETF 2%
obsolete and slow-moving 2 [O] 8
inventories (5,193) (6,277) (11,470)
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 ZSHEHR (&)

(@) Primary reporting format - business segments (a) EXFERNX - EBSI (&)
(Cont’d)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2009 and RZZEE

capital expenditure for the year ended are as follows:

NE=ZA=+—"HBZoHREEMNEE
AEREBEZRAILFEZEEERNT

2009
—EENEF

Electronic

Metal and manufacturing
plastic business services business Total

hEER ETrE¥
£S04 KRIEK e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET FHET
Segment assets DERE E 828,897 716,847 1,545,744
Unallocated assets REEDEE 324,103
Total assets EERAE 1,869,847
Segment liabilities DEPBEE 496,632 294,020 790,652
Unallocated liabilities RKEHBEE 338,000
Total liabilities BfERE 1,128,652
Capital expenditures EREH 72,722 41,919 114,641

2008
T N\F

Electronic

Metal and manufacturing
plastic business  services business Total

heBB BEFEHEXE
) RIS A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Segment assets DEREE 827,892 484,307 1,312,199
Unallocated assets RAESEE 344,618
Total assets BERE 1,656,817
Segment liabilities SEaE 367,767 259,133 626,900
Unallocated liabilities rXESBEE 354,076
Total liabilities BE#RE 980,976
Capital expenditures BEXER 107,668 64,461 172,129
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(@) Primary reporting format — business segments
(Cont’d)

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, investments in associated companies,
inventories, trade and other receivables, and cash and
bank balances. Unallocated assets comprise deferred
taxation and land and building in Hong Kong and other
corporate-related assets.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities.
Unallocated liabilities comprise taxation, deferred taxation,
bank loan for corporate use and other corporate-related
liabilities.

Capital expenditures comprise additions to leasehold
land and land use rights (Note 6) and property, plant and
equipment (Note 7). Capital expenditure for the year
ended 31 March 2009 has not included the deposit for
acquisition of land use right which was paid in prior year
(Note 6).

(b) Secondary reporting segments — geographical
segments

The Group's revenues are mainly derived from customers

5 PEER (&)

(a) EXRBERR -X#BoH (&)

"*Bé?ix BREME  HEMRE RBE
RAIZKRE - FE - EFNEMBEYK - KR

EMRTERF - RAOREEBRBRELHE &

BZIHWEEFTREMERR BB EE

DEE %/@%@%@F c RN AFERIEEN
TRIE - EIEFE - RAERREMERRER
ZBfE-

EAREABRABEREL ML AE (M
it6) RWE - WELEE (ME7)  #E-F
ENFZA=T"HALFEZEAERLER
REFCN BELWERE RS (HiE6) -

(b) REHHFLN - HED I

AEBEZWAETEZRERFERR - FE - F

located in Japan, Hong Kong, China, Asia (excluding M (TEEEAR  HERPE) - JEEIM
Japan, Hong Kong, China), North America and Western KRR o
Europe.
2009 2008
—EENEF T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Revenue WA
Japan SN 178,956 252,894
Hong Kong &5 483,769 425,101
China L 612,010 758,569
Asia (excluding Japan, TN (TEEAA
Hong Kong and China) EERTE) 332,569 278,224
North America =M 264,275 284,213
Western Europe PHER 592,347 803,973
Total #E 2,463,926 2,802,974

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the
final destination of shipment is located.

WARB S EE R A ERR DR -
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(b) Secondary reporting segments — geographical
segments (Cont’d)

5 SHEHR (&)

(b) REHZRERRX - HESH (F)

2009 2008
—EENF —ZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Segment assets DEEE
Japan HZAR 2,096 1,251
Hong Kong =5 773,402 787,331
China 2] 1,058,448 819,189
North America =M 15,486 25,912
Western Europe PHER 20,415 23,134
Total “EE 1,869,847 1,656,817
Segment assets are allocated based on the locations of the DESEERIEEEMEME S -
assets.
2009 2008
—EEAF —ETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Capital expenditures BEREA
Hong Kong B 1,228 3,139
China 2] 113,401 168,974
North America =M 12 2
Western Europe [ris] 2 - 14
Total HBE 114,641 172,129

Capital expenditures are allocated based on the locations
of the assets.

BEAZERRBEEEMEI DK -
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6 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
book values are analysed as follows:

6 MHEITHRIMEHLRE

AEBPREE T R i BE ERETRN
REHEFR - REKREFESITHT

2009 2008

—EENF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Net book amount at beginning of the year FYREFE 46,873 47,927
Transfer from deposits paid in prior year FEEffRESEBA 26,400 -
Amortisation bl (1,177) (1,054)
Net book amount at end of the year FEREFE 72,096 46,873
Cost DN 78,587 52,187
Accumulated amortisation 2R (6,491) (5,314)
Net book amount at end of the year FEREFE 72,096 46,873
Leases of 10 to 50 years in Hong Kong BB — HER10E50F 1,036 1,063
Leases of 10 to 50 years in Mainland China FE — HEH10E505F 70,109 44,841
Leases of over 50 years in Mainland China PR — FHERS05 U £ 951 969
72,096 46,873

The leasehold land located in Hong Kong are held under
medium-term leases expiring in June 2047. The leasehold
land located in Mainland China are held under land use
rights of 45 to 57 years expiring in April 2043 to October
2062.

The Group is in the process of applying for the formal
legal title for land use rights with net book value of
HK$14,930,000 (2008: NIL) as at 31 March 2009.

EREECHETHIIREEZE —TONEF ALY
mZPHRHEEMRE - EPBEZHEL IR
BERPN+AEATEF (AEE-_FTH=%F
MAZ-TXN_FTALL) 2 EREME
=

AREBNERBNR _ETNF=A=+—HIk
ME;${E14,930,00087C (T N\F : &) 2+
HifE AR 2 ESORRFBRE -
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7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YE- -BERSHE
(@) Group (a) =&A£f
Furniture
Leasehold Moulds and
Construction- improvements and  computer
Buildings  in-progress  and fixtures ~ Machinery tooling  equipment Total
BRR
BF ERIR NEEE K#E HEARIZ ERRE B#
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T
At 31 March 2007 “ZEtF=f=1-H
Cost A 158,139 12,696 61,759 355,981 24,900 41,880 655,355
Accumulated depreciaion 2T E (29,314) - (33,742) 2n1,721) (18,363) (33,065) (386,205)
Net book amount REFE 128,825 12,696 28,017 84,260 6,537 8,815 269,150
Year ended 31 March 2008 HZ-ZEN\&
ZR=t-HLEEE
Opening net book amount ~ E3¥IIREFE 128,825 12,696 28,017 84,260 6,537 8,815 269,150
Additions NE 54,359 30,671 18,738 56,093 3,602 8,666 172,129
Transfer in/(out) EA /(1) 11,714 (13,757) 2,043 = = = =
Disposals HE = (2,944) (116) (484) - (13) (3,557)
Depreciation bl (11,332) - (7,716) (32,299) (1,985) (6,062) (59,394)
Closing net book amount HRRAFE 183,566 26,666 40,966 107,570 8,154 11,406 378,328
At 31 March 2008 —BEN\E=A=1+-H
Cost AR 224212 26,666 82,424 407,518 28,383 50,135 819,338
Accumulated depreciation  ZEME (40,646) - (41,458) (299,948) (20,229) (38,729) (441,010)
Net book amount REFE 183,566 26,666 40,966 107,570 8,154 11,406 378,328
Year ended 31 March 2009 EZ=-ZZh&
SREt-RALEE
Opening net book amount ~ ER¥IIRE (& 183,566 26,666 40,966 107,570 8,154 11,406 378,328
Additions NE 38,110 10,558 20,381 36,422 3,509 5,661 114,641
Transfer in/(out) g /(4) 11,150 (11,150) = = = = =
Disposals e (359) - (215) (288) = (81) (943)
Depreciation il (5423) = (7,440) (34,701) (2,474) (6,256) (56,294)
Closing net book amount ~ E3RIREF(E 227,044 26,074 53,692 109,003 9,189 10,730 435,732
At 31 March 2009 “BEANE=A=+-H
Cost A 273,113 26,074 102,590 424,905 24,553 55,608 906,843
Accumulated depreciaion 2T E (46,009) = (48,898) (315,902) (15,364) (44,878) @nan
Net book amount REFE 227,044 26,074 53,692 109,003 9,189 10,730 435,732
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont’d)

(@) Group (Cont’d)
Depreciation expense of HK$53,907,000 (2008:
HK$56,893,000) and HK$2,387,000 (2008:

HK$2,501,000) has been charged to cost of sales and
general and administrative expenses, respectively.

(b)  The Group’s interests in buildings at their net book

7 WE- BERRHE @)

(a) #A&H (&)

#r & & F53,907,00008 Tt (ZZE & N\ F:
56,893,000/ 7T) %&%2,387,000/8 T (ZZZ )\
12,501,000 70) E D RIET AHER A 8
M—B&ITHRER -

(b) AEEAEBFZRAREREFEIN

values are analysed as follows: R
2009 2008
—ETAE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Buildings in Hong Kong, held on REBRBETF
leases between 10 to 50 years 10E50F v HE 2,096 2,173
Buildings in Mainland China, held on RARFEEF
leases between 10 to 50 years 102502 HHE 222,475 178,866
Buildings in Mainland China, held on R BRFEET
leases over 50 years ZiBS0F 2 HE 2,473 2,527
227,044 183,566

8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

8 MRHEBARZKRE

Company
b NN

2009 2008

—EFhE —ZEENFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

THxT T

Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETRIR D Z A ANE 193,285 193,285
Less: Provision for impairment of B RHTB AR

investment in subsidiaries "B RBEER (3,087) (3,087)

190,198 190,198

Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE LBt /B 2 B bR X 306,409 310,328

496,607 500,526

Amounts due from subsidiaries represent funding by
the Company to the respective subsidiaries and are

denominated in HK dollars.

AN AR B REN -

EUHBRRIRFARRARBTEREHMBL
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8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 8 MNMEBARZERE (#)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March RZZBEZNF=ZA=+T—HXEMNBRRIZE
2009 are: ¥
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid-in
Name types of legal entity place of operation share capital Interest held
ML R
a1 EEERER FTEXRREELH ERTREHKRE REEE
Karrie International The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, the Ordinary (i) US$100 100%
(B.V.L.) Limited limited liability company British Virgin Islands EBAR() 100 7T
EBRAES REER  RBRXES
BREFEAR
Castfast Industrial Hong Kong, limited Plastic injection moulding Ordinary HK$100 100%
Company Limited liability company operations, Hong Kong LER1008 T
SEBBRALARADT EBBEREMAA BRIELE  HE Non-voting deferred (i) =
HK$990,200
ERERETMR)
990,200/ 7T
Castfast Industrial Hong Kong, limited Manufacture of computer Ordinary HK$100 100%
(Yan Tien) Limited liability company casings, office L1008
EREREZBREK BEBEREMAA automation products, Non-voting deferred (ii) -
BRAE moulds and plastic and HK$10,000
metal parts; provision of BT ZREETRRI)
electronic manufacturing 10,000/ 7T
services; property holding
and investment holding,
Mainland China
HESHINF  WAENEEM
RARZEBR & B -
REEFERRIRE
RAENEREERR 78
Castfast Magnetics Hong Kong, limited Manufacture of plastic Ordinary HK$10 100%
Moulding Limited liability company injection moulds and metal LER105T

REUETER
BRRA

BEAREMEAR

stamping dies, Hong Kong

RETRRAREBTE
BA &R

Non-voting deferred (ii)

HK$30,000
B FRETR)
30,0007
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8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 8

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

RBRRA2RE (&)

Particulars of
issued/paid-in

Name types of legal entity place of operation share capital Interest held
B 3L i B
£8 EERRER TEXRREELH ERTREARE BEREE
Dongguan Yanxun Mainland China, limited Manufacture of computer casings, ~ Paid-in capital (iii) 85%
Electronics Company liability company video cassette housings, HK$4,500,000
Limited REAREEDA office automation products B #E (i)
REREAETAERAR and plastic and metal parts, 4,500,000 T
Mainland China
BEBRIR - BEWIR
WAENEERRBBR
LB F
Grand King Trading Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Inactive Ordinary HK$1 100%
REEHHERDA liability company EEER LRR1IBT
BEEREERAT
Grandway Investment Hong Kong, limited Investment holding, Ordinary HK$1 100%
(Group) Limited lability company Mainland China TERIAT
RERE (RE) BERREMLRT REER - FE
BRAT
Hong Kong Hung Hing Hong Kong, limited Manufacture and sale of Ordinary HK$100 100%
Metal Manufacturing liability company metal parts, Hong Kong LEAR1008TT
Company Limited BERAREREARA RERHECBEH - Non-voting deferred (ii) -
BT BRM BE HK$250,000
BRAA] BRFERETAR)
250,000 7T
Jiangsu Jiayida Mainland China, limited Manufacture of office Paid-in capital (iv) 100%
Electronic Technologies liability company automation products and US$13,700,000
Company Limited REEREELNH provision of electronic B AER(v)

THRHEEE TR
BRAA

manufacturing services,
Mainland China

HERNENEEMR
RUEFTFTERRIRE -
i

13,700,000 7T
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Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

e MR MR

RBRRA2RE (&)

Particulars of
issued/paid-in

Name types of legal entity place of operation share capital Interest held
B 3L i B
£8 EERRER TEXRREELH ERTREARE BEREE
Jiang Su Castfast Mainland China, limited Manufacture of office Paid-in capital (v) 100%
Electronic Technologies liability company automation products and US$18,600,000
Company Limited REBREFLR provision of electronic EHER(W)
TEHEES TR manufacturing services, 18,600,000 T
BRATE Mainland China
BERREXRERR
REEFERRIRE
hE
Kar Sharp Development Hong Kong, limited Inactive Ordinary HK$1 100%
Limited liability company Tmex LTERIET
RHERARAA BEEREERAT
Kar Top Investment Hong Kong, limited Inactive Ordinary HK$1 100%
Limited liability company Tmex LERIBT
RAREBRAR BERREMLRT
Karrie Creation Limited Hong Kong, limited Inactive Ordinary HK$1,000 100%
EMEIEER AR liability company TR EEAR1,0008 T
EREREMAR Non-voting deferred (ii -
HK$1,000,000
ERFREETR)
1,000,000/ 7T
Karrie Industrial Hong Kong, limited Manufacture and sale of Ordinary HK$1,000 100%

Company Limited
EHNERBRAT

liability company
BEAREMERT

video cassette housings,
sale of computer casings,
office automation products,
plastic and metal parts, metal
stamping dies, plastic injection
moulds, Hong Kong

BE RHERTBIIR ¢
HEBRIR  PRE
XEER EBREE
B AERAREE
HEEE - BB

E®A%1,0008 T

Non-voting deferred (ii) -
HK$5,000,000

B ZREETTR(I)
5,000,000 T
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8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 8
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and

RBRRA2RE (&)

Particulars of
issued/paid-in

Name types of legal entity place of operation share capital Interest held
B 3L i B
£ EERRER TEXBREELH ERTREARE BEREE
Karrie Investment Hong Kong, limited Inactive Ordinary HK$10 100%
Holdings Limited lability company TmeF LRR10ETT
SMREBERARAE BABEAREELNA Non-voting deferred (ii) =
HK$2
BRFRETR)
28T
Karrie Logistic Company Hong Kong, limited Investment holding, Ordinary HK$2 100%
Limited lability company Mainland China ETER2ET
EHRERDA BEERRAERAT REER - HHE
Karrie Technologies Hong Kong, limited Manufacturing and sales of Ordinary 100%
Company Limited liability company plastic parts, sales of metal HK$30,000,000
EMRRBEER AR BEBEREERA stamping dies and plastic Lk
injection moulds and 30,000,000/ 7T
provision of electronic
manufacturing services,
Hong Kong
HERHEBBEI
HESBPERAR
TERA  RiRft
BEFEXAIRE
BB
Karpo Technologies Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding, Ordinary HK$1,000 100%
REREEBRAR liability company Mainland China LiEA% 1,000/ 7T
BERAREREARA REER - FE Non-voting deferred (ii
HK$1,000,000
BERFEETR) -
1,000,000 T
Kartech Investment Hong Kong, limited Inactive Ordinary HK$1 100%
Group Limited liability company Emex LTERIAT

RERELRHE
BRAF

BEARAMEAR
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e MR MR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

RBRRA2RE (&)

Particulars of
issued/paid-in

Name types of legal entity place of operation share capital Interest held
B 3L i B
£8 EERRER TEXRREELH ERTREARE BEREE
Karwin Electronic Mainland China, limited Inactive Paid-in capital 100%
Technologies (Suzhou) liability company g F S (vi) Nil
Company Limited FEEREEAA BB A (vi)
FETTRE (BM) &
BRAT
Karwin Engineering Hong Kong, limited Design, manufacture and sale Ordinary HK$10 100%
Company Limited liability company of computer casings and office LiER1058T
FERRIEERARA BREREMRAR automation products; Non-voting deferred (ii) -
sale of plastic and metal parts, HK$100
metal stamping dies, plastic ERFREETR)
injection moulds, Hong Kong 10078 7T
it BEREEERIRK
i NES T
HELBRTBHM -
cEAREEAR
FEEE B
Karwin Technologies The United States of America,  Provision of consultancy services Ordinary US$100 100%
Incorporation limited liability company to group companies, the EBR1005ETT
ZBEBEREAARA United States of America
REBRRE TAEERA -
EH
Kings Dragon Investment Hong Kong, limited Investment holding, Ordinary HK$2 100%
(HK) Limited liability company Hong Kong ERR2ET
YERE (BE) BERARALEAT RERK B
BRAA
Kings Horse Investment Hong Kong, limited Property holding, Ordinary HK$10 100%
Limited liability company Hong Kong Lm0
HEREERRA BEBEREMERA BENE B Non-voting deferred (ii) =

HK$10,000
EI ZREERR(I)
10,0008 7T
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e MR MR

8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued/paid-in

Name types of legal entity place of operation share capital Interest held
B 3L i B
£8 EEBRER TEXRREELH ERTRESRE BEREE
Kwong Hing Computer Hong Kong, limited Property holding, Ordinary HK$100 100%
Metallic Components liability company Mainland China L@R100% T
Limited BABEAREELNA BEME &+ Non-voting deferred (i) =
EREK S BR HK$1,250,010
BRAA BRFEETR)
1,250,010t
Sagem Karrie Hong Kong, limited Provision of electronic Ordinary 60%
Technologies (Hong Kong) liability company manufacturing services, HK$110,000,000
Company Limited BEBAEREREAR Hong Kong LAk
RALERE (BE) REEFERNIRE - 110,000,000/ 7T
BRAA] 30
TIS Karrie Technologies Hong Kong, limited Inactive Ordinary HK$1 100%
(Hong Kong) liability company Emex TEBRIAT
Company Limited EREREMEAA
RERME (BE) BRAA
= & Mainland China, limited Property holding, Paid-in capital (vii) 100%
BRAA liability company Mainland China HK$24,000,0000
hEAREEAF RAENE  THE E&E R (vii)

24,000,000/ 7T
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The shares of Karrie International (BVI) Limited are held
directly by the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are
held indirectly.

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group.
These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
dividends, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding
up unless a sum of HK$200,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the relevant companies to holders of the ordinary shares.

Dongguan Yanxun Electronics Company Limited (“DYECL")
is a co-operative joint venture established in Mainland China
with an operating period of 15 years up to May 2010.
Pursuant to an agreement dated 24 October 1995, the
Mainland China joint venture partner of DYECL (the “joint
venture partner”) has agreed to waive its entitlement to share
the profit of DYECL in return for a pre-determined annual
fee. Upon expiry of the operating period, the Group and the
joint venture partner are entitled to a distribution of assets in
accordance with their respective equity interests.

Jiangsu Jiayida Electronic Technologies Company Limited is
a wholly owned foreign enterprise established in Mainland
China with an operating period of 50 years up to April 2058.

Jiang Su Castfast Electronic Technologies Company Limited
is a wholly owned foreign enterprise established in Mainland
China with an operating period of 50 years up to January
2058.

Karwin Electronic Technologies (Suzhou) Company Limited is
a wholly owned foreign enterprise established in Mainland
China with an operating period of 50 years up to July 2057.

RERmEETEXHAMRAA is a wholly owned foreign
enterprise established in Mainland China with an operating
period of 25 years up to 18 February 2030.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any
time during the year ended 31 March 20009.

All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have financial
accounting year end dated 31 December in accordance with
the local statutory requirements, which is not coterminous
with the Group. The consolidated financial statements of the
Group were prepared based on the management accounts
of these subsidiaries for the twelve months ended 31 March
2009.

8

2 o=
EilE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

e B ISR R Y R
REBATZRE (#)

Karrie International (B.V.l.) LimitedZ f&{n J3 4~
DRIEEEA - RAHELF 2B H AR M
®iBA -

IS ERECERMOWIERASEMER - 5L
BhEKRERE TEEHIZRE
ARAEBERHRELTERREREZAEBR
200,000,000,000/8 7T : &AL SR M EED =
EADIK °

RERAETARLA ([REMEAL) TIRFE
Y ZBERE  HEREMATHF N_F—
TERAEM - RE—OR-NANAF+A=T
MAERELHE  REBAZTTEBAREN
RENZR=MAGEH 2 s - UIRIR—IBTERE
ZEE o B S MR IR - ARERPHTEBA
AESREERMO B EE -

THETEE FHHARAT D —REERT 2
BRANELE  HEZBRARTE K_F
B /\EM AR °

THREETREERAR D —RPEKIEE
BANEDLE  HEEHMBRARL+F R-ZH
NE—AEm °

REEFRE (BMN) BRAR T —RAP BRI
REBAIEDLE HEXHRAD T4 R=
TRAEFEAER -

REmBETEXERARD—RPEKIEE
BANEDLE  HEXEHMBRA—_+THFE R-F
=ZF_A+TN\HEm®m -

REZE_ZTZNF=ZA=T—HILFEAZHE
REHEEAEETIERER -

RREHERRE - ART BRI KB QA
ZMBE/KBHY /T _A=1—H  EAKEY
P—B - AEE 2R MBERRIZBUESZHBR
AEHE_ETAF=A=+—HILTZ@ARAZE
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e MR MR

9  INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED 9 REEQAFZRE
COMPANIES
2009 2008
—EENF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETARID 2 BAE 12,400 12,400
Less: Provision for impairment B RELEE (12,000) (12,000)
400 400
Share of profit of associated companies JEIEHEE R A2 m A 201 -
601 400
Share of net assets SEMEEFE

Beginning of the year =) 400 -
Investment in an associated company REtENRZIKE = 400
Share of profit of associated companies JE(G B E A R 2w A 201 -
End of the year FK 601 400
Due to associated companies JE 1T B & A BIR N (211) (811)

The outstanding balances with the associated companies
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand, and are denominated in HK dollars.

Particulars of the associated companies held by the Group n

at 31 March 2009 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

A

\\

N
/N
AN

Principal activities and

AL E R

A AREEZIRKAEER - T&
ME - WEBRKEER  RABEREML -

—EENFA=T - RAKRERAZHE
AlZ BB

Particulars of

Name types of legal entity place of operation issued share capital Interest held
a1 A L 3t B
a8 EEERER TEXRREENN ERITRE REEE
NEC Nagano Karrie Hong Kong, limited Inactive Ordinary 30%
Electronics Limited (i) liability company i HK$20,000,000
REBAERENET BEBERALE AR EEmR
BBRAR) 20,000,000/ 7T
Xiongguan Precision Hong Kong, limited Trading of metal product, China Ordinary 40%
Metal Product Company liability company KEneHmES 3 HK$1,000,000
Limited (i) BRABRAMLRA Rl
EBRELLH® 1,000,000/ 7T
AR AF()
Note: iz :
(i) NEC Nagano Karrie Electronics Limited and Xiongguan (i) EHAARERENEFERATLNEEREEZE LS

Precision Metal Product Company Limited are indirectly held

by the Company.

HamER AR 2 RN TIARRREERE -
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10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 10 ZRERS>EZERmIA
CATEGORY
Group
AEH
Loans and receivables
B K EWIR
2009 2008
—EENF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHT
Assets BE
At 31 March =A=+—H
Trade and other receivables (Note 11) B o5 MEMEWRRR (BIEE11) 470,701 553,538
Deposits (Note 11) e (fFEE11) 14,396 24,018
Cash and bank balances (Note 13) W& MIR1T6EF (B5E13) 641,440 353,140
1,126,537 930,696

Financial liabilities

Bk aE
2009 2008
—EZhEF —EENFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT T
Liabilities aE
At 31 March =A=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 17) B 5 REMBERRK (FE17) 499,061 553,744
Bank borrowings (Note 18) IR1TEE (KIFE18) 605,935 405,261
Amount due to associated companies
(Note 9) FEATEE 2N BIRE (B9EE9) 211 811
1,105,207 959,816
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10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 10 REJI>EZ2EMIA (&)
CATEGORY (Cont’d)
Company
RAFE]
Loans and receivables
BERREWE
2009 2008
—EZNE —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Assets BE
At 31 March =A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 8)  FEUHIEB ATIEZ (Fi:E8) 306,409 310,328
Cash and bank balances (Note 13) W& FIR176EF (B5E13) 382 428
306,791 310,756

Financial liabilities

BisaE
2009 2008
—2EhE —2ENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FiET
Liabilities =E
At 31 March =RA=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 17) B 5 REAMEMNRR (FisE17) 2,106 4,244
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e MR MR

11  TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,

11 ESZEWRKRFR AR -®ZER
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES H it P& YL R X
Group Company
AEE ¥iN/N|
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEZAE —EENFE —EENEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TEx FETT
Trade receivables B 5 EWR I 430,161 441,839 - -
Other receivables H b fE LR F 52,365 122,796 - =
482,526 564,635 - -
Less: Provision for B B 5 MEHA
impairment of trade JEH IR TR
and other receivables BB (11,825) (11,097) = =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 470,700 553538 - -
Prepayments TEfT K 3,453 4,598 335 200
Deposits e 14,396 24,018 - -
17,849 28,616 335 200
488,550 582,154 335 200

The Group generally grants credit periods ranging from 30
to 90 days. Aging analysis of trade and other receivables is

AEE-—RETEFPZEHIH30BE0H - &

7 R EMERIRIRE DT

as follows:
2009 2008
—EENE —BENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
0 to 90 days 0%£90H 474,966 547,193
91 to 180 days 91%180H 4,848 11,236
181 to 360 days 1812360H 1,059 3,479
Over 360 days 360H LA £ 1,653 2,727
482,526 564,635

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables approximate their fair

values.

B ZRWIRR - AR - RE M HE MR UIRSK

2 RE (B EEE A @M -
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11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 11 EZFEWER AR BER
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Hbh BRI (&)
(Cont’d)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other AEBZE S RAEMBRIRKEEIN TG
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: REBAL
2009 2008
—EZhEF —EENFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A R BUIR K
— HK dollar — B 11,497 18,002
— US dollar — =TT 415,713 427,954
— Singapore dollar — 2K 1,061 1,304
— Renminbi — ANR# 54,255 117,375
482,526 564,635
Movement in the provision for impairment of trade and Bk EMBURIRFUREREE 2 SEHWT -
other receivables is as follows:
2009 2008
—EEhEF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Beginning of the year == )] 11,097 8,502
Provision for impairment of receivables FE LR ZOR B ZEE
(included in general and (BERREE—RE
administrative expenses) THER) 728 2,595
End of the year FE 11,825 11,097

The creation and release of provision for impairment
of receivables have been included in general and
administrative expense in the income statement. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

FITSERRAE T RS

The directors are of the opinion that adequate provision

for uncollectible trade and other receivables
made in the financial statements.

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due
are not considered as impaired except for customers which

are in unexpected difficult economic situations.

has been

HERERKIER 2 RZMEHEC BREERR
RP—BEITRER - EEERP PR ZH
BM-REERBPEZWOEIINRSEME - &
EZER  TREDZESERIRREELRS

BEOR=EAZE 5 REIRR TR SEE
AR - BRI B RIRE 2 18 YR 5K
EHRHRERBIBRCEFBRA -

2 B g A
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11 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

As of 31 March 2009, trade receivables of HK$54,582,000
(2008: HK$45,865,000) were past due but not impaired.
These relates to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The aging of
these trade receivables are as follows:

e MR MR

11 BEZERIKRR - BAX - BER
H At R WUR TR (47)

N\ZTFNF=ZA=1t—0 B5BRIERR
54,582,000/ 7T (2008 : 45,865,000/ 7T) &
E@MEWREE - L FHEBY RS ERKITR
BRREFCHZBILER - WEHHRIIR
KRB DT -

2009 2008

—EENF —EENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHET

1 to 90 days 0%90H 49,143 43,191
91 to 180 days 91£180H 4,209 1,983
181 to 360 days 181F2360H 487 201
Over 360 days 3608 A = 743 490
54,582 45,865

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables stated above. The Group
did not hold any collateral as security.

The credit quality of trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired has been assessed by reference to the
historical information about counterparty default rates.
The existing counterparties do not have significant defaults
in the past.

RBER  EERRZ&ZRAER LA EIKK
o AN mE REMERIRR 2 IREE -
AEBEREHAEMAERER ZERR -

BREBEXEPHERXHEZEWIRK - BN
R BHEREBEBRIERZEEERIEL
& BRZEFERELAERN IR -
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a5 AL =
e EH RN E
12 INVENTORIES 12 78
2009 2008
—EThE —ET\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tl T
Raw materials VR 118,066 128,689
Work-in-progress F BN M 37,974 38,586
Finished goods K 71,022 97,077
227,062 264,352

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$1,912,962,000 (2008:
HK$2,256,203,000).

During the year, the Group has written-back provision for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories by an amount of

approximately HK$1,805,000 (2008: HK$11,470,000).

13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

FEXAERAERITINABEEXREAZ &
8 41,912,962,00008 Tt (=— & & )\ F:
2,256,203,000/7T) °

REBRAFEOERE R SHETEER
2 & %8 #) 51,805,000 T (ZEZT N\ F:
11,470,000 7T) ©

13 BERBTER

Group Company
AEE AAFE

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EZNF —EENF —EENF —ZEENFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET TETT
Cash at bank and on hand #$R1TFZ NIRE 209,290 73,880 382 428
Short-term bank deposits %8 B38R7T1E 5K 432,150 279,260 = -
641,440 353,140 382 428

Maximum exposure FERR
to credit risk 2 R EERIE 641,440

353,140 382 428
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13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Contd)

Cash and bank balances were denominated in the
following currencies:

13

BERBRITER (&)

Be MRITEF AT EE REL

Group Company
rEH PN

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF —EEBNF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT FExT FET
HK dollar oo 10,394 14,519 382 428
US dollar =TT 506,341 303,693 - -
Renminbi AR 115,413 13,922 - -
Singapore dollar 2 i & 8,986 20,697 — -
Others Hifb 306 309 - =
641,440 353,140 382 428

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits,
with maturity ranging from 1 to 3 months, was 0.79%
(2008: 2.56%) per annum during the year ended 31
March 2009. Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates.

BE_ZZNF=ZA=+—BLEFER 3
BR=ERAZERRITFERZERFMNERR

0.79%

WAAE B RITIF K

—EENLF :2.56%) °

RITIE T
RIET B EHH -

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and ARERERME  RELREFEMHE
cash equivalent represents:
Group Company
rEH AN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF —ZEENF —EENF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET FET FHET
Cash and bank balances WE MIRTTETF 641,440 353,140 382 428
Bank overdrafts RITEX = (183) - -
641,440 352,957 382 428
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14 SHARE CAPITAL 14 R
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
BHEE H{E R EB [EXiE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
3F FHET T FET
Authorised: YETERLAN -
Ordinary shares LR E&R
of HK$0.1 each HEE 10781 800,000 80,000 800,000 80,000
Issued and BETR
fully paid: BRI
Ordinary shares TR TR
of HK$0.1 each A 10781
Beginning of the year F 1) 577,198 57,720 412,284 41,228
Repurchase of share 1% 15 [E1fE (100) (10) - -
Rights issue of shares BEITHPAZ 2 & D - - 164,914 16,492
End of the year FK 577,098 57,710 577,198 57,720

Note (i) During the year, the Company repurchased 100,000 shares
of its own shares through purchases on the Stock Exchange
(2008: Nil). Such shares were cancelled following the
repurchases and the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The
total amount paid to repurchase the shares amounting to
approximately HK$41,000 (2008: Nil) has been deducted
from retained earnings.

BEE() ANFR - AQ A FEE R B8 E100,0000% (==
TNF ) c HIRPDRBERIBEIEHEKEBEDS
BITRAHRE B AEE - RELfTEHMNZ
LEM41,0008 T (ZEENE : #) RIERE

R -
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15 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme in May
2002, under which it may grant options to employees of
the Group (including executive directors of the Company)
and other third parties to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal
value of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time excluding for this purpose any shares issued
on the exercise of the options. The exercise price would
be determined by the Company’s board of directors and
should at least be the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the options,
(i) an average closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the options, and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares of HK$0.1 each.

No options have been granted to employees and directors
of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2009
(2008: Nil).

All share options granted under the aforementioned
scheme but not exercised as at 12 September 2008 were
cancelled pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a
special general meeting of the Company on 12 September
2008. The fair value as at grant date on the remaining
unvested share options as at the date of cancellation has
been charged to the income statement during the year.

e MR MR

15 EERRAE

ARARR _ZEZ_F 0 ARA —EMBRET
g ABEAASREZEE (BRAARZH
TER) RE=ZFRUBREAERELALQF
ZB - ERZUARREREHRTRAR
B (TERRITERREMETZRN) 30%
RR - ZERETEESHARRIZESE
BEE  MOARRBBRORBRERTH 2 WM
B: (NEXRTERZENAERISAARAF
Betn 2 FEWHE + KA R < EES
107 - =ZFHEARSERE -

AAFBE_TENF=A=T—"HBILFE
A ERRELREERIERE (TN :
&) -

FARE LSRN —FEZENFAA+TZAK
HmMEARITEZEBREER T NFALAT
“HEZBRBRRAEBBEBRERT AT
B o REEHEK - AR L A BAMARETEZHR
BB Z A TFEDFARFE ZEHERA ©
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15 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

Details of movement of share options under the share

15 BR#E &)
HERESZCERENBRE_SETNE=A

option scheme during the year ended 31 March 2009 = +t—RIEFEZEEHFE -
were:
Number of shares
BREHE
Lapsed/
Exercised  cancelled
Exercise Beginning during during End
Date of grant Exercise period price of year  theyear the year of year
FEE  HRRL
Rt AE TEHR TEER £4 BT BRAXX 34
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 '000 '000
7t F F T T
22 May 2002 22 May 2002 to 21 May 2012 1.230 105.850 - (105.850) -
—TTF “ZT_FRR-TZHE
AA-tZH “T-—_fhA-t-H
1 November 2002 1 January 2003 to 1.560  2,720.345 - (2,720.345) -
i R = 31 October 2012
“ZT=5-f-RZF
—E-_#%tA=t-H
1 December 2003 1 January 2006 to 2.340  7,574.626 - (7,574.626) -
“EE=F+-"A—H 30 November 2013
e
“Z—=f+—-A=tH
27 April 2004 1 January 2005 1.790  2,112.766 - (2,112.766) =
“TTWmE to 26 April 2014
MA=++H “ZTRF-R-A%
“E-MEMA=1RH
1 February 2005 1 January 2006 to 2.980 4,847.930 - (4,847.930) -
e T S = 31 January 2015
—ZTE-R-RBE
“E-R%-A=t—H
7 February 2005 1 July 2005 to 6 February 2015 3.160  9,949.900 - (9,949.900) -
“ZTRF_ALA “ZTRFLA-RAE
—“Z-A%ZAA
27,311.417 - (27,311.417) =
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15 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

Details of movement of share options under the share

e MR MR

15 BR#E &)
HEBRESZZBREANBE ST N\F=

option schemes during the year ended 31 March 2008 A=+—RHIEFEZE2EFIE :
were:
Number of shares
EREHA
Lapsed as a
Exercised result of
Exercise Beginning during termination of End
Date of grant Exercise period price of year  Adjustment the year  employment of year
AEE ARELE
R B TEHR TRER E4) HE BiTE  BAXK FE
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 ‘000
BT T T T T i
22 May 2002 22 May 2002 to 1.230 100 5.850 - - 105.850
e S5 i = 21 May 2012
“ZT_FRA-TZRZE
—Z-—f7A-+-H
1 November 2002 1 January 2003 to 1.560 3,020 150.345 - (4500 2,720.345
“ZE-5+-A-A 31 October 2012
“TT-F-f-AZ
“B-"HtTA=1-H
1 December 2003 1 January 2006 to 2.340 7,716 418.626 - (560)  7,574.626
“EZ=F+-A-H 30 November 2013
“TTRF-A-RAZ
—2-=f#1t-A=tH
27 April 2004 1 January 2005 to 1.790 2,896 116.766 = (900)  2,112.766
—TENEF 26 April 2014
MA=t+A “TTRE-A-AZ
“Z-MERAZFRA
1 February 2005 1 January 2006 to 2.980 4,620 270.270 - (42.34)  4,847.930
“TTRFE-A—H 31 January 2015
“EEF-A-RAZ
“Z-1%¥-A=1-H
7 February 2005 1 July 2005 to 3.160 11,400 549.900 = (2,000)  9,949.900
“ZTTRE-AtH 6 February 2015
“ZTRFLA-AZE
“Z-1F-AKA

29,752 1,511.757 = (3,952.34)  27,311.417
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16 OTHER RESERVES 16 Hftf##E
(@  Group (a) A&H
Capital  Share-based
Share Capital  redemption compensation  Translation
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
5 HREXf
R aE pN BERE <HeRE BERE aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr ThL TAL FHL THL TAL
Balance at 1 April 2007 “TERLEMA-AYER 87,816 5,900 449 13,340 - 107,505
Rights issue of shares BB B1D 105,198 - - - - 105,198
Employee share option scheme EERRE:E
- value of employee services -EERKEZEE - = - 1,079 = 1,079
Transfer to retained earnings BRELMEZRBET
upon lapse of share options - - - (1,456) - (1,456)
Balance as at 31 March 2008 A =
e 193,014 5,900 449 12,963 - 212,326
Balance at 1 April 2008 “TT\EMA-AzEH 193,014 5,900 449 12,963 - 212306
Employee share option scheme g BEERkIESE
- value of employee services - EER%BE - - - 337 - 337
Transfer to retained earnings BRERE /A%
upon cancellation/lapse of TBERE T
share options - - - (13,300) - (13,300)
Repurchase of share fRinEIEE - - 10 - = 10
Curreny translation differences  SMNE#BEZZE - - - - 375 375
Balance as at 31 March 2009 “EENF=A=1-H
e 193,014 5,900 459 - 375 199,748
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16 Htu#E (&)

16 OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)

(b) Company (b) ZA&2AT
Capital Share-based
Share redemption Contributed compensation
premium reserve surplus reserve Total
Ex DR A3
R RE BE#E BABH ZHeRE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT THT THT THL
Balance at 1 April 2007 “SRLFENA-B &R 87,816 449 193,185 13,340 294,790
Rights issue of shares BITHR 2 H 105,198 = = = 105,198
Employee share option scheme (& B AR 2
— value of employee services - EERBERE - - - 1,079 1,079
Transfer to retained earnings BEREAEMEZREEF
upon lapse of share options - - - (1,456) (1,456)
Balance as at 31 March 2008 “EEN\F=A=1—H
2 ek 193,014 449 193,185 12,963 399,611
Balance at 1 April 2008 “TTNEFNA—B &% 193,014 449 193,185 12,963 399,611
Employee share option scheme (& & f&ER%IE: T2l
- value of employee services —EERBZEE = = = 337 337
Transfer to retained earnings BIRERUE, A%
upon cancellation/lapse of MEERE &
share options - - - (13,300) (13,300)
Repurchase of share Rin e - 10 - - 10
Balance as at 31 March 2009 “ETHAE=A=1—H
2 ek 193,014 459 193,185 - 386,658

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject
to the condition that the company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium

account.

REERE-NN—FRRER (BE) - #A
AR TIRER - BRI R EIEG)AR
H(NEBEZ AR

REITREXMEHEE
BESEEAMPINEBRLEEEITHRANR KL

AIRRBAAEM X

Bt 3t 8

BEtHEE

NP » IRBARRIEH DK ©
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17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Aging analysis of trade and bills payables, accruals and

17 BEZREMEMIRR
B 5 EMAIRARRE - Bt BARE AR IR

other payables is as follows: RZIRERDITIAT
Group Company
AEE ARAFE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF —EENF —EENF —ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT TET THETT
0 to 90 days 0%90H 283,603 323,818 - 10
91 to 180 days 912 180H 12,903 20,993 - —
181 to 360 days 181%2360H 376 4,150 - —
Over 360 days 3608 A £ 1,714 2,418 - -
298,596 351,379 - 10
Accrual for rent charges Hez i8R 17,235 15,133 = =
Accrual for purchase of BERTEEZ
fixed assets TaR 46,243 52,374 - —
Salaries and staff welfare  Ef#HEREILZ
payable =Xl 25,888 16,802 - —
Others HEib 111,099 118,056 2,106 4,234
200,465 202,365 2,106 4,234
499,061 553,744 2,106 4,244

The fair values of the Group's trade and bills payables

approximate their carrying value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills

AEBZESRMNIRRARER 2 AFEERRK

B EARAT °

AEBZzEFRNERNBRZIREENK TS

payables are denominated in the following currencies: B REBN
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
HK dollar B 62,879 79,093
US dollar ETT 182,585 232,654
Renminbi AR 51,200 34,959
Euro & Z& 1,206 3,066
Japanese Yen Hot 550 692
Others Hi 176 915
298,596 351,379
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17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd) 17 EBSZREMENIKRR (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other RNEE 2 EFTE R K& E A FE IR 302 1R E E A
payables are denominated in the following currencies: TG REA -
2009 2008
—EEAE  —TT)F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THETT
HK dollar s 40,693 51,817
US dollar ETT 22,663 -
Renminbi AR¥ 137,109 150,548
200,465 202,365
18 BORROWINGS 18 B8
2009 2008
—EENF —ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current FERE
Long-term bank borrowings REIRITEER 118,700 188,700
Current e
Bank overdrafts RITHEX = 183
Trust receipt loans BB ER 91,935 76,503
Short-term bank borrowings WHIRTTEE 325,300 54,000
Current portion of long-term RERITIBE < BNEAED (0
bank borrowings 70,000 85,875
487,235 216,561
Total borrowings BEEE 605,935 405,261
(a) The maturity of the Group's borrowings is as follows: (@) AKREEEZEHANT :
Short-term bank
Long-term bank borrowings and
borrowings bank overdrafts Trust receipt loans
RARTHEE BARTEERBTEX ERRBER
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“EEAFE —TT/\F ZBBAE —TT\F ZBBAF —TIT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TET TR TET
Within 1 year —FR 70,000 85,875 325,300 54,183 91,935 76,503
Between 1 and 2 years —EEWE 55,000 70,000 - = - =
Between 2 and 5years ~ MEZRRE 63,700 118,700 - - - -
Wholly repayable within -~ REEXN2HEE
5 years 188,700 274,575 325,300 54,183 91,935 76,503
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e MR MR

18 BORROWINGS (Contd) 18 B8 (&)
(b)  The average effective interest rates of the Group’s by AEBRGEEBZETEEFLHERF
bank borrowings at the balance sheet date are as KR -
follows:
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Long-term bank borrowings, RHIRITEE -
at floating rate ERR: S 1.59% 2.55%
Short-term bank borrowings, RHERIRITIEE -
at floating rate PR 1.70% 2.93%
Trust receipt loans EEREER 2.08% 3.68%
Bank overdrafts RITHEX - 5.61%
(0  The carrying amounts of the borrowings (0 BEZRHSFBARAEQFEMELRAE
approximate their fair values and are denominated MR -

in HK dollar.
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19 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%).

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

e MR MR

19 EZEFHIE

REREXRBEBELIRNEREZEHRTEMEK
16.5% (ZZEZTN\F : 17.5%) E2E 4 -

ERAERNAKEEHREERRIERIER
B - MELEPT SIS &R —HGHKEE - Al
AREEHRRAEERECHAABEREE -
EABERER  TIREREEERE
KA -

2009 2008

—EFhE —ZEENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Deferred tax assets FRIERIRE = (349) (387)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIBBE 6,880 8,753
6,531 8,366

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had unprovided deferred
tax assets of approximately HK$4,905,683 (2008:
HK$4,022,124) primarily representing the tax effect of
cumulative tax losses (subject to agreement by relevant tax
authorities) which can be carried forward indefinitely.

The movement of the deferred tax assets and liabilities
prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction is as follows:

RZBEZAF=ZA=+—8 KEBENKREE
JEFRIE 2 BB E E 414,905,683 L (ZZEZEN
F:4,022,124%87m) EXERKREFHIEES
BHBEYE (AXEBAURERERE) %t
XA A] LAEPR HAth 4517 ©

Al — B [ 2 A& SR B AR 8H A -
ENBBZESHNOT

EIET A E

Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE
Accelerated
depreciation
and total
InRITER A5
HK$'000
FETT
As at 31 March 2007 —EEF=H=+—H 8,950
Credited to income statement EREEERFTA (197)
As at 31 March 2008 —EENF=HA=+—H 8,753
Credited to income statement EEERFTA (1,235)

As at 31 March 2009

—EENF=HA=1T—H 7,518
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19 DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

19 EEHIE (&)

Deferred tax assets EEBREEE
Tax losses Others Total
HiiE Hith aH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT FHT
As at 31 March 2007 —ET+F=A=+—H (2,170) (286) (2,456)
Charged/(credited) ER=EERNR S (GTA)
to the income statement 2,170 (101) 2,069
As at 31 March 2008 “EENF=ZA=1+—H - (387) (387)
(Credited)/charged FEREER GEA),/ Mk
to the income statement (638) 38 (600)
As at 31 March 2009 —ETNF=A=1+—H (638) (349) (987)
A summary of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities prior to R — it e 2 ARG AEEER - BEHIER
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction (BE) RBBEZREWNT :
is as follows:
2009 2008
—EFhE —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
Deferred tax assets EEFRIAE E (987) (387)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE & & 7,518 8,753
6,531 8,366
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20 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS
- GROUP

(a) Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group and its employees makes monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a
cap of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter contributions
are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in Mainland China. The Group
contributes approximately 10% (2008: 10%) of the basic
salaries of its employees, and has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s
contributions to the aforementioned pension schemes was
approximately HK$3,696,000 (2008: HK$3,859,000).

(b) Provision for long service payments

Provision for long service payments represents the Group's
obligations for long service payments to its employees
in Hong Kong on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
Such long service payment obligations are valued by
Mercer Human Resource Consulting Ltd, an independent
qualified actuary valuer.

e MR MR
20 EHERIRE - F%H

(a) SREHEGE

AEBERHEBRESEAATIIERTEEFE
(MaEestall) - BB BN EBERG
2 ABURFEAEBE - REBRBEDFE - K
SENEEBAVREHRREE ZET (EER
sBHERBEIED) 5% EZAEMEL MK - B
FTHES 2B AMHKA,00087TA R - Hig
ZHHRABERRIEE -

BERBEAZEETE  AEEERATREESM
REZBREBRRGTEIELHK - NEEE
REPEEEEAFEHI0% (ZZZNEF:
10%) fEE R MBEEANERRARESI N
SRR N B BB E L A AE - RINEE
ZHBRRESH—AHBERER Z RIS
HHE o

RAFEARNEE 5 i RIREFEIELR 2 73K
49 /53,696,000 7T (— EZE )\ 4 : 3,859,000
BIT) o

(b) REBRBEER

YRGB EEBRAKEREES (EBRIE)
EETHERTEILERESM N2 KBRS
EFRTTEZEE -

ZEITRENEABEUEEAFE X ast8
BEIR(E MR AN R BRKE 8 T AR EH KA
Bzt HEs - ZRBRESETHBIAE
REEMEEANERBAARQBMME -
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20 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS 20 BRARBREE - XKEEH (&)
— GROUP (Cont'd)

(b)  Provision for long service payments (b) REBRKEE%ESE
The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet EHEeEERBBERERZEBETIAAE
are determined as follows: JE -
2009 2008
—ETAE —ZTTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHT FHET
Present value of unfunded obligations TR EERABRARTE
and liability in the consolidated BEERAGBZERE
balance sheet 12,929 9,793
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income e ERRERZSBHT ¢

statement are as follows:

2009 2008

—EEAF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Interest cost FBALA 522 287

Net actuarial losses recognised BEERZIFEEE 2,672 3,453
Total, included in employee &t (FIREERA

benefit expenses (Note 23) X)) (FsE23) 3,194 3,740

The above charges were included in general and NEXHEHBEE—MRERITHERR -
administrative expenses.

Movements of the provision for long service payments of AEERRGZSEFEESWT -
the Group are as follows:

2009 2008

—EENF T N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Beginning of the year == 9,793 6,053
Provision for current year (Note 23) REZEME (FizE23) 3,194 3,740
Payments made during the year RED R (58) -

End of the year FEK 12,929 9,793
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20 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS 20 BRARBREE - XKEEH (&)
— GROUP (Cont'd)

(b)  Provision for long service payments (Cont'd) (b) RERKESEME (&)
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FIRZEERERZEOT :
2009 2008
—EEAE —EBENF
Per annum Per annum
BF FF
Discount rate BHIR = 2.00% 2.70%
Expected rate of future salary increases AR E M~ FEHR I R & 1.00% 3.00%
21 REVENUE 21 WA
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EBEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Turnover BT
Sales of merchandise from HE
— Metal and plastic business — A BRBER 1,256,928 1,321,560
— Electronic manufacturing —BFHEERIER
services business 1,203,650 1,478,407
2,460,578 2,799,967
Other gains Efblkss
Rental income e WA 3,348 3,007

Total revenue AHIKA 2,463,926 2,802,974
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22 EXPENSES BY NATURE 22 RMESEZER
2009 2008
—EZhF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHETT
Cost of inventories FEKA 1,912,962 2,256,203
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - BERKEIITE
and equipment (Note 7) (BfF5E7) 56,294 59,394
Amortisation of leasehold land and FHE b 4 M (P P4 2 5
land use rights (Note 6) (Fffzx6) 1,177 1,054
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAFX (BREEME)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 23) (Bf5E23) 255,097 234,207
Operating lease rental of premises MEZKEHEERS 15,760 14,707
Net exchange gain b 3 W 2 5 5B (650) (8,889)
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEM N & 1,700 1,650
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 R E M EYIR OB E LA
and other receivables (Note 11) (BF3E11) 728 2,595
Write-off of other receivables L th U IR TR 2 B 8 = 918
Write-back of provision for obsolete and ~ BRE N tl17 &5 4 2 18
slow-moving inventories (Note 12) (FHEE12) (1,805) (11,470)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BMENMEEZ
and equipment ERFRE 772 3,192
Other expenses HEabR 195,535 222,543
2,437,570 2,776,104
Representing: KK :
Cost of sales SHER A 2,286,474 2,623,931
Distribution and selling expenses SIENIHEER 30,709 34,948
General and administrative expenses —MRERITHER 120,387 117,225
2,437,570 2,776,104




Karrie International Holdings Limited = 7IBIFR AR GRR A7) » Annual Report 2008/09 4F%k

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

23 EERAZXGEH—BEBREESME

23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES —

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS
(@) Employee benefit expenses during the year are as () AFEEERHNZHNAT :
follows:
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Wages and salaries =S - T& 247,870 225,529
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRKA — REHKEE 3,696 3,859
Provision for long service payment (Note 20)  RHIFRIE &% (FizF20) 3,194 3,740
Share option expenses for options granted HYEEhESEREZER
to directors and employees 337 1,079
255,097 234,207

(b) Directors and senior management

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31

March 2009 is set out below:

(b) EBRSREEAR

HE_ZTAF-A=T—HILEEEZHE

SRR

Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary  to pension

Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses scheme Total
BiERH EXEHRe

2B e ey 2L FTEIZHE e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET FET FAET

Executive director HITEE

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai ieE s e - 4,687 398 12 5,097

Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis WK B A& = 936 397 12 1,345

Mr. Lee Shu Ki FRiEEE - 868 252 12 1,132

Non-executive director HHTEF

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming IS RRLE 438 - _ _ 438

Independent non-executive director BB ITEE

Mr. So Wai Chun BEELE 99 - - - 99

Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond BRImFR A 99 = = = 99

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing bt bie 59 - - - 59
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23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES —
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Directors and senior management (Cont’d)

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31

23 EEREAXE—BRESHE &)

(b) ESKEREEAS (&)

HE_ZETZ N\F=A=+t—HLEREZZM=z

March 2008 is set out below: HIRMAT -
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary  to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary’ bonuses scheme Total
BMERK EXEAKE
BEEEB e e 2T FHEIZHR &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FET FET
Executive director HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai BiSh: e - 4,770 398 12 5,180
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis MoK ER S - 1,034 395 12 1,441
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FRIBlELE - 971 250 12 1,233
Mr. Wong Shun Pang =)EME L - 650 - 8 658
Non-executive director HHITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fal AR A 233 333 = 2 568
Independent non-executive director BV HEHTEE
Mr. So Wai Chun BRERTE 100 = = = 100
Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond BRInAR T 100 = = = 100
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing pabicYibias 60 - - - 60

L Included fair value of share options charged to the

consolidated income statement during the year.

No directors waived any emoluments during the year
(2008: Nil). No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid/payable to any

director during the year (2008: Nil).

1 BREAFENERSEERNB 2BREQF

=1

AEEREZIWEMNES (ZFTZN\EF &) 7§
EONHENFIBS TERNESARSIEMNA
AEBERKEBML 2 HE (ZTTNF &) -
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23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES —
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

()  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three (2008: three) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2008: two) individual during the year are as follows:

e MR MR

23 EEREAXE—BRESHE &)

() THEBSHMAL

AEREEARZRRFMALEE=4R (=
ZENF:ZR)EF HMEEHRN XS
e RAFAEB B (CTTNF: —8) &
mFALTZEMNMEIT

2009 2008

—EZhEF —EENF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Basic salaries and allowances' BEARF & KERL 1,803 1,660
Discretionary bonus BB B FEAL 101 279
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  RKES A — MK 2 24 24
1,928 1,963

The emoluments fell within the following band:

ZEMEE TNIIEABEN

2009 2008

2R —TT)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH FB

HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 500,001;&7C% 1,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C%1,500,000/8 7T - 1

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

1,500,001/ 7C £ 2,000,000/%8 7T - -

L Included the amounts of share-based compensation, which
are determined based on the fair value of the share options
granted to the relevant employees at the date of grant and
recognised over the vesting period.

No emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and other employees) as compensation
for loss of office during the year (2008: Nil).

W ELRBENRMNAER ZHE - ZAERER
%E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁiﬂ?@%i&ﬁﬁ%% HA
A o

AEEhEERTAL (BRESKEMBEE)
VEEMTAMESIERRERUZME (ZF
TNF|E) o
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e MR MR

24 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

24 BB ARKA

2009 2008
—ETAF T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Finance costs — Interest expenses on KA — RAFA
bank borrowings wholly repayable EHEEZRITEER
within five years MEFAX 12,888 20,071
Finance income — Interest income from B A — SRITH B HA
bank deposits (10,071) (14,853)
Net finance costs BTGP AN F R 2,817 5,218

25 TAXATION

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermuda
but exempted from Bermuda taxation until 2016. The
Company’s subsidiary in the British Virgin Islands is
incorporated under the International Business Acts of the
British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are exempted from
the British Virgin Islands income taxes. Hong Kong profits
tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%)
on the estimated assessable profit for the year for all group
companies incorporated in Hong Kong. All the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to corporate
income tax at 25 % effective from 1 January 2008.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

25 BiE

N/NCIDEDT=E S =3 AVAVA/NCIIEY -+ 528 o3
REPEE T —RF - ARAIZHBELE
MEBARIBRERBEZSBEBEEEENL K
RERNEBRELEZABR - TAKYRES
ZAREE 2 RETIRIBEARF 2 (5T R a
16.5% (ZZEZENF : 17.5%) 2R IRE
BREHEEH TN \F—H—HHE K
EEMBEERBRAREZHBRREUEF25%
B EREH o

EHRAEmRHZBANT

2009 2008
—EENF T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT

Current taxation: Hong Kong profits tax WITHIA : BAMEM
— current year —KEE 4,999 5,146
— under-provision in prior years —FF2TRER 143 1,486
Deferred taxation (Note 19) FEIERIA (BI3E19) (1,835) 1,872
Taxation charge I H 3,307 8,504
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25 TAXATION (Cont'd)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the profits
tax rate in Hong Kong, the Group’s home country, as
follows:

e MR MR

25 HIE (£&)
KEBEBERBATNEN HIERREXAES
THERE (AEEMATBR) Mt 2@k
WY EENOT

2009 2008

—EEhEF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FHAT

Profit before taxation R A5 AT A 23,740 21,652
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B E16.5%

(2008: 17.5%) —TT)N\F 17.5%) 5 E 3,917 3,789
Income not subject to taxation IRV WA (15,909) (15,406)
Expenses not deductible for I AL s s

taxation purposes 10,556 18,061
Under provision in prior years FFE2 TR 410 1,486
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FAEFRERISEE

tax losses - (1,596)
Tax losses for which no deferred RBHERELEFTSHEE

income tax asset was recognised Z TR 4,417 2,170
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred TR ER TSR

income tax b7 (84) -
Taxation charge RIA H 3,307 8,504

26 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of approximately HK$1,550,000 (2008:
HK$1,869,000).

26 ANFRERFEAEBMLERN

KABIRERZRE AREEBETBRE—FEHEA
ARARINRE ZE1E41,550,000 B (ZFEZE/)\
£ :1,869,000/87T) °
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27 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

27 BRER

TR EARG M RIBEAR R R BER A A BG4
MERAFABR BT EBRINEFHHEE -

2009 2008
—BBAF ZZTTNF
Profit attributable to equity holders of RARIBREREA
the Company (in HK$'000) e A (FETTET) 22,081 13,148
Weighted average number of EETEER
ordinary shares in issue IntETFHE
(in thousand shares) (FR%ET) 577,150 474,971
Basic earnings per share BRERRTF
(HK cents per share) (BRRLABILED) 3.8 2.8

Diluted earnings per share is calculated adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

The Company has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares during the year which is the share options
granted to employees. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market price of the Company’s shares) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options.

The number of shares calculated as above is compared
with the number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share options.

TR EEE AN IR R B R T A
WM - AR E A8 R IR T 15 B R

2| AA
IZIEO

HAXRRADEHBERR 2R TREBK
- RBERTEBREMN cRBEZEEE
B BEEAFE (BER/RARBIRNGZFY
FEME) AIBAZBRNOEA -

BAETAHEZBRMDHA - BERREBBET
EMmEEHITIRMDBB L -

2009 2008
—EENF —ZENF
Profit attributable to equity holders RATIREREA
of the Company (in HK$'000) FE(R A (FAETTET) 22,081 13,148
Weighted average number of ordinary EEITEERZ
share in issue (in thousand shares) DR E (FREET) 557,150 474,971
Adjustment for share options BRI 2 R
(in thousand shares) (FB&ET) = 41
Weighted average number of ordinary ArESREEREN 2
shares for diluted earnings per share TEA% < IIRE S B
(in thousand shares) (FP&=t) 577,150 475,012
Diluted earnings per share BRESRT
(HK cents per share) (BRRIABILED) 3.8 2.8
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28 DIVIDENDS

28 K2

2009 2008
—EEhEF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHAT
Interim dividend, declared, of Nil B ERRE
(2008: HK0.75 cent) per ordinary share — FEEAE
(ZZTN\%F : 0.757%1l) - 4,329
Final dividend, proposed, of HK1.5 cents B R EIAR 2
(2008: Nil) per ordinary share — BEEAR .58
(ZZEZENF - &) 8,657 -
8,657 4,329

The directors has proposed the payment of a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2009 of HK1.5
cents per share. This proposed dividend is not reflected as
a dividend payable in the financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation of distributable reserves in
the year ending 31 March 2010.

29 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The Group and the Company had the following significant
commitments and contingent liabilities which were not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements:

(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following authorised and contracted
capital commitments:

BEEERRE _ZTTENF=A=+—HLFE
2R B AER1.5EN - kBRRKRETE RN
AU RERBEARNRKRE BN =T —F
FZA=Z+—BULEFERMAEIDREEIE -

29 AERJIRER

AEBEARRBATRBEERNMBHRE LT
REBZEERERIABE :

(a) EAEE
AEBERUTERERBNZEARALE

Group Company
rEE b NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENEF —ZET)N\F —EENEF —ZET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT THET FA&T
Construction of FA R B R A o
factory premises EF
in Mainland China 30,392 28,930 - -
Purchase of property, BEYE -
plant and equipment R N 5k A 2,507 20,128 - -
32,899 49,058 - -
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29 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Contd)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group had lease commitments in respect of land
and buildings under various non-cancellable operating
lease agreements extending to October 2055. The total
commitments payable are analysed as follows:

| Statements
29 FAERIIAEE (&)

(b) REHEEARE
AEBEZEPRE_TAAF+ABMIA
Mz SERE 2 K LA HE - BENE
TN

Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF —ET)N\F —EENEF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
Amounts payable BN &
Not later than one year NRe—5F 7,748 9,947 - —
Later than one year and BiE—F K
not later than five years NBBAF 26,475 27,775 = =
More than five years HBiEAE 263,709 258,461 - =
297,932 296,183 - -

The Group had future minimum lease rental receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

AREBERRZAAIHHEEHE 2 HIEE W
MEWFAT :

2009 2008

—EENF —ETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FETT

Not later than one year TEBiE—F 588 1,415
Later than one year but tBim—F &

not later than five years NeEBAFE 2,087 2,494

More than five years HBilhFE - 399

2,675 4,308

(c) Guarantees

As at 31 March 2009, the Company has given guarantees
totalling approximately HK$1,210,674,000 (2008:
HK$1,340,249,000) to financial institutions in connection
with the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. Such
banking facilities utilised as at 31 March 2009 amounted
to HK$418,490,000 (2008: HK$405,261,000).

() R

RZBEZAF=ZA=+—H KRQRAHKTHB
BEEHERERTHE THMONB AR 2 B1E
R4 % 51,210,674,0008 T (Z 2T )\ F -
1,340,249,00087T) - R=ZTETNF=A=+
—H BEFERZETEE R418,490,000/% 7T
—ET)\4F : 405,261,000/ 7T) °
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30 BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by corporate guarantees provided by the Company
and certain of its subsidiaries.

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party is a party that is related to the Group if
directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
the party controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group (including the Company or its
wholly or non-wholly owned subsidiaries); or the party has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence
over the Group; or the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly
or indirectly, any individual who is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group.

(@) Transactions with related parties

e MR MR

30 SBTRE

RZZBTZNAZA=1T—8  *EERITRE
AR RBRETH B AR 2 A REREEM

31 BEALRS

AEALR - ATEZRLAHEEB —EXZHE
FEAL ZEHAKE WAKE (BEAR
AIEEERFEEZWBRR) EH e EN
SEXKREF AL AZABEELREE 2
i MZxERR TEHAKETRERFE
N HRALT B WERANEEETREAR
T%ZIEMEAE\EE%F?E? - HRE
HRITREAZE N 2 (@8

(a) HBREALTZXRS

2009 2008
—EENEF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Purchase of goods and services: BEEYRRE -
Purchase of raw materials from NG
an associated company EE YR 3,018 2,514
Others: Bt :
Rental charged by a related company %8 4& TEIE AR 1,594 1,434
Consultancy service fee charged by YERERT
an associated company i /N 642 -
2,236 1,434

In the opinion of the directors, the above related party
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business of the Group and on terms as agreed with the
related companies.

REEEZER  UWLBERSHRE ,’%ZIS
B % 2 5755 M B B B R R 1h T S IR AR AT T
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

(b) Balance with related parties

31 BEEALRES (&)

(b) HEREALZ&E

2009 2008

—EENEF T N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Amounts due to associated company JE < Heg & 2 R) 21 811
()  Key management compensation () FEEEEMS

2009 2008

—EENF —ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAET

Wages, salaries, allowances and bonuses N - & - 2B NIEAL 13,632 18,692

Pension costs — defined contribution plan RN — E M GETE 142 159

13,774 18,851

32 ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The directors regard New Sense Enterprise Limited, which
owns 42.25% in the Company’s shares, to be the ultimate
controlling party of the Company. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, and
his family members are the beneficial owners of New
Sense Enterprise Limited.

32 BRAREHAL

E £ ANew Sense Enterprise Limited @ #F
BARRAL2.25%K 5 » R R B2 &EE
il 7 o fa] ke 48 55 A ]2 H R TR AKX B BNew Sense
Enterprise Limited Z %z A ©
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THEUBRREE

The results of the Group for the last ten financial years AEEHE_ZTENF=ZA=+—HBLT+EH
ended 31 March 2009 and the assets and liabilities of the BEEZHEFE EAR_ZTZTZTF . _ 2T —
Group as at 31 March 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, F - :g%:i *ET F . _EBEFME -
2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 are as follows: —EERFE N _EBERFE _EELFEOF
ZNFN_ZTETNF=ZA=+—HBZEEKS
BT
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 March
BE-A=t-HIEE

009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
“EBAF -33)\F C3TCF CT5F CSERE CTIMG CT-F C$30fF 3T C3TTS
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
tén TEr Tér TR TEr Tér TRn  TEr  TAT TR

(Restated)
(E31)

Revenue WA 2463926 2,802,974 3328097 3597242 2571537 1697925 1,743,768 1,162,395 898322 663,189
Operating profit me s 2635 26870 150394 218540 174766 104907 140374 90587 4355 30,699
Finance income 3 ON 10,071 14,853 1,104 10,127 3,964 1,620 3,101 4,095 2,857 2,939
Finance costs BB (12,888)  (20071)  (23764) (24531 (87200 (6,145  (10401)  (9.244) (15981)  (9239)
Share of profit/{loss) of e W#‘é’/ﬂ

associated companies Bhl /(B 201 - - - (10234)  (1,766) - - - -
Profit before taxation B AR 740 2165 13773 204136 159,776 98616 133074 85438 30432 24399
Taxation il (3307)  (8504) (12806) (17,757 (13203  (8176)  (13266)  (7,008) (4,004 (3783
Profit for the year REFRT 20433 13148 124928 186379 146573 90440 119808 78370 26368 20,616
Profit/loss) attributable ARAREREA

to Equity holders i

of the company 22,081 13148 124928 186379 146573 90440 119808 78370 26368 20,616
Minority interest PERRER (1,648) = = = = = = = = =

20433 13148 124928 186379 146573 90440 119808 78370 26368 20616

The Group adopted the new/revised standards and NEBRE-_ZEENE-A=+—B It F4&
interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting DEMTIE S RIESEEMERERER  BHE
Standards for the year ended 31 March 2006. Figures as at —TEERE- A=+ —RBI T REE R
and for the year ended 31 March 2005 have been restated B3| REBEUNSEEA S EEL
as required. Figures as at and for each of the previous mEE . KB E T HEUEL B R A 4T o

years ended have not been adjusted as it is not practicable
to restate earlier years for comparison purposes.
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THEUBRREE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONSOLIDATED) ReEEAE
Year ended 31 March
BE-B=T-HILEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
EENE -TT)\F CETLF CBTF CTERE CTEME CET-F CEE-F CTE-fF CFEIEE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
T THr TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEr TEr  TEr TEn
(Restated)
(&%)
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREEE 508778 452388 318119 281445 242556 260677 236549 237463 285632 276,35
Current assets THEE 1,361,060 1204429 1303248 1291113 1375377 722880 711911 567501 424625 313015
Total assets BELE 1,869,847 1656817 1621367 1572558 1,617,933 983557 948460 804964 710,257 589367
EQUITY i
Share capital ek 5,710 57720 41208 41050 40777 40076 38150 37694 37314 36,195
Reserves e 640459 617697 514970 485147 375154 334963 326,168 309709 319,103 302,333
698,169 675417 556,198 526,198 415931 375039 364318 347403 36477 338528
Minority interest PERRER 43,026 44 44 44 44 44 04 44 44 44
M195 675841 556622 526622 416355 375463 364742 347827 356901 338,952
LIABILITIES af
Non-current liablities FnEaE 138500 207046 104464 164478 106744 75324 B972 4064 31778 18231
Current liabilities TEak 990,143 773730 960281 881458 1094834 532,770 547746 413073 315578 231,184
Total liabilties BEeE 1,128,652 980976 1064745 1045936 1201578 608,094 583718 457,137  3533% 250415
Total equity and iabilties EaRaREaE 1,869,847 1656817 1621367 1572558 1617933 983577 948460 804964 710,257 589367

The Group adopted the new/revised standards and
interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards for the year ended 31 March 2006. Figures as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2005 have been restated
as required. Figures as at and for each of the previous
years ended have not been adjusted as it is not practicable

to restate earlier years for comparison purposes.

AEBBE_TERNF=_A=t—"HILZF#&
BEERMIIE BT EBMBRERER - BE
—ERRAF=A=+t—HIZHEFEREEX
Bi - REBEUMESFFERZBFLEEL
HE - AEIIEF 2 EF AELLBRIL AT o
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